ST T T A -

s

e

10.

11.

12.

Meeting Date: May 28, 2024

VILLAGE OF LANCASTER

BOARD MEETING

AGENDA

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

MINUTES OF MEETINGS DATED:
ABSTRACT OF AUDITED VOUCHERS
LISTED CORRESPONDENCE
RESOLUTIONS

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
COMMITTEE REPORTS - FOLLOW UP
DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS
HEARINGS

MISCELLANEOUS

ADJOURNMENT

May 13 (regular meeting)

NEXT SCHEDULED REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, JUNE 10, 2024



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 1 of 11

The regular meeting of the Village of Lancaster Board of Trustees was held in the Municipal Building
Council Chambers, 5423 Broadway, Lancaster NY, on Monday, May 13, 2024, at 7:00 P.M.

Eagle Scout Candidate Nicholas Argentieri led the pledge to the flag.

MEETINGS TO DATE 5

NO. OF REGULARS 3

NO. OF SPECIALS 2

Attendance: Attended / Absent

Lynne T. Ruda Mayor 5/0

Cynthia A. Maciejewski Trustee/ Deputy Mayor 4/1

Tammie E. Malone Schaefer Trustee 5/0

John Mikoley Trustee 570

William C. Schroeder Trustee 3/0

Also Present:

Arthur A. Herdzik Village Attorney

Michael E. Stegmeier Clerk-Treasurer

Wayne Cisco Superintendent of Public Works

Eric Feldmann Fire Chief

Gavin O’Brien 175" Anniversary Committee Chairperson

Caitlin Chavez Yates Historic Preservation Commission Member

Matthew Fischione Town of Lancaster Supervising Code Enforcement Officer
Captain Jeff Smith Town of Lancaster Police Department

| ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES ]

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer to accept the minutes of the
April 15, 2024, organizational meeting.

Adopted Resolution: 82 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer to accept the minutes of the
April 22, 2024, regular meeting.

Adopted Resolution: 83 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

| ABSTRACT OF AUDITED VOUCHERS |

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Mikoley that the Treasurer be authorized to pay,
from the vouchers, all the claims against the GENERAL, SEWER, TRUST, CAPITAL, EQUIPMENT
RESERVE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT and SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUNDS for the
period from 4/23/2024 to 5/13/2024.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 2 of 11

Further, that the report of the Finance Committee be accepted from the abstract of the audited vouchers, a
total of 80 claims were approved, and that all claims were paid against the:

GENERAL FUND in the amount of § 247,256.96
SEWER FUND in the amount of $ 8,704.02
TRUST FUND in the amountof $ 858.40
CAPITAL FUND in the amount of § --
EQUIPMENT RESERVE ------ccoee————-in the amount of $ --
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT --------- in the amountof § -
SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUND --—in the amountof § --
For the period from 4/9/2024 To 4/22/2024

Claims that were processed and paid are identified by the following check numbers:

General Fund checks # 91559 through # 91624
Sewer Fund checks # 12088 through # 12096
Trust Fund checks # 2576 through # 2577

Adopted Resolution: 84 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

| CORRESPONDENCE: |

1) Correspondence from the Matt Fischione, Code Enforcement Officer for the Town of Lancaster Building
and Zoning Department, providing an update on code enforcement and permitting issues in the Village of
Lancaster along with a report of building permit applications and open complaints that were filed for
properties within the Village of Lancaster.

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer to receive and file this
correspondence.

Adopted Resolution: 85 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

2) Correspondence from Joseph Brunet, Lancaster VFW Post No. 7275, inviting Village officials to
participate in the Memorial Day Services and Parade on Monday, May 27, 2024 starting at 9:00 a.m.

at the Lake Avenue Veterans Park.

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to receive and file this
correspondence.

Adopted Resolution: 86 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

3) Correspondence from William Schutt, PE, Village Engineer, providing a recommendation to award
the purchase of one (1) new and unused vacuum assisted rear dumping mechanical street sweeper to
Guthrie Sales and Service in the amount of $284,933.00 following review of the bids received and
opened by the Village Clerk-Treasurer on May 2, 2024,



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 3 of 11

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve the purchase of one (1) new
and unused street sweeper from Guthrie Sales and Service in the amount of $284,933.00 per the
recommendation of William Schutt, PE, Village Engineer.

Adopted Resolution: 87 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

4) Correspondence from Mary G. Rozler providing her resignation from employment with the Village of
Lancaster effective on July 19, 2024.

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to receive and file this
correspondence and accept the resignation from Mary G. Rozler.

Adopted Resolution: 88 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

5) Correspondence from James Budzynski, WNY Bikes, providing a Special Events Application for the
175" Anniversary Community Bicycle Ride event to be held on Wednesday, July 3, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.
on West Main Street.

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to approve this event
application as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 89 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

6) Correspondence from Gavin O’Brien, 175" Anniversary Committee, providing a Special Events
Application for The Lancaster Village Jubilee event to be held on Tuesday, July 2, 2024 from 7:00
p.m. — 10:00 p.m. on West Main Street.

Motion by Trustee Malone Shaefer and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve this event
application as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 90 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

7) Correspondence from John Mikoley on behalf of the 175" Anniversary Committee providing a
Special Events Application for Lancaster Village PorchFest to be held on Saturday, August 17, 2024
from 12 noon — 5:00 p.m. at various locations.

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to receive and file this
correspondence and place in the Community Events Committee for review.

Adopted Resolution: 91 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

8) Correspondence from Karen Penziul, Lancaster Unleashed, providing a Special Events Application
for the 7" Annual Woof-n-Treat event to be held on Saturday, October 5, 2024 from 11:30 a.m. —
1:30 p.m. along Central Avenue and West Main Street.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 4 of 11

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to receive and file this
correspondence and place in the Community Events Committee for review.

Adopted Resolution: 92 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

9) Correspondence from St. Mary’s High School providing a Special Events Application for the St.
Mary’s High School Graduation event to be held on Thursday, May 23, 2024 from 6:00 p.m. — 9:30
p-m. and requesting use of the Village’s tall top tables.

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve this event
application as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 93 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

10) Correspondence from St. Mary’s High School providing a Special Events Application for its Reunion
Weekend / Lancerfest event to be held on Saturday, June 29, 2024 from 4:00 p.m. — 10:00 p.m. and
requesting use of the Village’s tall top tables.

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to approve this event
application as presented.

Adopted Resolution: 94 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Macigjewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

11) Correspondence from Superintendent Cisco requesting approval to send Sustainability Coordinator
Amy Stypa and three (3) DPW employees to the 2024 Re-Leaf Workshop at Draves Arboretum in
Darien, NY on Thursday, June 13, 2024 at a cost of $30 per employee

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve this request as
presented.

Adopted Resolution: 95 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

12) Correspondence from Superintendent Cisco requesting approval to hire the following three (3)
individuals as returning seasonal employees (Laborers) for the Department of Public Works at the
budgeted rate of $16.00 / hour with two (2) additional positions to remain vacant for future incoming

applications:

- Drew Chiarmonte
- Zachary Coxford
- Luke Genewick

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve the hiring of three (3)
returning seasonal employees for the Department of Public Works as presented per the recommendation
of Superintendent Cisco.

Adopted Resolution: 96 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY May 13,2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 5 of 11

13) Correspondence from Watts Architects & Engineers providing the following proposals for
professional engineering services for various sewer evaluations, reports, and Order on Consent

compliance work:

- 24-230 — Annual Order on Consent Reporting to NYS DEC.

- 24-267 — Oversight for Private Connection Inspection for Mini-Systems 1,4,5,7,8,9

- 24-268 — Site Specific Stormwater Investigations

24-269 — Point of Sale Assistance

24-270 — Post-Construction Engineering Report

- 24-271 — Stormwater Municipal Separate Stormwater Sewer System (MS4) Coordination
- 24-272 — SSES Investigation and CAP Report

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to authorize Mayor Ruda to sign and
approve proposals as presented above from Watts Architects & Engineers with the exception that #24-272
— SSES Investigation and CAP Report will be placed in the Grants Committee for further review prior to

consideration.

Adopted Resolution: 97 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Macigjewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

| RESOLUTIONS: ]

Motion by Trustee Mikolev and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to appoint Taylor Swenson as a
returning seasonal employee (Clerk-PT) for the Clerk-Treasurer’s office with an effective start date on
Monday, June 3, 2024, at the budgeted rate of $16.00 / hour.

Adopted Resolution: 98 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer authorizing Mayor Ruda to
sign the Eagle Scout Service Project Report form to approve and accept the Gardening Storage Solution
project completed by Eagle Scout candidate Nicholas Anthony Argentieri.

Adopted Resolution: 99 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve the following budget
transfer for the Lancaster Fire Department towards the purchase of absorbent materials from Dival Safety:

- $375.00 from A-3411-2607 (Radio Repairs) to A-3411-26018 (Absorbent Materials/Flares).

Adopted Resolution: 100 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to approve the following budget
transfer for the Office of Emergency Management towards the cost of equipment installation for the
Assistant Disaster Coordinator vehicle:

- $254.08 from A-3990-475 (Expense & Travel) to A-3990-200 (Equipment).

Adopted Resolution: 101 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY Mayv 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 6 of 11

Motion by Trustee Mikoley and seconded by Trustee Malone Scheafer to grant permission to the U.S.
Department of Agriculture to survey and place traps for invasive pests (Box Tree Moth & European Cherry
Fruit Fly) on Village-owned properties to be serviced every 3 weeks and removed by November 30%,

Adopted Resolution: 102 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Schreeder authorizing Mayor Ruda to sign
and execute the Member Participation Agreement with New York State Municipal Workers’
Compensation Alliance for workers’ compensation insurance coverage for the period from June 1, 2024
through May 31, 2025 with a total annual funding contribution of $306,278 for the fiscal year.

Adopted Resolution: 103 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Mayer Ruda and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to reschedule the previously cancelled
May 27, 2024 Village Board meeting to Tuesday, May 28, 2024 with the work session at 6:00 p.m. and the

regular meeting at 7:00 p.m.

Adopted Resolution: 104 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

| AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: |

Paulette Mayo- 147 Fourth Ave: She discussed traffic and parking issues on Aurora Street and Garfield
Street with parked vehicles blocking driveways due to the restaurant in the area. She discussed the need for
a stop light on Aurora Street and Como Park Boulevard. She also noted concerns with the traffic in the
downtown business district, especially when events are taking place.

Nicholas Argentieri — Eagle Scout Candidate: He discussed his Eagle Scout project where he built and
installed birdhouse storage boxes to assist the Beautification Committee with cleaning up downtown. The
houses contain tools so that citizens can use them to help keep our village looking nice.

Trustee Maciejewski reviewed the history of the project since Nick first reached out and discussions with
the Beautification Committee to identify the most beneficial project. He attended a Historic Preservation
Commission meeting to get approval and the birdhouses are currently installed throughout the village.
The Village Board thanked Nicholas for all his hard work on this project.

| COMMITTEE REPORTS & FOLLOW UPS: |

» FINANCE & CLAIMS - Trustee Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Schroeder and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve the quote from
TechNet MSP to purchase a laptop for the Village Attorney in the amount of $1,163.62.

Adopted Resolution: 105 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

He reported that Senator Gallivan is supporting the bill for a tax exemption for volunteer firefighters. This
benefit will help recruit more people to join fire companies in the Village and throughout the State.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER. NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 7 of 11

He wants to speak with Chief Feldmann to discuss LOSAP options with feedback from the Lancaster Fire
Department LOSAP Committee.

» PUBLIC WORKS — Trustee Mikoley

The military veteran banners were hung down Central Avenue since the last meeting. This is a process
being coordinated by the Department of Public Works along with the local VFW.

The new sweeper was approved for purchase earlier in the meeting. He thanked the Department of Public
Works mechanics for keeping the old sweeper working in the meantime despite its many problems.

» PUBLIC SAFETY - Trustee Maciejewski

The next Safety Committee meeting will be held this Wednesday, May 15th at 3:30 p.m. We will be
discussing ways to keep employees injury free.

During the Spring Clean Up event, volunteers noticed that there were private home garbage bags in the
Village garbage cans. This has resulted in the containers being cleaned out more frequently and there is a
safety issue with the type of debris being placed in the garbage cans from private homes.

She reached out to NYSDOT again regarding traffic issues and to discuss the possibility of adding a rapid
flashing beacon at the crosswalk on Broadway which would be at NYSDOT cost.

NYSDOT provided comments regarding traffic enforcement issues with more visitors to the community.
There will be a combined effort with outreach and education to the public to help prevent accidents in areas
such as the roundabouts.

» BUILDING, LIGHTS & CODES — Trustee Malone Schaefer

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve the quote from
Fire Safety Systems for upgrading the fire alarm system at the Lancaster Municipal Building in the
amount of $29,806.91.

Adopted Resolution: 106 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve the quote from
Fire Safety Systems to upgrade the panic alarm system at the Lancaster Municipal Building in the amount
of $2,210.00 with the option for keypads and door contacts at the DPW garage entrance in the amount of
$1,750.00.

Adopted Resolution: 107 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve the quote from Fire
Safety Systems for upgrading the fire alarm system at North End Fire Hall in the amount of $2,550.00.

Adopted Resolution: 108 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 8 of 11

Motion by Trustee Malone Schaefer and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to schedule a work session on
Monday, May 20, 2024 at 4:15 p.m. in Council Chambers to review the asbestos inspection results and
the proposed flooring replacement plans for the Lancaster Municipal Building.

Adopted Resolution: 109 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

» HUMAN RESOURCES - Trustee Maciejewski

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Malone Schaefer to schedule a work session
in Council Chambers on Monday, June 24, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. to meet with representatives from NYS
Comp Alliance to discuss the Village’s workers compensation program.

Adopted Resolution: 110 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to schedule a work session on
Friday, May 17, 2024 at 4:15 p.m. to interview candidates for the Deputy Village Attorney / Village
Prosecutor position in executive session.

Adopted Resolution: 111 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

There has not been a change to the Covid policy with the most recent case, but there will be changes to
the policy this summer with the sunset of the NY'S law. Our HR consultants are working on a handbook
for all employees which will include this updated policy.

Tomorrow, Tuesday May 16th at 6:00 p.m., there will be a recognition of past chiefs with their family

members as part of the 150" Anniversary of the Lancaster Fire Department, including a banner reveal in
their honor which will be installed down West Main Street from Central Avenue to Firefighters Park.

» COMMUNITY EVENTS — Trustee Malone Schaefer

On Monday May 27", the VFW Memorial Day Ceremony and Parade will be held. The events will begin
in Veteran’s Park on Lake Avenue at 9:00 a.m. All are welcome to join.

She reviewed the framework for the 4th of July event being held on July 3%, 4%, and 5% this year. There
will be a beer tent, games, activities, and food trucks, with the beer tent benefiting the Boys & Girls Club.

» ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - Mayor Ruda

Gavin O’Brien — Chair of the 175" Anniversary Committee:

He discussed plans for Old Home Week. There will be events such as Kids’ Night which will include
karaoke and a movie night in Cayuga Creek Park. The Lancaster Youth Bureau will provide kids craft
activities at 6:00 p.m. For the Jubilee event, there will be 30+ vendors to create a market experience down
West Main Street to go along with the swing dancing part of the event.

He created a Facebook page for the 175" Anniversary celebration to consolidate events in one place.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY May 13, 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 9 of 11

This Saturday, May 18" there will be a Preservation Buffalo Walking Tour as the May anniversary event.
For the May Speaker Series, there will be a presentation at the Lancaster Library on Thursday, May 23"
on the history of the library at 6:30 p.m.

The next 175" Anniversary committee meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 28" at 7:30 p.m.

Motion by Mavor Ruda and seconded by Trustee Maciejewski to approve to move forward with a
quote received for vertical banners for Village buildings.

Adopted Resolution: 112 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

» SEWER - Trustee Mikoley

He reviewed the meetings that have been held regarding the continued work on the sewers and the efforts
taking place to meet the requirements of the Consent Order.

He discussed the private connection inspection process at identified homes that need to be completed as
directed by NYS DEC. They will work on a process for Department of Public Works employees to follow.

» GRANTS - Mayor Ruda
Plum Bottom Creek Culvert — PHASE 1 (BridgeNY)

We are making progress for DEC approval needed to bid out the project. C&S had a meeting to review
permit issues with DEC and Army Corps of Engineers to identify what is needed.

Firefighters Park Renovation
Construction continues to be on schedule.

Erie County Municipal Planning Grant- Comp Plan Updates

We had a core team meeting, and we need to set a schedule for the Steering Committee meetings.

NYSDEC- UFC Program Tree Planting Grant Application

We received this grant! This will be moved to the Open Projects — Awarded section on the committee list.
» TECHNOLOGY & MARKETING — Trustee Malone Schaefer

No report.

» CLIMATE SMART — Mayor Ruda

At 5:30 p.m. earlier this evening, there was a presentation by UBRI regarding a Climate Resilience Plan

for the Village of Lancaster which will be available on the website for review. Comments are due by next
week before adoption at the next meeting.

| DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS & FOLLOW UPS: l

» VILLAGE ATTORNEY — Arthur A. Herdzik

He reviewed a proposed local law to address concerns with unauthorized parking on private lots to allow
enforcement by the Lancaster Police Department and Code Enforcement Officer.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY May 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 10 of 11

Motion by Mavor Ruda and seconded by Trustee Mikoley to schedule a public hearing on Monday,
June 10, 2024 at 7:15 p.m. regarding parking restrictions on private lots.

Adopted Resolution: 113 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

He also reviewed a proposed local law to address avoidable alarms to incorporate language similar to
what is found within the Town of Lancaster’s Code. It was determined that the Village needs to look at
more data and compare it with the Town’s experience with this issue and also get feedback from the

Lancaster Fire Department.
» FIRE CHIEF — Eric Feldmann

He reported there have been over 50 calls in the past month with 41 in April and 15 in May which includes
both vehicular accidents and fires.

He reviewed the extensive training hours completed by members of the Department.
The new truck committee met, and they will be providing new specs very soon.

He noted that the new chief trucks are currently at Empire Emergency where they are getting equipment
and lighting installed.

» HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION — Caitlin Chaves Yates
She noted that May is National Historic Preservation Month.
A preservation award was given to Valint’s Meats for their restoration of 25 Central Avenue.

For the 175" Anniversary event in May, the Preservation Buffalo historic group will be holding a walking
tour on Saturday, May 18" which she recommends attending.

There are cybersecurity updates being done that will affect Historic Preservation Commission members.
Someone will attend the Commission meeting on Wednesday, June 12 to provide assistance, or members
may attend prior to the next Village Board meeting on Tuesday, May 28% to meet with IT representatives
if they aren’t able to make the June 12% meeting.

» TOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT - Captain Jeff Smith

No report.
» TOWN BUILDING DEPARTMENT — Matt Fischione
No report.

» SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS — Wayne Cisco

Plants are being delivered tomorrow for the hanging baskets and gardens.

The spray pool will be opened this week.



VILLAGE OF LANCASTER, NY Mav 13. 2024

OFFICIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 11 of 11

Mayor Ruda noticed the Town of Lancaster remote-control mower being used on hills. For the safety of
employees, the Village will pursue quotes to purchase its own remote-control mower.

» CLERK - TREASURER - Michael E. Stegmeier

He noted that the board meeting agenda was placed on the website on Friday for public availability. This
process will continue for all regular board meetings going forward.

Motion by Trustee Maciejewski and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to approve and direct Clerk-
Treasurer Stegmeier to canvass the Civil Service list of eligibles for the position of Account Clerk Typist
— FT in the Clerk-Treasurer’s office.

Adopted Resolution: 114 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

He spoke with Matt Fischione, and it was identified that the Village has a Special Use Permit Application
for temporary and permanent use for specific items such as outdoor dining, but there is not an application
for general use for items that do not have a separate application. It is recommended to develop a generic
application that can be used when an application is not otherwise available for specific uses. This matter
was placed into the Building, Lights, and Codes Committee.

He has been notified by Assistant Chief Mike Reinhold that Code 3 will not allow Village employees and
officials to attend the Lancaster Fire Department’s classes for the annual NYS mandatory Sexual
Harassment Prevention / Discrimination training without an additional cost per person. This change was
made by Code 3 since they no longer provide training for the Department of Public Works which is now
provided through the Village’s HR consultant. He will work with Sheridan HR Consultants to schedule
additional classes through the end of the year to offer this NYS mandatory training to Village employees
and officials who still need to attend the training.

| MISCELLANEOUS: |'

Karen Howard from Senator Gallivan’s office attended the meeting. Mayor Ruda noted that she provided
a letter of support to the Senator towards a project for adding a Gunnville Road Thruway exit, which
would benefit our community and reduce commercial traffic coming through the Village. Ms. Howard
stated that the Village Board can contact their office at any time if there are ever any concerns.

| ADJOURNMENT: |

Motion by Mavor Ruda and seconded by Trustee Schroeder to adjourn the meeting at 7:56 p.m. in memory
of Mrs. Bondrow, Cindy Marlow, the victims of the 2022 Tops Markets shooting in Buffalo, and the two (2)
Thruway employees killed in an accident while working on the job last week.

Adopted Resolution: 115 Ayes: Mayor Ruda, Trustees Maciejewski, Malone Schaefer,
Mikoley, and Schroeder

Respectfully submitted,

Michael E. Stegmeier
Clerk — Treasurer



ABSTRACT May 28. 2024

Motion by -, seconded by

, that the

Treasurer be authorized to pay, from the vouchers, all the claims against the GENERAL,
SEWER, TRUST, CAPITAL, EQUIPMENT RESERVE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT,

and SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUNDS for the period from

Ma
May 14, 2024 to 28,2024

Further, that the report of the Finance Committee be accepted from the abstract of the audited

vouchers, and that all claims were paid against the:

GENERAL FUND in the amount of §$ 456,908.50
SEWER FUND in the amount of $ 13,955.17
TRUST FUND in the amount of § 1,378.75
CAPITAL FUND in the amount of $ 40.538.02
EQUIPMENT RESERVE in the amount of $
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ------—- in the amount of §
SPECIAL REPAIR RESERVE FUND ----in the amount of $§

TOTAL  512,780.44
For the period from April 23. 2024 May 13, 2024

to

MAYOR'’S CERTIFICATION:

I certify that the vouchers above were audited by the Village Treasurer and the Finance and Claims
Committee in the amounts above. You are hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants

the amount opposite name.

Total Claims

General Fund CKk#.........
Sewer Fund Ck#............
Trust Fund Ck#..............
Capital Fund Ck#...........
Community Development

Fund Ck#

Mayor Lynne T. Ruda

..............

97

 91625-91687
12097-12099

2578
1943




Abstract Summary of Funds

Board Meeting Date:

Vouchers Paid by Check
(2023-24 Budget)

FICA Voucher 4/26/24
Payroll Voucher 4/26/24
FICA Voucher 5/10/24
Payroll Voucher 5/10/24
TASC

Pre-Paid - Highmark

TOTALS

May 28, 2024
General Fund (A) Sewer Fund (G) Trust Fund (T) Capital Fund (H)
$ 276,139.82 § 18574 § 1,378.75 § 40,538.02
$ 5,506.41 $ 462.52
$ 70,979.52 $ 6,046.01
$ 5,53823 § 393.51
$ 71,615.67 $ 5,143.96
3 6,053.32
$ 21,075.53 § 1,723.43
3 -
$ -
$ .
$ .
$ 456,908.50 $ 13,955.17 $ 1,378.75 § 40,538.02

TOTAL ALLFUNDS|$  512,780.44 |




BTL8ES ¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/%0 Y

260621 ¥2/20/%0 $2/20/%0 ¥
919£920/259€9.0 b2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 L
£52£920 ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 L

£55€9£0 ¥2/20/%0 $2/20/50 £

OJHD-GMPN~-ACTT ¥2/62/%0 ¥2/62/%0 L

dIND3/SYDNYL: LNIVW/SUIVAIY- INIVW S1IULS 3

TOULNOD 1S3d-QITAISSYTONN-LNIVW SLIYLS 3

LI¥D 17¥S Qv0Y-STYOIWIHD-TVAOWIY MONS 3

114D LvS QV0U-SIVOIWIHI-TVAOWTY MONS 3

LT¥) 17VS QV0Y-STVOINIHD-TVAOWIY MONS 3

INIWAINDI 3

000-25%-0T1¢- ¥

000-S2y-0T1S- v

000-9Ty-Z€18- v

0¢"€LT STINVA ONV S3LVId €T YomuL T
ONT Q404 TISVE SO0TISYE $2/20/50 289T0-+7
00°T6 NOILD3dSNI TOMINOD Q¥Ig T

NI T04INOD 1S3d ONVIHSY SOOVIHSY $2/20/50 T8PT0-+Z

18°1686 J04INOD 3T L¥S MIna T

77 0D 17vS 300 NYOTYIWY QTOIHIWY #7/80/50 08¥10-+7

000-STy-Z€TS- v

L0769¢ 6T TOULNOD 3T LS Hng T

97700 L7V D08 NYOTYIWY TOTHIWY ¥7/80/50 6.¥T0-b2

000-STF-2€18- v

67208 L71¥S 104LNOD 30T ¥4 T

277 0D LVS D08 NVOTHIWY QTOT¥IWY $2/70/S0 8/10-72

000-002-TTwe- ¥

68" L1 SIDIHIA J3THD SAVHLS MOL T
SIDIAYIS VLIV NOZVWY OTOOZYWY $2/62/%0 LL¥T0-42

£196¥9659 ¥2/01/50 ¥2/0T/50 Y PIAYIS 170¥AVd - YTUNSYIUL FDNVNIA 3 00€-SEp-STET- v 07" 968 SLY0d3Y B ANILLVRIWIL dav T
"ONI ‘dQv SOONIAQY ¥2/0T/S0 9L¥T0-11
¥202/8/§ ¥2/80/50 $2/80/50 Y SYIAWIN/AYVLINIIS DdH-DAS 40¥d-1SIQ LSIH 3 000-v€v-02SL- ¥ 00°0S NOSYIT - DdH T
NIITWV SIWVE SO0I3TWV $2/80/50 SLYT0-bT
6££0S ¥2/01/50 ¥2/01/50 3 AYVSYIAINNY HLS/T - SNOILv¥E313) 3 000-/Tv-0SS.- ¥ SP'661'2 "NNY HLG/T SYVLS /M ONIINNG T
"0D OV 3OV SO0THIV $Z/0T/S0 $L4T0-b2
L679€S
LEYOS ¥2/0T/90 ¥2/01/50 L Y3HLO-STVIYILYW-SNAVd 3 000-¥T¥-0TTL- ¥V ST'HET SY4¥d/SONIQNING IOVTIIA-SOVM
LEYOS ¥2/0T/50 ¥2/0T/50 ¥ INIVW SQ¥/07ING-394D SYYOM DI18nd Ld3a 3 000-054-0¥9T- ¥ 2" pET SYUVd/SONIQTING FOVTIIA-SOVTS §
LEPO0S ¥2/0T/0 ¥2/01/50 3 INIVIW GNNOYD B @TING-"H'd N3 HLYON 3 000-£SP-T29T- vV +Z'#ET SY¥Vd/SONIQTING FOVTIIA-SOVTS 7
LE90S ¥2/0T/50 ¥7/01/50 4 INIVW SO¥O § ONIQIING - SIDIAYIS QIUYHS 3 000-05%-029T- ¥ ¥Z°¥¢T SNUVd/SINIQTING IOVTIIA-SOV |
"0) OV 30V S00THIV $2/0T/S0 £L4T0-b
3 LOAUT 91eQ 31eq 21eq du3 Yo/ /1e1S uoLdLiosaq adAL 300y Junoddy abuey)  unouy uoLdLJdSaq WRII
PLOAY  pA  3SdL4 8dAL 0d  12BJIU0D JOPUSA 91BQ Od ¢ Od
1587 03 1SJ1d :abuey pr yoreg pady
ULT JBDA JOLIG SUBIW 4 N tALUO JesA JoLsd A :pa1abpng-uoN apn|oux LLY :SJopusA
A UGUBXI A NJ3YI0 A 13IRIS A IPLE p/TE/S0 01 1sJLd :obuey d3eq du3 18414 S9ION W3II BULT INOYILM |1e13q :1ewso4
N MDY N CPBH A IpAYY 1587 03 15414 obuey
N IPLOA N :pled N :uadp LY :adAL 0'd
J3QUNN *0'd A9 BuLlSLY Japso dseYdINd WY pp1T
T :ON d3fied

JOVTIIA YILSYONVT

§207 ‘4T Aew



LTT120528
LTT20528

85026241
85062.1

b2ETy0 $92098.1

¥202/8/¢

SNOTAVA

yC1050T0v0L€90
Z1050T0¥0£2€90
ZT050T0¥0£2€90

¥202/8/5

yeor/se/y

6562200-ANI

PZ/01/50 $2/0T/50
P2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
p2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

b2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

$2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

y2/01/50 $2/01/%0

bZ/E1/0 ¥2/€1/50
Y2/ET/50 ¥2/€1/50
bZ/ET/50 ¥2/€T/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

b2/20/50 $2/20/50
$2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

YZ/ET/90 ¥2/€2/%0

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥ SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0¥d - ¥IANSYIYL IDNWNI 3
Y JONVNILINIVW ¥3Td0D - IDILSNC FDVTIIA 3

3 $317ddNS 3IT440 - ¥IUNSYIYL IDNYNI 3
4 SIDIAYIS TYNLOVULINGD - SIDIAYIS QIYWHS 3

4 Y3LVM-3DVEYD SHHOM DI78Nd 1430 3

Y SYTAWIN/AYYLIUIAS JdH-DAS 40¥d-1SIA LSTH 3

¥ LINYIINT B JLIS 9IM - ¥FUNSYIAL IDNWNIL 3

L INOHdIT3L - SIOIAYIS QIUVHS 3
INOHd3TIL - SHYOM DI19nd 1d43Q 3
Y INOHTITIL - SHYOM JI79nd Ld3 3

o

¥ SYIFWIN/AYYLIHIIS DdH-DAS 40¥d-1SIQ LSIH 3

3 G3TJISSYIONN-SITYL 3aVHS 3
8 SIVIYALYW ONIdVISANVT IDONYNILNIVIW-SHUvd 3

¥ SIIIAYIS WNLOVEINOD - IDILSNC DVTIIA 3

b AYVSHIAINNY HLS/T - SNOILVgINI) 3

000-¥€p-SZ€T- v S0°€0¢
000-€£y-0TTT- ¥V $8°96

000-T0%-SZ€T-
000-5£4-029T-

000-Tyy-0v91~

000-¥€4-025L-

000-vLp-S2ET-

000-6¢v-0291-
000-TE¥-049T-
000-T€¥-0¥9T-

000-v€¥-025L-

000-529-0958-
000-S€¥-0TTL-

000-S€7-0TTT-

000-LT¥-0882-

431400 331440 01D ¢
¥3Id0D LWnod T

JAS TVIINYNIS NIONVT 39¥130 S009v13a $7/0T/50 2641017

8" S
LTS TWINIY ¥37000 B OZH AUVYEIT 7
v o001 TVINTY ¥31000 B OZH AYYYHSIT T
277 0¥ TVLSAYD SOOLSAYD $2/80/S0 T6YT0-bZ
Y 98 OZH ONY TVINTY ¥3700D Y3LvM T
277 0¥ WLSAYD SOOLSAYD $2/20/50 064T0-72
v 0006 YIGWIW - ONILIIW DdH T
NITLIVD ‘SILVA SIAVHD SOOIAVHD $2/80/S0 68710-v7
Y 2669 HAIN/MdA/HAIN T
NOTLYDINAWNOD ¥ILYVHD 0Z0L¥VHD $Z7/0T/S0 884T0-+2
£1°6567
v 02'99T W1 ¢
Y T6°0¢ H4IN 7
v 20°66 Mda 1
SNOLLYDINNWHOD ¥3LYVHD SOOLYVHD $Z/§T/50 /8¥T0-v7
v 0006 Y3INIW - ONILIIW DdH T
T138dWYD A¥YIHS OTORANYD $2/80/50 98%TO-7
00°006
v 00°TT¢ SYVA/SITUL HDINW/TTOSHOL 7
v 00°98¢ SY¥Vd/SITUL HIINW/TTOSAOL T
"ONI 1I0SdOL ZINVYX € D SOOVENED $2/20/S0 S8¥TO-+T
v 00752t $202/52/p SIAS ONLS L¥n0D T
1¥1318 VINVd SOOVI3IE $2/£7/%0 ¥8T0-42
Y 00 /1S'T AYVSHIAINNY HLG/T %04 SHINNVE T

17 ‘SNOILNI0S INT¥d ONOA3E SOONOA3E $7/80/50 £8VT0-12

9D10AUT ?leq 3180 91BQ U3 YYI/3elS uoL3dLadsaq adAL 300y Junoddv abueyd Junowy UoLId1IIS30 WAL
PLOA/YUD pAY 15414 3dAL 0d 1dBJIUO) J0pURA 33 0d # 0d
JaqUnN *0'd A8 DuLlsLy JapJo Iseydund WY 911

7 :oN dbied

OVTIIA YILSYONVT

p20 ‘41 Aen



y202/61/%

y202/8/5

{8798TTANId

7S698TTANId

{5698TTANLd

£6€ S8TTANId

9TS69%E/ 296 Lv¢
9TS69¥E/ 7968 Lv¢

BoEELYE

Sh08.vE

EC87ANI

907¢05¢8

£{T20528

y2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50

$2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

p2/01/50 $2/01/50

¥2/01/90 $2/01/50

b2/62/10 ¥2/62/%0

2/91/%0 ¥2/92/%0

b2/62/40 ¥2/61/%0
b2/62/%0 ¥2/61/%0

y2/62/¥0 ¥2/62/%0

¥2/90/50 ¥2/90/50

v2/20/%0 ¥2/20/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/01/50 ¥2/01/50

[~

o

b

ANNA3¥/TIDNYD XVL dO¥d~SWILT TYIDIdS 3

SYIGWIN/AYLIUIAS DdH-DAS 40¥d-LSIA 1SIH 3

S3I7ddNS 3DI440-ONINNYTd 3

S3I7ddNS 321440 - ¥IUNSYIUL IONWNIS 3

SIAS TVNLOVYINGD - TVINIWNOUIANT 3

S310ddNS IDI440 - IDTLSNC IDYIIIA 3

57001 ONVH (31¥0SSY - INIWL¥Y4IQ IWId 3
§311108 v8S-1430 3¥Id 3

SIUVT4/STIVI¥ILYW INIQU0SEV-1d30 TuI4 3

NOILDISNI/AILYI § JAS AT¥A-1d3Q 3¥I4 3

Y3HLO-STVINILYW-SHYYd 3

SIDIAYIS TYRLOVULNGD-SHYOM DI78nd 1430 3

SIAS TYNLIVHINGD - TVINIWNOYIANT 3

000-00y-096T- v 86+t

000-vEp-0252-

000-T0y-0208-

000-T0¥-S2€T-

000~5€¥-0608-

000-T0y-0TTT-

0v€-092-TTHE-
092-092-Ttye-

08T-092-TT¥e-

000-6£y-TT¥¢-

000-¥T¥-0TTL-

000-9€¥-0¥9T-

000-5€4-0608- v TP '66

PaNULIU0)

vV 86'%8

v o0t

v 00788

v §6°0ST

'3'3 SONN4TY/NOILYTTIONYD XVL T
¥37704LdW0D ALNNOD 3T¥3 STODIT¥I $7/0T/S0 £0STO-7

Y 00597 SITING ¥IAWIW § AYYLINDIS T
L¥3%03 vWa3 004303 $2/80/50 20STO0-H7
Y 09°0¢ ONINNVId 404 S30T13IANT T

AlddNS 3XT440 NOLY3 SOONOLYE +¢/0T/S0 TOSTO-7Z

31440 01D ¥3dvd AdOD T
A1ddNS 321440 NOLV3 SOONOLY3 ¥Z/0T/50 00STO-b2

LYVWS IIVWITD ¥0d YD0LS@uvd T
AlddNS 321440 NOLYI SOONOLY3 +2/62/%0 66¥T0-72

v 68'€9 S¥30704 L3XD00-S3T7ddNS 3DT440 T
A1ddNS 3)1440 NOLV3 SOONOLY3 ¥7/92/v0 864T0-+7
5L'82E'T
v /€08 "ONITAD VE2S B ¥IVdY 7 ¥30QV1 7
V00528 "ONITAD V8S B ¥IVdIY § ¥300¥1 T

"ONI "dIND3 AL34VS TVAIQ SOOTVAIQ ¥2/62/40 L6¥T0-42

INIH0SAY 40 1377Wd T
"ONI "dIND3 AL34YS TVAIQ SO0TVAIQ ¥2/62/v0 96¥T0-47

¥3L3W SYOY NOLLDIASNI TWANNY T
"ONI "dIND3 AL3AYS TYAIQ SOOTYAIQ $2/90/50 S6vT0-v2

v 00°/66 YZ-€7 AJ SUINNVE SNVY3LIA T
SIS AVI4SIO S0014SIA $7/20/0 6¥10-HT
v 00°65¢ ANJWAYd 3SY37 ¥3Id0D MdQ T

IAS TYIDNWNIJ N3IONYT 39v730 §009¥130 $2/80/S0 £64T0-42

T¢ 6oy

¥31d0J VdALS ¢

JAS VIONVNIZ NIONYT 3OV130 $009v13a $Z/0T/S0 Z69T0-77

33 LOAUT

91BQ 31BQ U3 YYd/1P1S

PAY  1SdLd

uoL1dLadsaq adAL 100y
9dAL 0d 20BJILOD

Unodoy abueyd  Junouwy

uoL1d1IIS3q WelI
JOpUBA 338G 04  # Od

€ 0N abeqd

JOQUNN "0"d Ag BULISLT JBpJO ISBYIINd

TOVTTIA YILSYONVT

W 911
y207 ‘4T Aew



7y 80T

100" Thh2087S 2/80/50 +2/80/50 3 INIVd B ST00L-INIVW S13IUIS 3 000-6T+-0T1S- vV 65°SS mqummzm“mH¢<m Mda ¢0h<zmzww m
: S ¥2/80/0 $2/80/50 ¥ INIVW SQY9/QTING-39¥D SYMOM II79nd Ld3q 3 000-057-049T- ¥ §0°€S S3I1ddNS/SL¥Vd MdQ HOLYYIN
o0 Trveosy fa0/so v ATddNS JT¥1I373 NIVINAOW NIZ¥D OTONITUO $7/80/50 ETSTO-HT
' S ¥ INIVW SQYO/07ING-304D SHYOM HI78nd 143 3 000-05v-0¥9T- v 08°99¢ A1ddNS/S1uvd - YOLVYANID Mdd T
100 STEctsy FE/RU/S0 92/30/50 ATddNS JTYLO3TI NIVINAOW NIFUD OTONIIWO $7/80/50 ZTST0-b7
86" v0P .
T00°50596/%S v2/20/50 ¥2/20/50 ¥ SYIVATY - SHYOM DIN8Nd 1d3q 3 000-£S4-0¥9T- V6 ¢0¢ SLYVd-TIVLSNI YOLWYINID Mda
' S 4 INIVW SQ¥9/QTING-394D SY¥OM JI79nd 1d3q 3 000-0SP-0¥9T- ¥ 6%° 207 SL¥Vd-TIVLSNT YOLYYANID Mdd T
100 s0s36ce P/ 0o ATddNS DTY15373 NIVINNOW NIZYD OTONIO $7/20/50 TTSTO-h2
LL985°T
b2021I4dY ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 ¥ dIND3/SHINYL: INIVW/SUIVAIY- INIVW SLITULS 3 000-2S4-0TTS- ¥ 70°S6 _ SWALI SNOTUVA ¥
202 1T4dY ¥2/80/50 $2/80/50 ¥ MdQ A9 LNIVW % SYIVdI¥-1430 F¥I4 3 000-9Sy-TTHE= ¥ 27°/60°T SWILT SNOTVA §
$2077T4dvY $2/80/50 $2/80/50 ¥ SYIVAIY - SHYOM DINAnd Ld3C 3 000-£Sp-0¥9T- v oo.HNN anW% mmMWM«» m
T¥dy ¥ INIVW SQY9/Q1ING-39¥9 SHIOM II19Nd Ld3q 3 000-0S4-0¥9T- ¥ T0'T/
¥207714d 2/80/50 +2/80/50 NI SO0NTVED 12/80/5) OL¢T0-17
¥ SIS IVNLOVILINOD-SHIOM II19Nd 1d3Q 3 000-SE7-049T- ¥ 8£°898 9S # ¥34V3T SLYVd ¥IVd3Y T
Lo SEE L ONI “LNIWAIND3 WVLS AT S00SIATH $7/20/S0 60STO-4T
4 INIVW WYYV 3WI4-TT%H 3¥I4 ONI HLMON 3 000-2€%-T29T- ¥ 00°09¢ ONTYOLINOW TWHINDD $707 T
$£089 ¥2/0T/50 ¥2/0T/50 SALSAS AL 3 SOOSEATY 121000 oo
ANI 50 +2/01/50 | SIAS TYNLOVYLNOD - TYINIWNOYIANI 3 000-5€4-0608- ¥ 00°SH0'y NOILVHNOTANGD GNOT) YYOMLIN T
it v/ /oy "ONI LD3NNOD A3 SOONODAT $2/0T/50 L0STO-b7
¥ SNOIS-INIVW SL3MULS 3 000-2T#-0TTS- ¥ $5°99 dOHS NDIS T
§285200081 ¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50 ¥ITIOHLAN0) ALNOY T3 STOOSTE 52/7060 SteLicse
- Y YILVM-IOVHYD SYYOM JI18nd L1d3a 3 000-THy-0v9T- ¥ 00°8T 207 0¢/p-T¢/¢ mda T
BLEGIS09 TR0 we/80/50 ALTHOHLAY ¥3LYM ALNNOD 3T¥3 S$p0DITUI $7/80/50 SOSTO-H7
¥ SNOLLAT¥ISENS § $INA-1d3a I¥IH 3 000-ZEh-TTvE- ¥ 00°S§ ONOT38 OL SINA TVANNY T
o VE/RO/SD v2/30/s0 AIV VLW SA3IHD T4 0D 31¥3 080D3T¥3 $2/80/0 $0STO-bT
ER) 93BQ 93eQ dU3 YYD/381S

A 1SdL

uoL1dL43s30 3dAL 3123y unoddy abJeyd  Junouy

uoLadLadsag wedz
3dAL 0d 17v42U0)

JOpU3A 33 Od # 0d

t :ON 9bed

J3QUAN *0*d A8 BuLISLY Japuo dseydung WY 41T
IOYTIIA YILSYINYI p20Z ‘T Aew



065¥982000%
065+982000%
065¥982000%

£0 998060¢

6£686£29TT

92€L9%

¥207/8/5

196£50TY

7202/8/¢

00-0865855
00-086585S

p20T 1I¥dvV
#Z07 Tydv
p202 Iydy

100°TE0662YS

¥2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50
¥2/0T/50 $2/01/50
P2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50

¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

¥2/0T/S0 ¥2/01/50

b2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

Y2/ST0 ¥2/ST/H0

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

o

o

o

o

[ - 4

INOHdIT3L - SIDTAYIS AFAVHS 3
INOHITIL - TTVH JHId ONI HLYON 3
INOHdIT3L - SNHOM JI78nd 1d3¢ 3

SVD - SIDIANY3S Q3¥VHS 3

S¥39vd IT YOLINOW-1d30 3I4 3

STYIYILVA ONIVISONYT JONYNILNIVIW-SHYUVA 3

SYIAWIN/AUVLIUIIS JdH-DAS 40¥d-1SIQ LSTH 3

SY008 MY - FDILSNC I9VTIIA 3

SYIWIN/AYYLIHIIS IdH-DAS 40¥d-1SI0 LSIH 3

SYIVd3¥ - SHYOM DI78nd Ld3a 3
INIVW S¥9/Q1INg-39¥D SY¥OM DI18Nd 1d3Q 3

INIVd B ST001-INIVW S1334LS 3
SYIVAIY - SHYOM JI78nd Ld3d 3
INIVW SQY9/QTINE-3D¥H SHIOM DIT8Nd L1d3Q 3

INIVW SQYD/QTING-3949 SHYOM DI18nd Ld3g 3

000-6€¥-0291-
000-6¢¥-T291-
000-TEP-0¥9T-

000-0v¥-0291-

00¥-092-TtH¢-

000-S€y-0TTL-

000-v€¥-0252-

000-607-0TTT-

000-¥EP-025L-

000-£Sy-0¥9T-
000-0S¥-0¢91-

000-6T¥-0TTS-
000-£5p-0v9T-
000-0S¥-0t91-

000-0S¥-0¥9T-

vV T6'T9

197204

19°¢L¢ PZ07 AW GNOTD VATLXINDV §
00705 £20T AVW GNOTY VAILX3INRAY ¢
00°08¢ P20 AVW 0NOTD VATLXINGAY T

NI "YALLXIN SOOILXN $2/0T/S0 £2ST0-b2

157986 v20L/T/4-40/TT/E i T
TANd TYNOILYN STOOILYN $2/20/S0 2ZST0-v7

2L 8T 9.1 @3Dv1d3¥ SOIAVY Q41 11V T
NI SNOILNTOS VI0¥0L0W SOOYOLOW $2/0T/S0 TZ$T0-bZ

00°0¥S @8 NI SY3INV1d ¥04 1I0SdOL T
ISNOHNIIYD TIIHDLIW SOOHILIW +7/20/50 0Z5T0-+2
00" 91T NOSYIAUIVHD - ONILIW DdH T
¥3IAIW TIVHOIN SO0YIAIN +Z/80/50 6TSTO-42
00'99¢ $Y009 My1 T
INI 0D B Y3ONIA MIHLLVW SOQHLLYW $7/SZ/%0 815T0-+7
0006 YIWIW - ONTLIIW DdH T
0S3 *3433) HAISOC S0043SOC $2/80/S0 Z1STO-Z
20 ¥€9
T0°/1¢ "YIdW0D VOV SITTddNS WOOULSTY 7
T0° LT "YI1dW0D YAV SITTddNS WOOULSTY T
"ONI ¥3INID ATddnS YHI SOONSYUI $Z/80/50 9TSTO-#7
0L°TEL'T
90°9¢ p207 11¥dv S3ITTddNS/SLUvd §
19°9%8 $207 1I¥dY SITTddNS/SLUVd 7
18°9%8 bZ07 1T¥dY SITdNS/SLNvd T

SOAS 1I03¥) 10430 3WOH SOOCINOH $7/80/50 STSTO-H2

YOLVYINID MdQ S3ITddNS/SL¥vd T

AlddNS JT¥1373 NIVAINNOW N3J¥9 OTONIZWOD $2/80/S0 $ISTO-12

I L0AUT

91eQ 218Q U3 YYD/1E1S

pAYY  asdLd

uoLdra2saq adAL 122
9dAL 0d 3dBJ1U0)

nody abueyd Junowy

uoL3d143s3a wal
JOpUBA 93 Od #0d

¢ ‘0N dbed

JaqunN “0'd Ag ButasiL1 JapJo aseydang

AOVTIIA HILSYONVT

WY py:11
207 ‘41 Aew



6c20€8

90v6.d

£€6-v0£6-700T

£88-9658-£00T

£¥2-6572-500T
80¢-8¢€8-100T
L8S-2E6L-%00T
£0£-£29¢-T00T
9£9-8£00-100T
T9€-8€00-100T

818-67L1-T00T

720¢

ET156¢8

T180¢8

£610¢8

PETZ0E8/T6080¢8

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

v2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50

¥2/0T/50 $2/01/50

72/80/50 ¥7/80/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
#2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
$2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/90

¥2/20/%0 $2/20/50

¥2/60/50 v2/60/50

¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/%0

¥2/01/50 ¥2/0T/50

o o of o o o

Q3T4ISSYTONN-SIYL 3AVHS 3

INIWAINDI OL SYTVAIU-SYVd 3

JT¥LI3T3-SNYvd 3

JTULITI-SHNYvd 3

JTYITI-SMvd 3

$3SN3dX3 AVIHYIAD ISIW-SNOILVHEINAD 3
SIIVLAIDTY / SITYL Q8 - NOILYIIAILNYAS 3
OISAN -ONILHOIT AMH-ONILHOIT 133Y1S 3
JIYLIATI - SIDTAYIS QIUWHS 3

JTYL313 - TIVH FHI4 ANT HLYON 3

93SAN -ONILHOIT AMH-ONILHOIT L3IJULS 3

ONINIVYL1-1430 W14 3

NOLLONYLSNODIY B ONIAVA-INIVW S133YLS 3

NOILIMYLSNOIIY B ONIAVA-INIVW S1IULS 3

NOILONYLSNODIY B ONIAV-INIVW SL3FYLS 3

STYI¥ILYIW ONIOVAUNSIY-INIVW SLIFWLS 3

000-S/p-0058- ¥ (8°9¢T ONLINYTd YL -¥ILUVLS/XDOINIVHD T
N3QYYD ONY A¥3SANN IOTUHLYON SHQHLMON $7/80/S0 $€STO-vZ

000-£59-0TTL- ¥ 89° G YIMOW OVIS S1¥vd ¥IvdIy T

T SIS dINDI ¥ITINOY¥S VAVOVIN SOOVOVIN $7/0T/S0 £€STO-+2
000-9¢4-0TTL- VvV 2996 Wvd 1IvSavH ALIDT¥LDATI T
9 3 S AN STO0000N #2/0T/S0 Z€STO-42

000-8€v-0TTL- v 97°¢T ONILHOIT Mivd INIWONOW T

93 S A N STO0000N ¥2/80/S0 TESTO-¥2

§0°712°9
000-8¢y-0TTL- ¥ L7621 v 13 9L1LS/aW1/H43IN 9§
000-024-0852- ¥ £9°¥¢ W 13 9L1LS/aWT/HAIN §
000-8€-0T98- v 22°9¢ W 13 OLLS/aW1/H43N ¢
000-9€+-28TS- ¥ 76°968'+ W 13 OLILS/WT/HIN §
000-8€¥-029T- ¥ ¥¥"618 W 13 OLILS/gW1/HAIN ¢
000-8¢y-T29T- vV 90’ S6¢ W 13 9LILS/aWT/HIIN T

93 S AN STO0000N ¥2/80/50 0£STO-#2

000-8Ep-28TS- ¥ TE'SE ¥2/6/4-2/6/¢ AOVIIRIVILNDD T

93 S AN STOO00ON ¥2/20/50 62ST0-+7

000-04y-TT¥E- ¥V 00°S¢E SYT13ATY HYNIW3IS ONINIVYL T
S43IH) UI4 0 J0SSY SAN OTOSVSAN $2/60/S0 8ZST0-42

000-¥EP-0TTS- ¥ 9T°609 JT0HNYW/QAT8 Mdvd HOLVd LOH T
00 IWIT B 3NOLS ISTUMUILNI MIN SOONIMIN $2/70/50 LZSTO-12

000-Ep-0TIS- ¥V 9T°0Lk LIVHdSY T
00 IWIT B INOLS 3ISTYJYILNI MIN SOONIMIN +7/20/50 9ZSTO-+7

000-vE€F-0TTS- vV 99952 LIVHASY T
02 IWIT B 3INOLS 3ISTUAYILNI MIN SOONIMAN 7/20/S0 SZSTO-+Z

000-£T9-0TTS- vV  /8°8¢€6 S,# LIMDIL SNOTHVA LTVHdSY T
00 IWIT R 3NOLS ISTUAYILNI MIN SOONIMIN $Z/0T/S0 $2STO-4Z

3 LOAUT

3180 9180 U3 YYI/201S

pAY  3SdLd

uoL1dLadsaq adAL 190V
3dAL 0d 1deJIUO)

Un0dY abueyy  Junouy u011dL4I$30 wall

JOPUSA 3180 Od  # Od

9 0N abed

JaqUnN *0°d A9 BuLisLy JapJo Iseydund

JOVTTIA ¥ILSYONVT

WY y:T1
¥207 ‘4T Aew



£88T0T-42T

09.T0T-¥21

T-1625008¢6

1658

8vL(Td1

0yLT1d1

80N NOILVOIlddv

L ddv Avd

60Z-42s
60¢-¥2S

b202/0¢/4

72/80/50 ¥2/80/50

§2/20/50 $2/20/50

¥2/62/%0 ¥2/62/%0

b2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/80/50 $2/80/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/0T/50 ¥2/01/50

¥2/01/50 ¥2/01/50

¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50
b2/80/50 $2/80/50

¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50
v2/20/50 ¥2/20/50
¥2/20/50 ¥2/20/50

y2/0T/90 ¥2/01/50

¥ 3dId § STVIYILYW-IIVNIVYA 3

o

SWO0Y8/S13A0HS-¥3HLO-STYIYILVW-NYIT) 1S 3

Y INIWAINDI SSINAIYYAIYd ¥ILSYSIA 3

¥ S3ITddNS TYIYOLINVC-SYYOM 2178nd Ld3Q 3

¥ SUIVAY § JDONVNILNIVW-ONILHOT] L3FULS 3

4 SYUIVdIY § IDNVNIINIVW-ONILHOIT 1334LS 3

3 W3LSAS 3AVISYD B Wivd Q47 - SISNIAXT 3

Y W3LSAS 3AVOSYD B Mivd Q47 - $3ISNAAXT 3

[~

SIDIAY3S TYNLOVHLINOD-SHYOM DI19Nnd 1dG 3
SIIIAYIS TYALOVYINGD - SIITAYIS GIYVHS 3

o

4 INIVW SQUD B ONICTING - S3IDIAYIS QIUVHS 3
- SYIVdIY - TIVH 3UI4 NI HLYON 3
Y INIVW B ¥IVd3¥ INIWAINDI-SIDIANIS QIYVHS 3

L 1SAYL § 1800 “NNd ASNYL 9

000-+Tp-0v58- ¥ 00°2S

S, I0 % ST T

NS S¥IATING AVMNYHL S,NOLNVYDS SOONY¥DS +7/80/S0 S¥STO-vZ

000-¥14-0.18- ¥

ST"LES SYIATDIY T

NS SYIATING AVMANHL S,NOLNVIOS SOONVHIS $2/20/50 ¥9ST0-+2

000-00Z-066¢- v

000-¢0¥-0¥91- v

80°¥52'1 TIVLISNI INFWAINDI T
NI SNOLLYOINNWWOD YIVS SOODVIVS #2/62/%0 £4ST0-47

66°8T "OVA MdQ ¥3LII4 ¥ IdAL ¥VIDIY T

INTD ¥3NYITD WAMDVA ALID NIIND SOONIIND +2/80/S0 Z4STO-v2

000-9€y-281S- v
000-S€v-281S- ¥

TTT-00%-2250- H
"INI

TTT-00%-2250- H
"ONI

000-SEy-0¥9T- v
000-5¢4-0291- v

000-059-0291- v
000-05¥-T291- v

000-€59-029T- v

000-T90- L

79°85'T IONYNALIVW LHOT1 LS IVTIIA T
ONI ‘d¥9 LSNOD B ¥3MOd STOYIMOd $2/80/S0 THSTO-+?

6" L2y *1S ONIMOD NO ‘LIVW 197 'IS T
ONI ‘d¥9 LSNOD % ¥3MOd STOUIMOA ¥7/80/S0 OPSTO-vZ

0075861 b2/08/p MYHL ONTY SDAS Mavd 44 T
'SOAS NOTLDNULSNOD OINId SOOOLNIA $2/0T/50 6€STO-+Z

20°€89°07 TE/€ MUHL "ONJY SOAS Wivd 44 T
*SOAS NOLLOMYLSNOD OLNId SO00LNId ¥2/0T/SO 8€STO-42

82°78T'¢

00°0¢T "WY3HL 301440 MdQ/SYIVAIY 9w 7
82'750'¢ "WYIHL 3DI440 MdQ/SYIVAIY AW T
NI “TYDINVHDIW 3IST¥V SQOSIUVA $2/80/50 LESTO-HT
00°008‘T

00°009 H43N/MdQ/EWT * LIVW " INIAIY §
00°009 HA3IN/MdQ/WT *LIVW *INIAIYd 7
00009 H4IN/MAQ/SWT *LIVW *INIATU T

ONI “IVDINVHOIW 3ST¥Vd §00ST¥Vd $2/20/50 9ESTO-H7

§L'8.8'T $202/¢ $334/SINI4 IVTIIA T

NN IDILSAC-Y3TI0HLAWOD 3LYLS §O0ILYLS ¥2/0T/SO SESTO-b2

3ILOAUT

918Q 9180 JUI HYd/1038

PAYY  1SdLd

uoL3diadseq adAL 130y
3AL 0d 10BJ2U0)

unoddy abueyd

unouy uoL1dLJasa@ W1
JOPUBA  31eQ 0d # 0d

. ‘ON 3bed

J3qunN *0'd Ag BuLIsLI JapJo Iseydung

JOVTTIA ¥ILSYONVI

WY pp.T1
p207 ‘4T Aew



10000-££2TT02kE
10000-2£2TT0ZvE
10000-2£2TT02vE
10000-2£2TT02vE
10000-2£2TTOZ¥E
10000-££2TT0ZvE
10000-££TT02vE
10000-L7TTOTvE
10000-2£ZTT0ZvE

8088

96088

9768E£8/8.T

86607058

TSTT/€8TT
TSTT/€8T1
TSTT/E9T1
TSTT/E8TT

b202/8/$

886951009

¥20¢

Y2/€T/50 ¥2/€1/50
YU/ET/50 ¥2/€T/90
PZ/ET1/90 $2/€1/50
Y2/ET/50 ¥T/€1/50
P2/E1/50 v2/€T/50
YT/ET/S0 $T/ET/S0
YT/ET/S0 $1/ET/50
bZ/ET/S0 vT/€T/50
YT/ET/50 2/€1/50

¥2/80/50 $2/80/50

¥2/20/%0 ¥2/20/50

y2/01/50 %2/01/50

$2/0T/50 $2/01/50

y2/01/50 $2/01/50
b2/01/50 ¥2/01/50
¥Z/01/50 ¥2/01/50
¥2/01/50 ¥2/01/50

b2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

$2/80/50 ¥2/80/50

¥2/60/50 ¥2/60/50

[ - - - A -

o o o o<

o

INOHd T733-39VHYD SYHOM DI7and Ld3g 3
Q3IJISSYIONN-SIFUL 3QVHS 3

INOHd T73)-NOIL1D3dSNI HNIQTING 3

QYYD VIV B Hd ITTH0W-d3ud ¥ILSVSIQ 3
INOHd 173D - ¥UNSYIYL IONVNIL 3
S3SN3dX3 QVIHY3A0 JSIW-SNOILVYEITI) 3
INOHd 113D - ¥OAVW 3AILMDIXI 3

INOHd 1730 - SIILSMUL 40 Quvod 3

SNY1d ¥LYQ / SINOHd 113D - 1d30 3MI4 3

$31ddNS 3DI440-1OTYLSIQ ITHOLSIH 3

Y3IHL0-STIVIHILYW-SHUVd 3

SNOTLdTHISENS § SInG-L1d43a 14 3

$X008 MY - MV1 3

INIWAINDI-SIAS GUVHS 3
HD3L B OANI/O0¥d L¥3W 03¥-1d3Q 3YId 3

TUYMLI0S ¥ILNAWOD-NOILVYLSININGY SLITYLS 3
SLIVHINGD INIVW JAS - ¥I¥NSYIYL IDNVNIS 3

SYIGWIN/AUYLIUDIS DdH-DAS J0¥d-1SIQ LSTH 3

S317ddNS 3DT440-NOTLYYLSINIWNAY S13ITULS 3

SNOILAT¥ISENS B SINa-1d3q ¥I4 3

000-S8%-0¥9T-
000-52t-0958-
000-58Y-686¢-
000-9.-066¢ -
000-S8%-9Z¢T-
000-02¥-0552-
000-58¢-0TZT-
000-58¥-0T0T-
000-58¥-TT¥e-

< L L <L L L <L LT

000-T0¥-0252- ¥

000-¥Tp-0TTL- ¥

000-Z€y-TTpE- ¥

000-60v-02vT- ¥

000-002-0791-
000-LLy-TT¥E-

[FARY ¥207 AVW SINOHd 6
86°S. 207 AYW SINOHd §
06"/t #207 AVW SINOHd /
12°69 207 AW SINOHd 9
wie 207 AW SINOHd §
AARY #2027 AYW SINOHd +
e 207 AVW SINOHd ¢
988y #2027 AVW SINOHd 7
01§ 207 AW SINOHd T
SSITIYIM NOZIY3A OTOZIMIA $2/ST/S0 #SS10-b7
00°0L HINOW NOTLVAY3SI¥d IMDV1d “SIH T
"ONI SQUVMY NILYVW ANOL SOOWANOL $7/80/50 §SSTO-+2
05"y INDYId AVO HOSUY $207 T
"INI SQYYMY NIL¥VW ANOL SOOWANOL +2/20/50 2SSTO-¥2
05'¢ @47 ¥04 SINUVHD 110L T
TIVW A8 STI0L S00STI0L $Z/0T/SO TSSTO-v2
Wyt *dT¥ISANS/IUVMLAOS $207 TI¥dY T
INIWAYA LSIM - SYILNIY NOSWOHL SOOSWOHL $Z/0T/S0 0SSTO-+2
00°959"/
00°T¥9'T SNOILVINISTHd 81 AL ON7 ¢
00'€59°T G9E OWDIW T+ IIUOY LIVW Qd §
00°922'1 SSINISNG JISYE 140SOUIIW Mda 7
00" #ET‘E FONVNILIVW YHOMLIN ¥3LNdWOD T

<
<
ooo-mo¢-OHOm-<
002-S€p-SZET- ¥

000-vEp-025L- ¥
000-20%-0105- ¥

000-2Ey-TT¥E- v

71 dSW LINHDIL STONKDAL $2/0T/50 6¥STO-47

00°06 Y3TWIW - ONILIIW DdH T
ANYN. “MIIVYEINOLS 0TOINOLS $2/80/50 8¥STO-H2

99°08 S3TTddNS 3DI440 Mda T
LI03¥) SSINISNE SITdVLS (TOTVLS $7/80/50 LpSTO-bZ

00°ST ONOT32 OL S3INA TWNNNY T

J3INNTOA 30 0SSV NYILSIMHLAOS QTOHLNOS $2/60/50 9vSTO-+Z

L0AUT

818 938Q U3 Y/183S

PAY  3SULd

uoL3dLIsaq adAL 300y
3dAL 0d 30vJ3U0)

unoday abuey)

Junoury covunwLUmwo U1
JOPUSA 3180 04  # Od

g :ON 3bed

JOqUNN *0°d Ag BuLIsL] JapJo aseydund

DVTTIA YILSYONVT

W by 11
207 ‘y1 Aew



0070

:JUNOWY PLOA [B30L

£€°2T'81E +unowy 3s.7

LBI0L SET

‘SURIT 3ULT "0°d |BIOL T6  :SU3PJO ISEYRUNG |BI0L

SNOTYVA 2/62/%0 ¥2/62/40 ¥ WY¥D0Yd NOTINIL3Y/INIWLINYIFY-1430 F¥I4 3 000-0p¥-TTHE- ¥V £€6/8 SISVHOUNG WYHD0¥d QuvM3y T
dNO¥D ALIAVS JIT8Nd ¥IWLIM SOQIWLIM $2/62/%0 £95TO-p7
SNOTAVA Y2/62/40 v2/62/%0 ¥ WYHD0Yd NOTLN3LIY/INIWLINYDIY-1d30 F¥I4 3 000-0vy-TThE- ¥ 85°T67 SISYHDUNd WYHO0¥d QuvMIy T
dOY3 ALIVS DI18Nd YINLIM SOOINLIM $2/67/b0 29ST0-b7
L04S9PANT ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 4 WYH90¥d NOILNILIH/INIWLINNDIY-1dIq F¥I4 3 000-0vb-TT¥E- v §9°/8 Van¥ °v + NOSNISO0Y'( T
dNOY¥D AL3YS JI8Nd ¥IWLIM SOOINLIM $7/80/50 TOSTO-b
¥T£00696 2/90/50 #2/90/50 L 1I0 B INIT0SYD-1d30 F¥I4 3 000-9Ty-TTvE- ¥ €€ 59S £3NS3Y + "HIA J3THD ¥04 1304 T
ANVE XM QTOVEXIM $2/90/50 09ST0-47
$202/8/5 $2/80/50 $2/80/50 ¥ SYIWIN/AYYLINDIS JdH-DAS 40¥d-1SIO LSTH 3 000-¥€p~0252- ¥ 00°06 Y3GWIN ILYNHALTY - DcH T
WIN ‘STIIM SZ0ST13M $2/30/50 655T0-b7
p807E ¥2/01/50 #2/01/50 L ONTYIINIINT - SIILSNYL 40 Quvod 3 006-S€¥-0TOT- v 05"9¢0°0T YT07/62/% MEHL SOAS T
Jd 'SILVIIOSSY B LLOHDS WM SOOHDSWM $7/0T/0 8SSTO-57
LTS T-HTTHE6b ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 ¥ YS04SIQ-SOAS LIVHLNOD-39VENYD B 35NJ3Y 3 000-v€p-09T8- ¥ £5°86S I¥dY ¥3LSAWNA QUVA § MdQ/aWT T
NI SIDTAYIS ILVAOAU0D WM SOQMODMM $2/80/50 /SSTO-bZ
$202/91/5 Y2/E1/50 ¥2/€1/50 ¥ TIAVEL B SISNIXF - OAWW IATLMIXI 3 000-0.y-0TZT- ¥ 00°S¢ 'LLY VONY 7 - ONIL33W AVK |
NOLLYIJOSSY STVII4H0 IWTIIA OTOVINIA $2/£1/50 95ST0-b7
§1°8¢L
26495000080¢ ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 ¥ SDIAYES TVALIVIINGD-SYIMIS AUVLINYS 3 000-S£7-0718- 9 SL°441 b{ T4V JUVMLA0S 13374 Mda §
2649000080€ ¥2/80/50 #2/80/50 L SYIHLO AR TWAOWIY YINOD-S3TYL 3JAVHS 3 000-9.p-0958- ¥ §° /4T PT T4dY UVMLA0S L3374 MdQ ¢
26195000080¢ ¥2/80/50 $2/30/50 ¥ ¥3HLO-STYTHILWW-SHIYd 3 000-+TH-0TTZ- ¥ L' 24T PZ L4V JYYMLI0S L3TT4 MdQ §
26595000080 ¥2/80/50 2/30/50 ¥ SIDIAYIS TYNLOVALNOD-TVAOWIY MONS 3 000-0€7-261S- v §2° /4T PZ TIHAY 3YVMLA0S 13314 MdQ 7
7£495000080¢ ¥2/80/50 ¥2/80/50 ¥ LOVAINOD INIVH SIDTAYIS-INIVW SLIRULS 3 000-S¢€v-0TTS- ¥ §2° 41 b TV JWVMLA0S 13374 Mda T
NOZI¥3A STOZI¥IA ¥2/80/50 SSSTO-+2
56°80.
T0000-££2TT07¥S YT/ET/S0 $2/51/50 ¥ NOHd TT3D-NOILVYLSINIAGY 3 000-58v-ST18- 9 667LE p20¢ AVW S3INOHd (T
panuLIu0) SSITIYIM NOZI¥3A OTOZI¥IA $2/ET/S0 $SSTO-42
3JL0AUT a1eq 91Bq 91BQ U3 WY/ IS uoL3dLudsag adAL 300y Junoday abuey) Junowy uoL1d1ads3q wedx
PLOAMY  pAdY  3sdLd AL 0d  13eJIU0) JODUBA 31BQ Od  # Od
J3qUNN *0°d A9 BuLIsLT JapJo aseydung WY biTT
6 :ON abed

FOVTTIA ¥ILSYONYT

207 ‘4T Aew



£6° 7928

If SL8UE'T 00°0 8S'£98'9T¢ +Spund ||1v 40 [eloL
SLQLE'T §L°8L¢'T 000 00°0 1y
20°8¢S 0y 00°0 00°0 20°9¢S op H-¥
bL8T 00°0 00°0 vL798T 9y
18°6£1'9/2 00°0 000 18°6£1°9/7 V-¥
[e10L [e30L 1/9 [B0L BnusAs3y  |ejoL puadx3 pun4 uoLadLJIsaq pung

puni-Jeas Aq sqeloL

TT :0N abeq

JOQUNN *0"d A8 BuLlsLY JapJo dseydund
FOVITIA Y3LSYONY]

WY #9:1T
¥207 ‘9T Aew



May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE
12:07 pM Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Page No: 1

Batch Id: FICA Batch Date: 04/26/24 Batch Type: Recurring

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description

A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 4/26/2024 5,506.41 il
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH

G -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 4/26/2024 462.52 2

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 cASH



May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 2

12:07 P Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Qut Cancel Encumbrances
A 5,506.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G 462.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Of A1l Funds: 5,968.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 2 5,968.93

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YTD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 2

There are NO errors in this listing.




May 13, 2024
12:20 M

LANCASTER VILLAGE
Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Page No: 1

Batch Id: PAYROLL Batch Date: 04/26/24

Batch Type: Recurring

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -1010-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 1,541.98 1
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1110-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 2,367.38 2
VILLAGE JUSTICE - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1210-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 678.47 3
EXECUTIVE MAYOR - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1325-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 7,719.94 4
FINANCE TREASURER - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1420-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 1,965.88 5
LAW - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1620-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 302.60 b
SHARED SERVICES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1621-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 1,032.42 7
NORTH END FIRE HALL - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 14,610.42 8
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -3411-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 343.51 10
FIRE DEPARTMENT - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -3620-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 1
SAFETY INSPECTION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -3989-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 12
BUILDING INSP-PERSONAL SVCS-CODE ENFCMT
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -3990-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 136.26 13
DISASTER PREPAREDNESS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
168.20 14

A -4020-100-000 Expenditure

REGISTRAR VITAL STATS-PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

cr: A -200-000 CASH



May 13, 2024
12:20 P

LANCASTER VILLAGE
Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Page No: 2

Account No. Type
Account Description

Entry Description

Amount

Tracking Id Seq

A -5010-100-000 Expenditure
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SVCS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -5110-100-000 Expenditure
STREETS MAINT-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -5132-100-000 Expenditure
SNOW REMOVAL-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7110-100-000 Expenditure
PARKS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Dh: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -7550-100-000 Expenditure
CELEBRATIONS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7550-102-000 Expenditure
DPW - Overtime
Db: A -200-000 CASH
A -7550-103-000 Expenditure
DPW - Regular Time
Db: A -200-000 CASH
A -8020-100-000 Expenditure
PLANNING-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -8160-100-000 Expenditure
REFUSE & GARBAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
pb: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -8170-100-000 Expenditure
STREET CLEANING-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -8540-100-000 Expenditure
DRAINAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
Dh: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -8560-100-000 Expenditure
SHADE TREES-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -8989-100-000 Expenditure
ECONOMIC DEV-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

Payrol1 charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

cr: A -200-000 CASH

Payrol1 charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payrol] charges for paydate 4/26/2024

6,917.35

9,454.49

651.32

6,357.93

855.52

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

cr: A -200-000 CaSH

Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

72.52

6,253.82

1,936.03

859.37

2,047.98

83.38

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

P&

26

27



Page No: 3

May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE
12:20 PM Expenditure Entry Verification Listing
Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seg
Account Description
A -9060-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 846.83- 28
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOSPITAL & MEDICAL INS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5010-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 29
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
pb: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5132-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 30
SNOW REMOVAL-MEAL ALLOWANCES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
G -8115-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 2,653.97 31
ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Dh: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8120-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 3,392.04 32
SANITARY SEWERS-PERSONAL SERVICES
pb: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8115-405-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 33
ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
Db: G -200-000 CASH Cr: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -3120-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 2,976.00 35
POLICE-PERSONAL SVCS-CROSSING GUARDS
pb: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1640-403-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 36
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS - UNIFORMS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 12.66 37
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 38
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 39
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 4/26/2024 0.00 40
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
2,480.92 41

A -8090-100-000 Expenditure
ENVIRONMENTAL - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

WARNING: This account would have a negative balance: A -1210-100-000. Balance would be: 1,291.70-.

payrol1 charges for paydate 3/29/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH



page No: 5

May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE

12:20 M Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer out Cancel Encumbrances
A 70,979.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 6,046.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Of A1l Funds: 77,025.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 39 77,025.53

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 39

There are warnings in this listing, but can proceed with update.

please note that batch lines with zero amounts will not be updated.




May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE
12:22 pu Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Page No: 1

Batch Id: FICA Batch Date: 05/10/24 Batch Type: Recurring

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description

A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 5/10/2024 5,538.23 1
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH

G -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Accrued FICA paydate 5/10/2024 393.51 2
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH

WARNING: This account would have a negative balance: A -9030-800-000. Balance would be: 932.58-.

WARNING: Control Acct would have a negative balance but error was overridden: A -9030-800-000. Balance would be: 932.58-.



May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 2

12:22 PM Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Qut Cancel Encumbrances
A 5,538.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G 393.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total O A1l Funds: 5,931.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 2 5,931.74

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YTD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 2

There are warnings in this Tisting, but can proceed with update.




May 13, 2024
12:35 PM

LANCASTER VILLAGE

Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

page No: 1

Batch Id: PAYROLL  Batch Date: 05/10/24

Batch Type: Recurring

Account No. Type
Account Description

Entry Description

Amount

Tracking Id Seq

A -1010-100-000 Expenditure
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1110-100-000 Expenditure
VILLAGE JUSTICE - PERSONAL SERVICES
pb: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1210-100-000 Expenditure
EXECUTIVE MAYOR - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1325-100-000 Expenditure
FINANCE TREASURER - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1420-100-000 Expenditure
LAW - PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1620-100-000 Expenditure
SHARED SERVICES - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1621-100-000 Expenditure

NORTH END FIRE HALL - PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -1640-100-000 Expenditure
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -3411-100-000 Expenditure
FIRE DEPARTMENT - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -3620-100-000 Expenditure
SAFETY INSPECTION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A ~200-000 CASH

A -3989-100-000 Expenditure

BUILDING INSP-PERSONAL SVCS-CODE ENFCMT

Db: A -200-000 CASH

A -3990-100-000 Expenditure

DISASTER PREPAREDNESS-PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

A -4020-100-000 Expenditure

REGISTRAR VITAL STATS-PERSONAL SERVICES

Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payrol1l charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024
Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH
payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

1,541.98

2,392.88

678.47

6,163.96

1,965.88

499,50

110.20

11,872.22

229.01

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

0.00

Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payrol1 charges for paydate 5/10/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024

Cr: A -200-000 CASH

136.26

168.20

10

1

12

13

14



May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE
12:35 pM Expenditure Entry verification Listing
Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -5010-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 6,955.34 15
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SVCS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -5110-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 12,582.44 16
STREETS MAINT-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -5132-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 17
SNOW REMOVAL-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7110-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 6,658.51 18
PARKS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -7550-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 414,89 19
CELEBRATIONS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -7550-102-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 20
DPW - Overtime
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -7550-103-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 21
DPW - Regular Time
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -8020-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 712.52 22
PLANNING-PERSONAL SERVICES
pb: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8160-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 8,473.98 23
REFUSE & GARBAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8170-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 1,784.51 24
STREET CLEANING-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -B540-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 1,499.60 25
DRAINAGE-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -8560-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 2,294.46 26
SHADE TREES-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
27

A -8989-100-000 Expenditure
ECONOMIC DEV-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 83.38
Cr: A -200-000 CASH



May 13, 2024

LANCASTER VILLAGE

Page No: 3

12:35 P Expenditure Entry Verification Listing
Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seq
Account Description
A -9060-800-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 779.44- 28
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOSPITAL & MEDICAL INS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5010-405-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 29
STREETS ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -5132-405-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 30
SNOW REMOVAL-MEAL ALLOWANCES
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
G -8115-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 2,626.31 31
ADMINISTRATION-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8120-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 2,517.65 32
SANITARY SEWERS-PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: G -200-000 CASH
G -8115-405-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 33
ADMINISTRATION-MEAL ALLOWANCE
Db: G -200-000 CASH Cr: G -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -3120-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 3,336.00 35
POLICE-PERSONAL SVCS-CROSSING GUARDS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH
A -1640-403-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 36
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS - UNIFORMS
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 37
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -9030-800-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 38
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-SOCIAL SECURITY
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 39
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -1640-100-000 Expenditure Payroll charges for paydate 5/10/2024 0.00 40
DEPT PUBLIC WORKS -PERSONAL SERVICE
Db: A -200-000 CASH Cr: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL
A -8090-100-000 Expenditure  Payroll charges for paydate 3/29/2024 2,480.92 41

ENVIRONMENTAL - PERSONAL SERVICES
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL

WARNING: This account would have a negative balance: A -1210-100-000. Balance would be: 1,970.17-.

Cr: A -200-000 CASH



May 13, 2024

LANCASTER VILLAGE

page No: 5

12:35 M Expenditure Entry Verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer out Cancel Encumbrances
A 71,615.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
G 5,143.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Of A1 Funds: 76,759.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: 39 76,759.63

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Qut: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YTD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 39

There are warnings in this listing, but can proceed with update.

Please note that batch 1ines with zero amounts will not be updated.




May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 1
12:05 pM Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Batch Id: TASC Batch pate: 05/13/24 Batch Type: Standard

Account No. Type Entry Description Amount Tracking Id Seg

Account Description

A -9060-800-000 Expenditure  HRA Transcations APRIL 2024 6,053.32

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOSPITAL & MEDICAL INS
Db: A -522-000 EXPENDITURE CONTROL Cr: A -200-000 CASH



May 13, 2024 LANCASTER VILLAGE Page No: 2

12:05 P Expenditure Entry verification Listing

Fund Description Fund Expenditures  Reimbursements Transfer In Transfer Qut Cancel Encumbrances

A 6,053.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Of A1l Funds: 6,053.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Entries Amount

Expenditures: il 6,053.32

Reimbursements: 0 0.00

Transfer In: 0 0.00

Transfer Out: 0 0.00

Cancel: 0 0.00

Encumbrance: 0 0.00

YTD 1099: 0 0.00

Total: 1

There are NO errors in this Tisting.




0070 ‘IUNOWY PLOA (BIOL  96'86/°77 :3unouy 1SLY [B3OL 7 ‘SWBII JULT *0°d [BIOL T :SJUBPJO BSRYIING [BIOL

96°86.' 72
¥202 AVH v2/92/%0 $2/92/%0 4 SNI WOIQIW ® TYLIASOH-LT43NIT 3IA0TdNI 3 000-008-0906- 5 €¥'€eL'T ¥207 AVW JONVENSNI HLIVAH 7
¥207 AW ¥2/92/%0 $2/92/40 4 SNI WOIQ3W B WLIdSOH-SLIAINIE IIA0TAWT 3 000-008-0906- ¥ €4°5.0'T2 ¥207 AVH 3ONVANSNI HLTV3AH T

ANMSEDE UVWHOIH SOOWHOTH $2/97/%0 ZL¥T0-42
3IL0AUT 31eq 91BQ 91BQ U3 NYD/ILIS uoLdiidsag adAL 120y unoddy abuey) qunowy UoL1dLadS3q Wall
PLOAMYD  pAdY 1Sl 3dAL 0d 19RJIU0D JOPUBA 3180 Od  # Od
158701 3sJl4 :abuey pI ydleg pAdy

BULT JBIA JOLUd SURAW 4 N :A[UQ JBdA JOLdd A :pa1abpng-uoN apnjour LLY :SJOpudA

A IUBXI A LJOYI0 A G3IBIS A ipig PZ/TE/50 01 3saLd :abuey 3leq Ju3 1541y SO10N WAII BULT INOYILM |LBI3Q :1ew.Iod
N AdY N CplaH A ipAY 1587 01 15414 :2buey
N :PLOA N :pled N :uado LLv :904L '0d

JoqunN "0°d Ag BuLlSLY JapJo aseydung

T 10N 3feq OVIITA YILSYINY

WY 00:TT
202 '97 | Ludy



96°86/'7C 00°0 00°0 96°86/°22 sSpund ||V JO [eloL

eU'T 00°0 00°0 £t -

£9°640'T2 00°0 00°0 £6°620'12 v-p

{eioL [e10L 1/9 (P01 anudAly  [e10L puadx3 pun4 uoL1dLaIssg pund

pund-JesA Aq sjejoL

J3qUAN *0°d A9 BuLisLT JapJo aseydung

{ ‘0N dbeq JOVTIIA HILSYINVT

WY 00:TT
$207 ‘97 | Lady



LISTED CORRESPONDENCE May 28, 2024

1 st 2 nd
Motion  Motion

1. Correspondence from the Town of Lancaster Building Department providing a report of
building permit applications, inspections, and open complaints that were filed for properties
| within the Village of Lancaster from May 2, 2024 — May 17, 2024.

]

|

2. Conééﬁadence from Gavin O’Brien, 175% Anniversary Committee, providing a Special
Events Application for a Kids Night in the Park event to be held on Monday, July 1, 2024,
from 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. at Cayuga Creek Park.

CACTION = | Rec File
JReforso: G
3. ' Correspondence from Kara Stock, Library Director, providing the 2023 Annual Report for
the Lancaster Public Library and inviting Village officials to attend upcoming summer
7 events at the library.
ACTION - | Recile

4, ‘ Correspondence from Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority Director of Aviation

. providing notice that the second and final phase of the full reconstruction of the main

| runway at the Buffalo Niagara International Airport will take place this summer and there
| will be another temporary shift in air traffic patterns that may affect residents. _

TACTION S | ReesFile [
Reforto:
5. | 4édn-espgrfdence from IZatayh Moore, DPW Clerk _"l“yb_ist, requesting to carry over one (1)
week (40 hours) of vacation time into the 2024-2025 fiscal year and to sell back one (1)
week (40 hours) of vacation time due to the unexpected medical leave of another office
| o employee at the Department of Public Works during the past year.
PACTIoN - RecFile
| | Referao:
6. - M_Corresbc_n;c-lence from DPW >§up_c:1tintendent Wéyne Cisco réaﬁé'sriﬂlgﬂ to carry over five (5)
. 4. ... days(40 hours) of vacation time into the 2024-2025 fiscal year. _
ACTION = Ree Fil o )
Rekr oz e R - S o B
7 Vc@é@&dénég from Jessica A. Kulpit providing her resignation from the position of
Village Prosecutor / Deputy Village Attorney for personal and professional reasons effective
| immediately upon the appointment of a replacement individual to this position. ]
ACTION = | RecFile
~ V Referewo: | . e e o
8 Correspondence from Daniel Rinow providing his resignation from the position of X&ihg
. Village Justice for personal reasons effective 30 days from his letter dated May 23, 2024.

U RecFile
I

|

Last Updated: 5/24/2024 10:01 AM



LISTED CORRESPONDENCE May 28. 2024

9. Correspondence from Thomas J. Trzepacz, Performance Advantage Company, inviting
Village officials to the 2™ Annual New York State Home Day to celebrate local fire services
on Wednesday, May 29, 2024, from 10:00 a.m. to 12 noon at AMDOR’s facility in

Lancaster.
10.
11.
12.
13. \
ACTION - | ReeFite
L Refero: __; i
) o
14.
ACTION - Ree File
15.
ACTION

Page 2 Last Updated: 5/24/2024 10:01 AM



| %{2?!2014{

VILLAGE COVER SHEET

MAY 20, 2024 BOARD MEETING
PERMITS ISSUED 23



VILLAGE PERMIT TOTAL

ERECT FENCE

INSTALL ROOF

DEMOLITION

DUMPSTER

ERECT GARAGE

ERECT SHED

INSTALL POOL

INSTALL RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING
ERECT RESIDENTIAL ALT/ADD
ERECT COMMERCIAL ADD/ALT

TOTAL PERMITS FOR THE VILLAGE

N W =t = D) = W) = W

o
(78]



Gary Galbreath

Homer Crafters LLC
Morelli Remodeling Inc.
Besroi Construction
Besroi Construction
Joseph Gill

Georgiann Puskar
Heather English

Stellar Roofing

J.H. Trucking & Excavating
John English

Cellino Plumbing Inc.
Michael Setlock

Brian Juda

Straightline Fencing
Jonathan Ryan Poorman
Thomas Larkin

155 Lake Avenue LLC
R4DPL Delaware Corp.
Buffalo RC LLC

Alden Pools & Play LLC
Isteak Ahmed

Nicole Bessong

61 Robert Dr.

78 Cotton St.

988 Irwinwood Rd.

2 Lakeside Cres.

130 Irwinwood Rd.

58 Burwell Ave.
31 Harvey Dr.
209 Aurora St.
22 St. John St.
62 Benson

209 Aurora St.

267 Lake Ave.

20 Sherborne Ave.

70 Fairfield Ave.
76 Banner Ave.
206 Aurora St.
72 Wayne St.
155 Lake Ave.

6 W Main St.
60 Lake Ave.
5639 Broadway

134 Sawyer Ave.

1890 Como Park Blvd.

Residential Alt
Garage

Residential Alt

Roof

Roof

Fence

Dumpster

Dumpster

Roof

Demo rear bldg
Residential Alt.
Residential Plumbing
Fence

Shed

Fence

Fence

Fence

Commercial Add/Alt
Commercial Add/Alt
Roof

Pool

Dumpster

Shed



sseq

SuoIyosty He as() [eroads  $207/20/50 I31se0URTY JO 3TeY[IA

1§ Aemprorg

678401

sy

J0jd3dsuy adiy, ANuq Pue) Asmiy

SUOTGOST HEN UOPUIY HqOY ' TOPRRYIURIE SIRIDTHSION0d WeAIGSBIoATY "I, WRI[iA) ‘Siopadsu]
ZOZ/L1/SO 27T PUT $207/20/SO ‘18 WEIS

10ddy suondadsuy

19)5BOUE T JO UMO],

S53Ippy

Jayyuapy



Complaint By Date

Complaint# Location Identifier Complaint Type Status Owner Complainant
Open Date: 05/06/24
2024-0263 43 Linden Ave 115.08-1-28 Exterior Property Open Justin Kelly
Maint
2024-0266 190 Aurora St 115.07-10-28 Misc Open Kevin Roth Marciano Samuel
& W Mary
2024-0267 87 Holland Ave 104.75-2-5 Exterior Property Open Laurel Wantuch
Maint
Open Date: 05/06/24 Total #: 3
Open Date: 05/08/24
2024-0273 97 Holland Ave 104.75-2-1 Exterior Property Open Richard Rogers
Maint
2024-0274 93 Holland Ave 104.75-2-2 Exterior Property Open DTP2 Holding,
Maing LLC
Open Date: 05/08/24 Total #: 2
Open Date: 05/09/24
2024-0279 155 Lake Ave 115.08-1-9 Work w/out Permit  Open 155 Lake Avenue
LLC
Open Date: 05/09/24 Total #: 1
Open Date: 05/10/24
2024-0283 24 Livingston St 104.16-9-10 Exterior Property Open Carrie Smith Timothy Hartnett
Maint
2024-0291 Papa's Pizza Oven, 115.08-1-9 Misc Open
155 Lake Ave
Open Date: 05/10/24 Total #: 2
Open Date: 05/13/24
2024-0286 59 Caswell St 104.15-15-7 Exterior Property Open Rache! Mays Kenneth
Maint Ostrowski
Open Date: 05/13/24 Total #: 1
Open Date: 05/14/24
2024-0292 145 Hinchey Ave 104.11-1-16 Trash/Rubbish Open Kevin Harman
2024-0296 57 Caswell St 104.15-15-6 Work w/out Permit  Open James Moon
2024-0298 105 Irwinwood Rd  115.07-1-20 High Grass/Weeds  Open James Roncone
Open Date: 05/14/24 Total#: 3
Open Date: 05/15/24
2024-0301 90 Laverack Ave 104.15-16-3 High Grass/Weeds  Open Gerald Olsen Gail Thompson
2024-0302 186 Central Ave 104.15-8-12 Exterior Property Open Mohammed Noor
Maint Elahi
Open Date: 05/15/24 Total #: 2
Open Date: 05/16/24
2024-0303 49 School St 104.75-5-27.1 High Grass/Weeds Open Severyn
Development,
Inc.
2024-0304 100 Pardee Ave 115.36-1-11 High Grass/Weeds Open Virginia Nowak
2024-0307 27 Roosevelt Ave  115.11-20-24 Exterior Property Open Karen
Maint Krzyzykowski

Generated By: BethCook On: 05/17/2024 At: 3:50 PM

Page 1 of 2



Complaint By Date

Complaint# Location Identifier Complaint Type Status Owner Complainant
Open Date: 05/16/24 Total #: 3

Open Date: 05/17/24

2024-0308 5294 Broadway St 104.19-3-1 Exterior Property Open Duane Redlinski
Maint

2024-0309 5316 Broadway St  104.19-3-24 Exterior Property Open Joshua Barnett
Maint

2024-0310 5336 Broadway St 104.19-3-19 Exterior Property Open Jerry Synrod
Maint

2024-0311 5386 Broadway St 104.82-1-13 Exterior Property Open Aftercare Mgmt.
Maint Services LLC

2024-0312 60 Waltham Ave 115.12-6-18.2 Exterior Property Open 367 Green Acres,
Maint LLC

2024-0313 76 1st Ave 115.11-13-16 Exterior Property Open Kelly Burr
Maint

2024-0314 21 Brandel Ave 104.16-7-19 Interior Property Open Travis Copece
Maint

2024-0315 160 Lake Ave 115.08-2-4 Exterior Property Open Martin Bortain
Maint

2024-0316 5564 Broadway St 104.83-4-20 Exterior Property Open 1877 Casa
Maint Blanca LLC

2024-0317 106 Laverack Ave  104.15-17-9 Fire Call Out Open Michael Spencer

2024-0319 90 Laverack Ave 104.15-16-3 High Grass/Weeds  Open Gerald Olsen

Open Date: 05/17/24 Total #: 11
Open Date: 10/22/01
2017-00719 12 Cayuga Ave 115.26-3-15 Work w/out Permit  Closed Heinl Robert &
W Mika

Generated By: BethCook On: 05/17/2024 At: 3:50 PM

Open Date: 10/22/01 Total #: 1

Grand Total: 29

Page 2 of 2



Village of Lancaster, New York

Village Code Chapter 285 Special Events Appllcat;lpn

Municipal Building » 5423 Broadway ¢ Lancaster, NY 14086 - (716) 683-2105 L
O 5@ IeE

Pursuant to §285-2 of the Village Code, a special event is an event 1) proposed to be held on: publlc property

or on private property, but affecting public property, 2) requiring Village support services, or 3) for which a
waiver of one or more mobile food vending regulations set forth at §209-8 of Chapter 209, Mobile Food

Vending, will be requested.
If additional space is required, please note in the appropriate box and attach extra sheet(s)

Event Name:

Kids Night in the Park

Type of Event (Race/Walk, Festival, Concert, Neighborhood Celebration, Parade/Motorcade, Other, etc.):

Outdoor movie with karacke and a crafts component

Event Time(s): 6pm-1 1 pm

Event Date(s): July 1st, 2024
Event Location:

Applicant Name:
Gavin O'Brien Cayuga Creek Park

Village Property Affected (If Applicable)

Individual/Group/Corporation Name Holding Event:

175th Anniversary Committee Cayuga Creek Park

Support Services Requested of the Village (If Applicable)
Signage advising of no parking restrictions in

10 Livingston St spaces adjacent to Cayuga Creek Park on West
Main. Additional trash cans. Access to electric on

Lancaster, NY 14086
West Main St. and in Cayuga Creek Park.

Applicant Address, City, State, Zip:

Applicant Phone 716-598- 9613

Applicant Email:  obriengavinj@gmail.com

Pursuant to Village Code §285-3(B)(2)(c), there must be an identified "in charge person” on premise during all
hours of the event.
“In charge person”:

Date & Time(s) On-Premise at Event:
Il be on premises for the duration

As above of the event and around all day

Contact cell and email:

Gavin O'Brien

Anticipated Age Range of those in Attendance:

Anticipated Peak Attendance Number:
All ages event

100
Will Alcohol be consumed? Will there be Amplified Sound or Music? If so,
So/d by F;w( ,f_er( provide particulars including hours:
Karaoke starts at 7pm;

Not=serpast-aftiieevent— .
movie plays from 9pm to

approximately 10:30-11




Will Animals be part of the event? If so provide particulars.

N/A

Will Food Trucks be part of the event? If so and an exception to any regulation set forth in §209-8 of Village Code
Chapter 209 "Moblle Food Vending" (see: https://lancastervillageny.gov) will be requested of the Village Code
Enforcement Officer, identify by section number each regulation for which an exception will be requested.

Yes

If the event is what is commonly referred to as a block party: 1) identify by names and addresses biock neighbors who
have been advised of the proposed block party, 2) state either that no block neighbors have expressed opposition to the
proposed block party or 3) separately identify by names and addresses block neighbors who have expressed opposition

to the proposed block party.

N/A

If applicable respond to (a) through (h) below and attach a map or sketch depiction:
(a) Location of Parking Facilities indicating number of parking spaces being provided for:

Event utilizes available public parking

(b) Please explain Additional Traffic Control measures that will be undertaken to deal with traffic over/above the
Parking Facilities explained in (a) above:

No additional measures required

Between sidewalk and curb along West Main
and a few in the Cayuga Creek Park

(c) Location of Trash Faclilities:

(d) Location of Water Facilities:
No specific water facilities

{e) Location of Electrical Facilities:
Adjacent to the projector

{f) Location of Toilet Facilities including location of Porta-Toilets:

As determined by Village Events

(g) Location of Entrances where public is to enter and exit site:
Walk up only, no specific barriers to entry

(h) Location of Vendor Facilities including booths and food service:
Parked on West Main in spots adjacent to Cayuga Creek Park

(If Applicable) Organization providing Security: (If Applicable) Number of Security Personnel:

Signature of Applicant: Date:
S}z

Post review disposition: [ ] Village Board approved.
[ 1 Village Board not approved.
[ } Applicant advised of Village Board determination: , , 202

[]1Vvillage Board approved with attached statement of conditions imposed.




Buffalo & Erie County Public 3

@LIBRARY DY Sagfha

Lancaster Public Library

May 14, 2024

Mayor Lynne T. Ruda
Village of Lancaster
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

Dear Mayor Ruda:

I am pleased to share our 2023 Annual Report. It highlights the many important services
we provided with the help of your continued support. We are focused on serving the
literacy and lifelong learning needs of our community.

Also enclosed, please find an invitation to the Friends of the Lancaster Public Library’s
rib barbecue fundraiser as well as information about our summer kick-off party on
Thursday, June 27t at 11:00 a.m. We hope to see you there!

Thank you, again, for all you do for our community.

Sincerely,

Kara Stock
Library Director

716-683-1120 » 5466 Broadway s Lancaster e NY ¢ 14086 « www.BuffaloLib.org L TR



i99.4 I

i@J0Ww yonw 8
Aleiqi peas e
S1 8ouLI0g uszZINY
‘S Alowispy
sIM Aiqisseoay ‘sipy Aoesey
SIY Ye1D ‘Sawes) piex
14O IeL ‘g Buolyepy
‘sesse|) Jeindwon
'SgniD Yoog ‘swelboid IS
'SeniAnoY Ajiwey
'sawniiols
410 191Ul 10100
18102010 ‘S18uueos 7
‘sIINdwo) angnd 61
'seseqgeleq aunuQ
‘M01SIH 18007
'S|enoN oiydels
‘U0108)10D 1uLld 8bie
Q0 JIsNI ‘sjoo0qoipny
‘siededsmeyy ‘seuizebepy
‘$00qoIpnys ‘s)ooge
'SAAQ '$joog

:10J ®21N0S
InoA s Aieaqiqy
Jlqnd Jajsesue ayy

1eyseoue Jo abejip
18JSBOUET JO UMO |
UBAIJ|ED 3OlI1ed 101BUSS
0Jepo | ueid 10iejs1ba
neaing Yino, Jsjseaue
2bpo $)13 1eise0UET
Aieigi 1eyseoue a8yl JO spuali4

BOB||BA BOIUOWY JaqUUIBLUAIqUISSSY 3

u-.h....wa el | ..E.uj_..m.w.... 3

901 ‘Gy :uonye|ndod 8oinieg
Aieiq1y ongng 19]seoue

palamsue
suolisenb aouaiael 0zZy 'L
sweiboid
papuele ejdoed 6£8°Z1L
MOJI0Q
0} ®|gejieAe swa)l 6EY'E9
siemouoq pealeisibai gL8'gL
sulboy 14-1\ e84y sp ‘gL
SUOISSas 18INdwWoo gy ‘L
SHSIA |1BNPIAIPUI LBZ 'S8
PBUBO| SWall evb LT

wuwym___u_.uum €2¢0¢

-




(Aew - 1des) G-z Aepuns
G-0L Aepinies
G-0L Aeplid
6-0L AepsinyyL
6-0L Aepsaupop

6-0L Aepsany
9-0L Aepuop

sInoy uadp

@ O

Bio°qi0ieNg MMM
0CLL-£€89-9L/
980%L AN ‘i81sedueT]
Aempeoig 99y g

S 108lU0)




/)‘_‘_ Jiaa=
/ 1\1 1 F"
7 N

SUMMER KICK-OFF -
PARTY!

Families are invited to celebrate G-
summer with hands-on crafts,
sensory activities, a duck game, and a_
rockin’ reading musical performance
by The Hill Brothers.

Thursday, June 27
11:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

*Pout-Pout Fish will
make a special

appearence! Registration begins Thursday, May 30.

=
a o - Register: bit.ly/lancasterlibrary : 4
or call 716-683-1120. f ‘

This event is sponsored by the
. Buffalo & Erie County Public Friends of the Lancaster Library.

“TIBRARY Wy
Lancaster Public Library J

o 5466 Broadway ¥

5 '__-/ Lancaster, NY 14086 g \- ’

716-683-1120




SUNDAY, JULY 21
11:30 A M. UNTIL SOLD OUT

@00 O0PO0OOOOOPOOPOPOEOPOPOOPOOPOONOOOEOOOOOOOOOEOEO

Take Out Only
BW’s Rib Dinner: $15 (CASH ONLY)

Location: Parking lot behind the library

Rib dinner includes:
Potato salad, coleslaw, roll with butter
& a home baked cookie

P00 SDPOOOIOOPIOGSOOOOSOOOPOEBDOEOOSIODPIPOOGIOLOEOGOEOSOOOESEESE®

Sponsored by the Friends of the Lancaster Library. All proceeds
will help keep the library open on Sundays during the school year.

OO OPO PO DOOOOPOOPEPRPEOSOOOOOOGOOGOOODOIODOINOPOODPSEEOE

Lancaster Public Library
5466 Broadway

ﬁ Buffalo & Erie County Public Lancaster’ Nv 14086
@ IBRARY 716-683-1120 www.BuffaloLib.org




B

NFTA R S Ao

Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority
nita.com

181 Elficot: Street
Buftalo, New York 14203
716-855.7300

Fax' 716-B55-7657
TOD: B55-765C
www.nfta.com

May 20, 2024

Hon. Lynne Ruda

Mayor of the Village of Lancaster
5423 Broadway

Lancaster, NY 14086

Re: BNIA construction this summer

Dear Mayor Ruda:

Consistent with our public messaging last year, the second and final phase of the full
reconstruction of the main runway at the Buffalo Niagara International Airport will take place this
summer. As with the first phase last summer, a temporary shift in air traffic patterns will result. We
are grateful for the continued patience of our neighbors as we make critical investments in BNIA,
which generates approximately $1.7 billion in annual economic activity, supports nearly 12,000
jobs and generates $127 million in annual state and local tax contributions.

Neighbors who express understandable concerns about shifting air traffic patterns may wish to be
made aware that this shift in air traffic patterns is not permanent, but temporary. Additionally, in
recent days we have worked with our contractors to minimize the extent and duration of the closure
and the resultant traffic pattern shift to the greatest extent possible. This table shows the current

closure schedule:

June 1% and June 2™ only | Overnight closure only (9:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m.)
July Overnight closure only (9:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m.)
August and September Full 24/7 closure

October Overnight closure only (9:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m.)

Again, we are grateful for the patience of the communities we serve as we make this significant and
necessary infrastructure investment. This is the first full reconstruction of BNIA’s main runway
since 1948. Thank you very much for your leadership.

Sincerely,

Lee Weitz )
Director, Aviation



5,
_5/28[a024

Phone 716-683-1028
Fax 716-683-1029

www.lancastervillage.org

Village of Lancaster Department of Public
Works

5200 Broadway Lancaster, New York 14086-2097

Katelyn Moaore
Clerk Typist

E-Mait: kurord@lancastervitlage.org

May 10, 2024
Honorable Members of the Village Board,

I, Katelyn Moore, am requesting to catry over one week of vacation into Fiscal Year 2024-25 and sell back
one week of vacation. This would be a total of 80 vacation hours. With Marlene being off on medical leave, I
did not think it was a responsible nor ethical decision to take my vacations and leave the Department of
Public Works office unattended, so my planned vacations were postponed.

According to the clerical contract which I follow, in Section 4, Subsection C, it reads: “Unused vacation time
shall be taken before the end of the fiscal year and is not cumulative. Vacation unused at the end of the fiscal
vear is forfeited. However, the Village Board, upon receipt of a written request from an employee, may alter
the foregoing provision on a case-by-case basis. In addition, an employee may sell back one week vacation at
such time as approved by the Department Head.”

1 greatly appreciate your time and consideration on this matter.

If you have any questions or concetns, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Alad g4V

Katelyn Moore

Clerk Typist

5200 Broadway, Lancaster, NY 14086
(716) 683-1028 x 300



Village of Lancaster

Tsrepe__ b
C:ORRESPONDENCE,
LWEETING DATE _5 [28/302¢

Phone 716-683-1028
Fax 716-683-1029

www.lancastervillage.org
Department of Public
Works

5200 Broadway

Wayne Cisco
Superintendent of Public Works
E-NMail: prscol@elpesieryiflage.org

May 20, 2024

Village of Lancaster
Attn: Michael Stegmeier
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

RE: Vacation Time Carty-Over Request

Honorable Members of the Village Boatd,

Lancaster, New York 14086-2097

This letter is to formally request approval to carry over 5 days (40 hours) of vacation time into the upcoming

fiscal year.

Fou hilve any questions or concerns, please contact me directly.

Wayne Cisco

Village of Lancaster

Superintendent of Public Works
5200 Broadway, Lancaster, NY 14086
(716) 683-1028 x 302




[ et
XORRESP
hSterws DATE _5 / '-‘

er Law Offices of Law Offices of Jessica A. Kulpit
The Cornell Mansion

& J €sSi1ca A. Klﬂplt 484 Delaware Ave
Buffalo, NY 14202
v - Phone 716-254-0172 | Fax 716-883-2163

www.KulpitLaw.com

May 22, 2024

Mayor Lynne Ruda
Village of Lancaster Board
5423 Broadway

Lancaster, NY 14086

VIA EMAIL ONLY

RE: Village Prosecutor/ Deputy Village Attorney

Dear Mayor Ruda,

I write this letter to memorialize my resignation from the Village of Lancaster as
the Deputy Village Attorney/ Village Prosecutor. I have served in this capacity since
June 2021 and have greatly enjoyed working with the Village Board and our residents. It
is my understanding the Board may select and appoint my replacement on or about May
28, 2024. As such, I request my resignation occur simultaneously.

Since my appointment, I have had an opportunity to handle all prosecutions of
violations in the Village. This includes, but is not limited to dangerous dog hearings,
housing code violations, and traffic matters. Further, I have worked with the Board in
HR issues and investigations, attended, and participated in Board meetings, assisted with
legal issues and provided advice when called upon. Since my appointment I have learned
a great deal in our governmental workings and enjoyed watching the Village flourish

under this administration.

Unfortunately, given my personal and employment commitments I cannot
effectively continue in this position. I greatly appreciate the trust and time the Board has
given me in this appointment and will miss working with our Court team and the Board.
Thank you for your time and consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact my office

with further questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

/sf JessicawA. Kulpit
Jessica A. Kulpit, Esq.



s /95‘/:!02 ¢f

HON DANIEL RINOW

Associate Judge Village of Lancaster
5423 Broadway

Lancaster, New York 14086

May 23, 2024

Mayor Ruda and Village Trustees
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

Dear Mayor Ruda and Village Trustees

After giving this matter great consideration I have decided to step down as Associate Judge
of the Village of Lancaster. This is based upon many factors, but the main reason is my desire to
spend more time with my family. I am extremely grateful for being given the opportunity to serve
the people of the Village of Lancaster for the past 14 years. My resignation will take place 30 days
from today in order to provide an opportunity to find a replacement.

Ypouys Truly,
HON DANIEL RINGW
CC: Hon Paul T Bumbalo



dOFF
pundor @YWARD
mRRg§p;ch/5;D y

May 1, 2024

Dear Mayor Ruda

We are pleased to announce that the 2™ Annual New York State Home Day to celebrate
our Fire Service will be held on Wednesday May 29, 2024, from 10:00 AM to 12 Noon at
AMDOR'’s facility in Lancaster. We look forward to welcoming you, your staff, as well as
representatives from the local, State and Federal government plus officials from local first
responder agencies to tour our facilities.

Our Home Day event will be a great opportunity to discuss important aspects of the fire
and emergency services industry, as well as issues the sector faces.

Co-hosting the event will be AMDOR and Performance Advantage Company (PAC) of
Lancaster, Sound Off Signal of Buffalo and Ward Fire Apparatus of Horseheads. We will
be joined by local fire departments including Bowmansville, Lancaster, and Bellevue.

This event will augment our brief time in Washington DC earlier this week, when we met
with Congressional Representatives and Senators to discuss funding for the AFG
(Assistance to Firefighters Grant) and SAFER (Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response) programs. FAMA (the Fire Apparatus Manufacturers’ Association) and
FEMSA (the Fire and Emergency Manufacturers and Services Association) are not-for
profit associations representing manufacturers and service providers to the fire and
emergency services industry. These two organizations have united to form a joint
Governmental Affairs Committee (GAC) reaching out to members of Congress and their
staff to build awareness of the industry and to offer resources to you and your offices as a
source of information about the first-responder community. In many respects, we view
ourselves as the industry that helps first responders save lives.

We will contact your scheduler prior to the event to discuss the date and time noted
above. We are hopeful we can host you, your staff, and other representatives for a visit
on Wednesday May 29 at our Home Day event.

Sincerely,

[homas (). Trsepacy

Thomas J. Trzepacz

Vice President

Performance Advantage Company
tom@pactoolmounts.com




RESOLUTIONS

May 13, 2024

lst

9nd

Motion Motion

ACTION -

Referto:

ACTION -

ACTION

:177;;011 7
Duonivd
Refer to:

ACTION

Denicd

ACTION

Approved -
Denicd

Referiw: |

Resolution authorizing Mayor Ruda to sign and submit a Certified Local Government (CLG)
grant application to the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation, and Historic Preservation for the
development and creation of a Guide to Historic Home Preservation; and further to certify
that the Village of Lancaster will commit funds to provide a 40% match towards the cost of
the project as required under the terms of the grant agreement.

Resolution to accept and alsl;rové the followihgglembership changes for the Lancaster Fire
Department as accepted at the Department meeting on May 14, 2024

- Resignation of Pedro Macias from the Protective Hose Company.

- Change from Active to Inactive Life Status for Anthony Fiorilli of the Rescue, Hook &
Ladder Company.

Resolution to approve the following budget transfer for the Lancaster Fire Department
towards the purchase of helmets for junior firefighters from Dival Safety:

- $315.24 from A-3411-26034 (Assorted Hand Tools) to A-3411-2602 (Helmets & Supplies).

Resolution to approve the rate structure for the use of Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations
in the Village of Lancaster as follows:

- Energy Delivered Price - $0.20 per kWh
- Idle Parking Time Price - $5.00 per hour parked after charging completed
- Grace Period After Charging - 45 Minutes

| Resolution authorizing Mayor Ruda to sign and execute the Renewal Agreement with CSEA

Employee Benefit Fund related to dental and vision benefits for Village of Lancaster
employees through May 31, 2026.

|
|

Resolution authorizing Mayor Ruda to sign and execute a Pyrotechnic Display and Services
Agreement with Skylighters of New York, LLC for a fireworks show on July 4, 2024 in the
amount of $15,000.00 as part of the Independence Days celebration.

ACTION -

Page 1

Approved
Dended

Refer io:

Last Updated: 5/24/2024 11:29 AM



May 13, 2024

RESOLUTIONS

7.

11.

14,

Page 2

1
N

o

Time & Attendance services in the annual amount of $1,486.80 to install a new biometric
clock at the Department of Public Works to re-implement automatic time punches as part of
the standard payroll process.

ACTION -

Approval
Denicd
Kefor o

ACTiON -

.‘I_I;IU'(HI'.J
Denicd

Approved

ACTION -

.~l/l/:;';n'z i
Dcnicd
Reforio:

Resolution to approve the purchase of a 2024 R-52 remote-control (RC) mower from

Stephenson Equipment, Inc., in the amount of $61,000.00, as a sole source provider for RC
mowers in New York State as affirmed by Superintendent Cisco, with funds allocated from
assigned fund balance in the General Fund.

Resolution to approve and adopt the Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan as presented
and dated May 2024.

Last Updated: 5/24/2024 11:29 AM



RESOLUTION#__ 1

MEETING DAT

. S

NEW YORK STATE CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT SUBGRANT APPLICATION FY 2023 K

T&pl_)]icant  Village of Lancaster

CERTIFICATION OF MATCH
State of New York
County of
I, , being duly sworn, do dipose and say that as the
(name)
of the duly authorized by
(title) (CLG)
i ~_ofthe _ on , do hereby
(action) (legislative body) (date)
certify that $ will be available as of , to match
(match amount) (date)

Federal Historic Preservation Fund monies which the CLG has requested under the Certified Local
Government subgrant program administered by the New Yotk State Office of Parks, Recreation and
Historic Preservation, as authorized by the National Histotic Preservation Act Amendments of 1980 and
the "Procedures for Transfer of Historic Preservation Funds to Certified Local Governments."

Date

Signature:

Sworn to before me the

day of , 20

Notary Public

Page-4



Office: 716.683,1901
Fax: 716.683.1903
Email: info@lancasterfd.org

P.O.Box 15
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

=

Lancaster Fire Department Memorandum

DATE: May 21, 2024

TO: Mike Stegmeier - Village of Lancaster Clerk-Treasurer;

Village of Lancaster Public Safety Committee

FROM: Department Secretary Aaron Ruda

RE: Lancaster Fire Department Roster Changes for May 28, 2024 LVB Meeting

The member listed below resigned from the rolls of the Lancaster Fire Department and his
letter of resignation was accepted at the Fire Department Meeting on May 14, 2024.

Pedro Macias ~ Protective Hose Company

Also, the following member requested, and was granted a change in his membership status
from Active to Inactive Life at the Fire Department Meeting on May 14, 2024.

Anthony Fiorilli - Rescue Hook & Ladder Company
Please contact me if you need any further information. Thank you for your time and attention

to this matter.

Sincerely,

Aaronw Ruda

Aaron Ruda
Lancaster Fire Department Secretary

Website: www.lancasterfd.org



Lancaster Fire Department

Office: 716.683.1901
Fax: 716.683.1903
Email: info@lancasterfd.org

P.O. Box 15
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

5/22/2024
Mayor Ruda and Honorable Village Board,
Please make the following budget line transfer to balance the Lancaster Fire Department budget lines.

Please transfer:

$315.24 From budget line 1.3411.26034 ASSORTED HAND TOOLS to budget line 1.3411.2602 HELMETS
AND SUPPLIES.

The budget line that we are asking for a transfer from has sufficient funds to cover the other budget line
shortage. This purchase was done using the Lancaster Village procurement policy.

Please let me know if more information is needed.

Respectfully,

i 2
p - -
Eric Feldmann

Lancaster Fire Department

Fire Chief

Website: www.lancasterfd.org



Voucher Requisition Form

Department: FIRE

Vendor Name:  DIVAL

Date of Invoice: 5/13/2024 invoice #: 3486172
Description of services or materials:
3 HELMETS FOR JUNIOR FIRE FIGHTERS

Fund Appropriation Code Amount

1.3411.2602 $861.54
Are funds available in these budget codes to cover these expenses? YES
If no, please include proposed budget transfer or explain why:

Yes No
Subject to competitive bids? D
If yes, date of resolution:
Do the purchases above require Yes No
written or verbal quotes? I:l
If yes, please attach the procurement bid form.
If there are no quotes, explain why:
I hereby certify the receipt of said goods and/or services as described
in attached invoice and thereby authorize payment of same.
5/22/2024

/j % Date:
Signature: < § =




INVOICE
Dival Sately Equipment, inc. » 1721 Niagara St « Buffalo, NY 14207 » To/800.343.1354 « Toi 716.874.9060 » Fax 716.874.4686

Bill fo: LANCASTER FIRE DEPARTMENT Ship to:  LANCASTER FIRE DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 15 5423 BROADWAY

LANCASTER NY 14086 ATTN:Chief Eric Feldmann

LANCASTER NY 14086

CUSTOMER 'REPRINT FROM HISTORY* INVOICE INVOICE
NUMBER TERMS DATE NUMBER
103603 NET 30 DAYS 5113124 3486172
ORDER CUSTOMER SALES
NUMBER PURCHASE ORDER REPRESENTATIVE INSTRUCTIONS
79885 / 00 PXSOR JM DICK ODSP FIRE BUFFALO
Ordered  Shipped B.O. UM tem and Descripion Unit Price Extended Price
3 3 EA PXSOR $325.00000 $975.00

Bullard PX series helmet wid"

DivalstockingUM: ( 3  EA)

face shield, base model, org

™ CUSTOMER DOES NOT REQURE A VOUCHER *

THANK YOU!
Ihvoice due: 6/12/24
APPLIED CREDIT PENDING ON ACCOUNT -113.46

Subtotal Tax Pot  Sales fax Total
$861.54 000 $861.54




51 a:llaom(

Proposal: Electric Vehicle Charging Station Pricing Structure

To ensure the sustainability and effectiveness of our EV charging infrastructure, we propose the

following rate structure for your consideration:

1. Per kWh Pricing: We propose charging users a competitive rate of $0.20 per kilowatt-hour (kwh) for
the energy consumed during the charging process. This rate is based on the average charging costs in
our region and covers the operational expenses thereby minimizing the financial burden on the village.

2. Time-Based Pricing: In addition to the energy-based pricing, we recommend implementing a time-
based pricing component to encourage efficient use of the charging stations and prevent overstay. After
the charging session is complete, users will be charged an additional fee of $5 per hour for every hour
they occupy the charging spot beyond the completion of charging. The time-based pricing structure
incentivizes users to promptly vacate the charging spot after their session is complete, ensuring
availability for other EV owners and maximizing the utilization of our charging infrastructure.

3. Grace Period: To accommodate users who may need a few extra minutes to unplug their vehicles
after charging is complete, we propose implementing a 45-minute grace period after the charging
session ends. During this grace period, no additional fees will be applied.

Summary
Energy Delivered Rate Idle Parking Time Rate Grace Period
Price Price After 45 min
$0.20/kWh $5.00/hr parked

We welcome any feedback or suggestions from the village board and look forward to your consideration

of this proposal.



s
s/agla03y

Mike Stegmeier

From: Diedra Villa <dvilla@CSEAEBF.ORG>

Sent: Friday, May 17, 2024 7:48 AM

To: Lynne T. Ruda

Cc: Mike Stegmeier; Mike Wagner

Subject: Village of Lancaster DPW contract with CSEA EBF
Attachments: 2022-2026 181 Village of Lancaster DPW - EBF Contract.pdf
Ms. Ruda,

Attached you will find the Contract between the Village of Lancaster DPW and the CSEA EBF.

As you are aware, in order to implement the benefit(s) we must have a jointly sighed document which
outlines the respective obligations.

Please review and sign at your earliest convenience.

In order to execute the contract, date the first page and sign the last page of the contract.

Please sign and return 1 contract via email and keep a copy for your records.

If you have any questions, please contact me.

Warm regards,

Diedra Villa
Marketing Administrative Assistant | CSEA Employee Benefit Fund

dvilla@cseaebf.org | 800-323-2732 x805 | www.cseaebf.com | F 518-782-9979




EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FUND



THIS RENEWAL AGREEMENT, made this day of , 20 ,
between VILLAGE OF LANCASTER (DPW) (hereinafter the EMPLOYER) with offices
located at 5423 Broadway, Lancaster, New York 14086 and the CSEA EMPLOYEE

BENEFIT FUND (hereinafter the FUND), a Trust, with offices located at One Lear Jet Lane,
Suite One, Latham, New York 12110-2395.

WHEREAS, the parties have heretofore entered into an agreement dated August 18, 1989
(the “Original Agreement”), for the provision by the FUND of certain benefits to the
EMPLOYER'’S covered employees, which Original Agreement was most recently extended by
Renewal Agreement dated July 31, 2020 (as extended, the “Agreement”), and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to continue the provision of said benefits upon the terms
and conditions contained in the Agreement, except as modified hereby,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and promises contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. The FUND shall provide benefits to the EMPLOYER’S covered employees under
the following benefit PLAN(S) established by the FUND:

DUTCHESS DENTAL PLAN
PLATINUM 12 VISION PLAN

2. The EMPLOYER shall pay the FUND the following amounts per covered
employee per month:

A. DUTCHESS DENTAL PLAN - COMPOSITE COVERAGE
(i) from June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022, $154.53;
(ii) from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, $165.35;
(iii) from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, $167.00;
(iv) from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, $168.67;
(v) from July 1, 2025 to May 31, 2026, $170.36.
B. PLATINUM 12 VISION PLAN - COMPOSITE COVERAGE
(i) from June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022, $27.35;
(ii) from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, $27.35;
(iii) from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, $27.35;

(iv) from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, $27.35;



)

from July 1, 2025 to May 31, 2026, $27.35.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the EMPLOYER’s contribution to the cost of the
Dutchess Dental Plan on behalf of covered employees hired after May 31, 2013 shall not exceed
ninety (90%) percent of the per month cost of such coverage (such amount, the “Cap”). The cost
of coverage in excess of the Cap shall be paid by each employee by means of a payroll deduction
item which shall remain in effect for the duration of this Renewal Agreement.

4. Article I, Section 5 of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the

following:

G65 .

DEPENDENT shall mean, with respect to a Covered
Employee who is eligible to receive Fund-provided
benefits as determined by the Trustees, one of the

following:

(2)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e

the covered employee’s spouse, provided that the parties are not
legally separated and further provided that the employee’s spouse is
not a covered employee under any benefit plan established by the
FUND; spouse includes a person of the same sex to whom the
covered employee was married in a marriage ceremony legally
performed in a jurisdiction permitting same sex marriages;

children of the covered employee under the age of twenty-six (26)
years;

stepchildren under the age of twenty-six (26) years;

legal wards of the covered employee under the age of twenty-six
(26) years, as to whom a court decree has been entered granting legal
guardianship to the covered employee;

children, stepchildren, and legal wards of the covered employee
who were mentally or physically disabled before reaching the age
of twenty-six (26) years and who are incapable of self-support can
be covered without regard to age;

provided, however, that said children in (b) through () above shall not be
deemed dependents of both the covered employee and the covered

employee’s spouse;”

5. This Renewal Agreement is effective as of June 1, 2022 and shall terminate on
May 31, 2026, subject to continuation pursuant to the terms of Article IX, Section 2 of the
Agreement and subject to earlier termination by virtue of the decertification of CSEA as the
representative of the employees in the bargaining unit required to be covered under this

Agreement.

4892-6089-5676, v. 1



6. Except as expressly modified herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement
are hereby ratified and affirmed and incorporated by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Renewal Agreement the day
and year first above written.

CSEA EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FUND VILLAGE OF LANCASTER

By: M By:
Villiam F. Howard, Director ™~ Lynne Ruda, Mayor

4892-6089-5676, v. 1



b
5283024

PYROTECHNIC DISPLAY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PYROTECHNIC DISPLAY AND SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as “agreement”), made and
entered into this 17" day of May, 2024 by and between SKYLIGHTERS of New York LLC. (here in after referred

to as “SELLER”) and Village of Lancaster (Herein after referred to as “BUYER").

X __This is a one year agreement.
___Thisis a three year agreement, starting on the below dates and time. Agreement binds BUYER to use

SELLER as sole provider for pyrotechnic displays and services for three years, final compensation
amount for years two and three of the agreement can be determined at original signing, or annually by
January 31% of said year and will follow compensation specifications as outlined below. Three year
agreement entitles BUYER to ____more product added to the display each year. (All product is based on

current cost of that year and annual compensation amount.)
Any agreement paid in full by May 1% of the agreement year will entitle BUYER to % more Product added to

that vears display.

1. THE TIME AND PLACE: POSTPONEMENT/CANCELATION: SELLER agrees to design, produce and execute a
fireworks show, otherwise known as a pyrotechnic display at approximately 10pm on the day of July 4,
2024. BUYER is responsible for gaining access to the set-up location on the SELLER’S behalf. The display

will be executed at the following:
Location & Address: St. Mary’s of Assumption,1 St. Mary’s Hill, Lancaster, NY 14086

Weather permitting. An alternative inclement weather day is hereby designated to be N/A the same time and
place set forth, herein above. It is agreed and understood by and between the parties hereto that SELLER shall
have the sole, exclusive and final determination of the suitability of the weather conditions at the time of the
display. In the event SELLER should determine that the weather conditions are such that an unsafe or
hazardous condition may exist, SELLER shall have exclusive right to postpone the starting time of the display
and/or delay the display in its entirety; until conditions have improved and are appropriate for the safety of all

involved, or until inclement weather date as set forth herein above.

2. INSURANCE: SELLER agrees to provide a Certificate of Insurance showing SELLER, BUYER and, to be insured
and covered for $5,000,000 Each Accident. $5,000,000 General Aggregate, $5,000,000 products-comp/ops
Agg. In the event greater liability insurance limits are required, the additional cost is to be paid by BUYER.

3. SECURITY/SAFETY: BUYER is responsible for procuring and managing the following:

SKYLIGHTERS OF NEW YORK, LLC P.O. BOX 1357 http://www.skylightersfireworks.com/
MATT SHAW — OWNER / OPERATOR ORCHARD PARK, NY 14127 716-903-3291




Adequate security personnel;
Barricades, Ropes with flags, etc. to barricade all covered (dangerous) areas to spectators;
Traffic patrolmen;

As necessary:
. security guards for crowd control and clean up personnel to remove litter left by spectators

or any other persons other than SELLER;

ii. Trash receptacles as necessary for spectators;

iii. “No Parking” signs and directional signs;

iv. Sufficient space (as determined by shell size) for the proper and safe display of said
pyrotechnic display. Such space to be clear and free of all persons except those employed
by SELLER; and clear of any and all equipment, vehicles, structures, or items of any other

kind not authorized or put in place by SELLER.

a0 oo

4. LICENSES OR PERMITS: SELLER shall be responsible to obtain, for SELLER’s benefit, any state, city or any
other licensees or permits required to execute the pyrotechnic display contemplated herein. SELLER shall
provide BUYER with any necessary information, proof of insurance, or any other items required by the
licensing authorities for issuance of such licenses or permits.

5. COMPENSATION: Compensation shall be made to the SELLER hereunder as follows: 50% at the signing of
this agreement, due no later than 90 days from the display date with the balance due before the service has
been provided . The total amount of this contract is $15,000.00
Our 3% cash/check discount will be removed for credit card payments.

(*if three year contract, Year 1 $ ,Year2$ ,Year 3§
BUYER failure to pay all sums due within thirty days of display, SELLER shall be entitled to collect from
BUYER its reasonable cost of collection, including interest and reasonable attorney’s fees. If, for any reason
other than as addressed herein above BUYER wishes to cancel this agreement, there will be a cancellation
fee in the amount of fifty percent of the total contract price hereunder for the cancellation of a one year
contract; and an additional fifteen percent fee of the total contract price for each year cancelled with a
undetermined budget for the cancellation of a three year contract; to be paid to or retained by SELLER. Any
applicable state or local taxes will be payable by the BUYER. Should the setup of the display require a multi-

day setup it is up to the BUYER to provide security for the display site.

). Inthe event of

6. POINT OF CONTACT THE DAY OF EVENT

NAME & DIRECT PHONE NUMBER:

7. This agreement may be executed in counterpart, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which

shall constitute one and the same agreement.

8._SUBJECT TO ATTACHED SCHEDULE A.

SKYLIGHTERS OF NEW YORK, LLC P.O0. BOX 1357 http://www.skylightersfireworks.com/
MATT SHAW - OWNER / OPERATOR ORCHARD PARK, NY 14127 716-903-3291




This CONTRACT is binding only after it has been signed by all parties hereto and returned to the SELLER with
the required deposit as forth herein above.

BY: BY:
DATE: 05/17/2024 DATE:
SELLER BUYER
SKYLIGHTERS OF NEW YORK, LLC P.O. BOX 1357 http://www.skylightersfireworks.com/

MATT SHAW — OWNER / OPERATOR ORCHARD PARK, NY 14127 716-903-3291



Schedule A

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the Village of Lancaster, St Mary’'s of the Assumption Church and their employees from
and against all claims, damages, liabilities, losses and expenses, including but not
limited to attomeys' fees, arising out of or in any way connected with the performance or
lack of performance of the agreement provided that any such claim, damage, liability,

loss or expense is:

1) attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or dseath, or physical
injury to tangible property and

2) is caused in whole or in part by any actual or alleged:

a) act or omission of the Seller or anyone directly or
indirectly retained or engaged by it or anyone for whose acts

it may be liable; or

b) a violation of any statutory duty, regulation, ordinance,
rule or abligation by the Seller provided that the violation
arises out of or is in any way connected with the Seller's
performance or lack of performance of the agreement.

Seller shall purchase and maintain insurance providing Commercial General Liability
(CGL) coverage with limits of insurance of not less than $5,000,000. The Village and St
Mary's of the Assumption Church shall be included as an additional insured. Insurance
for the Village as additional insured shall be as broad as the coverage provided for the
named insured Seller. Coverage for the additional insured shall apply as primary and
non-contributing insurance before any other insurance or self-insurance. A Certificate of
Insurance identifying the Village of Lancaster, NY and St Mary's of the Assumption
Church as additional insureds shall be provided to the Village. Attached to each
certificate of insurance there shall be a copy of the additional insured endorsement that
is part of the Seller's commercial general ligbility policy. The Certificate of Insurance
and attachments shall be provided to the Village no later than June 15" 2024,

o MHSZ_
Date: 5%’ 7 /2‘-/

Seller

By:
Date:

Buyer



DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)

N,
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 511712024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ] _ ﬁAd-“EACT
Bl waeesre
1375 East 9th Street ADDRESS .
Cleveland OH 44114 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
B - o INSURER A : Everest National Insurance Company | 1mm20
INSURED 7847 . Axis Sur mpan |
ggylliago';tﬁfgs %f New York LLC L:ﬁ:: : : Axis Surplus Insurance Company B __ .IL' 26620
Orchard Park NY 14127 INSURER D : N .
INSURER E : . l .
INSURER F ; |
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 246222431 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

NSR [ADDL[SUBR]  __ POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR | TYPE OF INSURANCE | POLICY NUMBER l (MM/DBIYYYY) | MDDIYYYYI LIMITS

A | GENERAL LIABILITY | 8186L00259-231 12/5/2023 12/5/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE | $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED

I ] |
1 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ‘ | PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 500,000

| cLaMS-MADE OCCUR | | MED EXP (Any one person) | §

| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000

_t - |
I P | | | GENERAL AGGREGATE | $2,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | | | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG. l $2,000,000 B
| leouey | X FEF | lwoc | Il . | 8
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | | SI8CA00022-231 12/52023 | 12/5/2024 i oo tamy TGLE LiMT ] | $1,000.000
| X J ANY AUTO | | | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | 5
' ALL OWNED |_ SCHEDULED | [ BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | N
X | X | NON-OWNED | | | PROPERTY DAMAGE $ - ]
| X [mrepautos | X | Ay | | | | (Per aceident] -
I | | | $
=T .
B | |umBrRELLALIAB | X | occur | | P-001-000056857-08 12/5/2023 | 12/5/2024 | EACH OCGURRENCE | $4,000,000
| X | EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE | | | I AGGREGATE | $ 4,000,000
_ : | | AGGREGATE - 000 _ 4
| loep | | ReTENTIONS | | | I | $
| WORKERS COMPENSATION [ STATU- | OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY | | | | [ TRy Lrs | | ER =
| E.L. EACH AGCIDENT $

YIN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE |
| OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I:] NIA | | |
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, §

(Mandatory in NH) | ‘ ‘
| E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT l $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

| I | | |
I ‘ | |
| |
| | |
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOGATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space s required)
Additional Insured extension of coverage is provided by above referenced General Liability policy where required by written agreement.

Display Date: July 4, 2024

Location: St Mary of the Assumption
Additional Insured: Village of Lancaster, St Mary of the Assumption is name as additional insured on a primary and non-contributing basis, including a waiver of

subrogation

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Village of Lancaster
5423 Broadway AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Lancaster NY 14086

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

g I
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 512012024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER . . oRTACT
Aot LLC dos Bty Salaghor & Assooies T T R - WS
1375 East 9th Street | ADDRESS: —
Cleveland OH 44114 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE B | NACH
o - I INSURER A : Everest National Insurance Company 10120
I;T(UTiEDhterS of New York LLC 7847| insurer B : Axis Surplus Insurance Company | 26620
POyBgOX 1357 INSURER C : - |
Orchard Park NY 14127 INSURER D : ) - I -
INSURERE : — =
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 393646215 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TADDL[SUBR| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR WYD POLICY NUMBER | (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DDIYYYY) | LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY | | SI8GLO0259-231 | 12/5/2023 | 12/5/2024 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| [ DAMAGE TO RENTED

X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | |

| CLAIMS-MADE - QCCUR | | |

| PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 500,000
| MED EXP (Any one person) %
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000

| | GENERAL AGGREGATE | $2,000,000 |
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | ! | | | | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $2,000,000
PRO- | ' ]
| poLicy | X | JECT LOC | | '3
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | SIBCA00022-231 12/62023 | 12/5/2024 I Eoacadony LM | < 000,000
X | any auTo | | | | | BODILY INJURY (Per person) |
| ALL OWNED || SCHEDULED
TG e i W | D
X | HIRED AUTOS L.i] AUTOS | | | | |.[Per accident] - Ji
| | | $
| | 1
B UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur | | P-001-000056857-06 12/52003 | 12052024 | Eact OCCURRENGE | $ 4,000,000
| X | EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE | | | | AGGREGATE | $ 4,000,000 |
' peo | | RETENTIONS | |3
| WORKERS COMPENSATION ] ' | WC STATU- OTH-]
AND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY YIN ‘ ' — TORYUMITS L ER |
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE ' | E.L. EACH AGCIDENT |$
(OJFI%ER/MEMBEI; EXCLUDED? |NI A | —SEASE EA EMP ==
andatory In NH E.L.DI - LOYEE| $
[ i yes, describe under ' ! [ ]
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below | | EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

| 1 i}
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space Is required)
Additional Insured extension of coverage is provided by above referenced General Liability policy where required by written agreement.
Display Date: 7/4/24
Location; 1 St. Mary's Hill
Additional Insured: St. Mary's of the Assumption
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

St. Mary's of the Assumption
18t Ma 's H AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Lancaster NY 14086

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




POLICY NUMBER: SI8GL00259-231 - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
ECG 20 592 05 09

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
SCHEDULE

mame Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s)

ANY PERSON OR LEGAL ENTITY IN WHICH YOU HAVE A WRITTEN CONTRACT, AGREEMENT, OR
PERMIT WHICH REQUIRES THAT YOU NAME THE CONTRACTING PARTY AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED.

Village of Lancaster, St Mary of the Assumption is name as additional insured on a primary and
non-contributing basis, including a waiver of subrogation

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section Il — Who Is An Insured is amended to C. The Limits of Insurance afforded to an additional
include as an additiona_l insured the person{s) or insured shali be the lesser of the following:
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 1. The Limits of Insurance required by the written
with respect to liability for "bodily injury”, "property agreement between the parties; or

damage” or "personal and advertising injury" but

your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of erage Part.

those acting on your behalf: D. With respect to the insurance afforded to an addi-

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations; tional insured, the following additional exclusion
or applies:

2. In connection with your premises owned by or This insurance does not apply to “bodily injury”,
rented to you. "property damage" or "personal and advertising in-
. e . jury" arising out of any act or omission of an addi-
B. The insurance affordeq to an addltlopal insured tional insured or any of its employees.
shall only include the insurance required by the
terms of the written agreement and shall not be
broader than the coverage provided within the
terms of the Coverage Part.

ECG 20 592 05 09 Copyright, Everest Reinsurance Company 2009 Page 1 of 1
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., used
with its permission.




POLICY NUMBER: SI8GL00259-231 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24041219

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
POLLUTION LIABILITY LIMITED COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY DESIGNATED TANKS

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s):

Village of Lancaster, St Mary of the Assumption is name as additional insured on a primary and non-contributing basis, including a waiver of subrogation

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV — Conditions:

We waive any right of recovery against the person(s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule above
because of payments we make under this Coverage
Part. Such waiver by us applies only to the extent that
the insured has waived its right of recovery against
such person(s) or organization(s) prior to loss. This
endorsement applies only to the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule above.

CG 24041219 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1



Policy# Si8GL00259-231 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20010413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance (2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or

Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this insurance would be
contrary: primary and would not seek contribution

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance from any other insurance available to the
L L . additional insured.

This insurance is primary to and will not seek

contribution from any other insurance available

to an additional insured under your policy

provided that:

(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

CG 20010413 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1



Investment Summary @

Quote Number 02-2024-3229713 1

Company Information Executive Contact

Vl“age Of Lancaster Michael Stegmeier

5423 Broadway St Treasurer

Lancaster, NY 14086-2148 mstegmeier@lancastervillage.org
United States (716) 683-2105

50 $0.00 $1,486.80

Total Annual

Total Implementation

Employees Costs Investment

Expiration
6/20/2024

ADP Sales Associate

Alyssa Shankweiler

Workforce Management District Manager
alyssa.shankweiler@adp.com

(610) 236-7067

** The Implementation Costs and Total Annual Investment listed out on this Investment Summary are estimates based on
the services, frequencies, recurring rates and pay counts outlined on the sales order and are shown for illustrative purposes
only. These numbers are not binding amounts and shall not become incorporated into or made a part of any sales order or

services agreement governing the services contemplated therein.




Sales Order
Quote Number 02-2024-322913 1

AP

Company Information

Village Of Lancaster
5423 Broadway St

Lancaster, NY 14086-2148
United States

Executive Contact

Michael Stegmeier

Treasurer
mstegmeier@lancastervillage.oro
(716) 683-2105

Recurring Fees and Considerations
Number of Employees: 50 on Village Of Lancaster , Company Code TJL

Monthly Processing Count  Min Base Rate Monthly Annual
InTouch DX Bar Code Clock 1 = - $106.95 $106.95 $1,283.40
InTouch DX QuickPunch Plus Option 1 - - $16.95 $16.95 $203.40

Total Annual Investment Total Annual

Workforce Now Services

$1,486.80

Other Considerations
Implementation

Total



Sales Order
Quote Number 02-2024-322913 1 ’

Important Project and Billing Information

Other
ADP Fees for service frequency and method will follow that of the parent company code. ADP will send all invoices to

mstegmeier@lancastervillage.org
Expiration Date; 6/20/2024

Summary
Estimated Annual Net $1,486.80 Total Net $0.00
Investment: Implementation:

The ADP Services listed on this Sales Order and the fees for such services set forth above are not final and remain
subject to approval by ADP Finance in all respects. Once final, Client will receive a revised final, executable sales order to

be signed by both ADP and Client.

Thank you for your consideration




L3R

Workforce

Now ADP Workforce Now

. Master Services Agreement

ADP, Inc.: (referred to herein as "ADP") Client: {referred to herein as "Client")

One ADP Boulevard Village Of Lancaster (Effective Date)

Roseland, New Jersey 07068 5423 Broadway St

United States
Lancaster, NY 14086-2148, United States

Attention
Michael Stegmeier

This Amendment modifies, amends, and supplements the terms and conditions of the ADP Workforce Now® Master Services Agreement,
Global Master Services Agreement, or such equivalent terms and conditions or agreement between ADP and Client (the “Agreement”). ADP and
Client agree that ADP shall provide Client with the following additional services in accordance with the terms set forth herein and in the
Agreement. It is understood that to the extent this Amendment modifies an Agreement that does not include any reference to annexes as set
forth herein, references to such annexes are for illustration purposes only and do not define, limit, or otherwise affect the meaning of any
provisions hereof or as set forth in the Agreement. The terms set forth in each annex listed below and attached hereto are incorporated into the

Agreement in full by this reference as if set forth in full therein.

ANNEX A: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
APPENDIX: DATA PRIVACY

THIS IS A PROPOSAL ONLY.

Fees are estimates and are subject to change. Additional Fees may be incurred if other services are purchased or for tax filings
including, but not limited to, additional states or ‘applied for’ statuses. Please consult with your sales representative for further
details. * Additional W2 processing fees apply. ©2023 ADP, Inc. ADP and the ADP Logo are registered trademarks of ADP, Inc. [ADP

Check is a trademark of ADP, inc. and is a registered service mark of ADP, Inc.]

ADP Proprietary and Confidential 02-2024-322913.1 ADP Workforce Now

Version 12 (08312020) Cover-2



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions ®

1 Definitions

1.1 “ADP’ has the meaning set forth on the cover page.

1.2 “ADP Application Programs” means the computer software programs and related Documentation, including any updates,
modifications or enhancements thereto, that are either delivered or made accessible to Client through a hosted environment
by ADP in connection with the Services.

1.3 “ADP Workforce Now" means ADP’s web-based portal which provides a single point of access to ADP online solutions and
employee-facing websites and resources related to payroll, HR, benefits, talent, and time and attendance.

1.4 “Affiliate” means, with respect to any entity, any other entity that controls, is controlled by or under control with such first
entity. For purposes of this Agreement, “control” (or variants of it} means the ability, whether directly or indirectly, to direct the
management and corporate policies and actions of an entity by means of ownership, contract or otherwise. Client's Affiliates
do not include third parties for whom Client is a service provider or provides outsourcing services.

1.5 “Agreement’ means this ADP Workforce Now - Master Services Agreement, consisting of the signature pages, the General
Terms and Conditions, the Sales Order(s), all exhibits, annexes, addendum, appendices and schedules, and each
amendment, if any.

1.6  “API" means application programming interface.

1.7 "Business Day" means any day, except a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which ADP's bank is not open for business in the
applicable jurisdiction where services are provided by ADP.

1.8  “Client” has the meaning set forth on the cover page.

1.9  “Client Content’ means all information and materials provided by Client, its agents or employees, regardless of form, to ADP
under this Agreement.

1.10 “Client Group” means Client and Client's Affiliates listed in the Sales Order who are authorized to receive the Services.

1.11  “Client Infringement Event” means (i) any change, or enhancement, or use of, the Services made by Client or a third party
on behalf of Client other than at the direction of, or as approved by, ADP, or (ii) Client's failure to use the most current release
or version of such computer software programs included in the ADP Application Programs, or any corrections or
enhancements provided by ADP thereto (to the extent ADP requires Client to use the most current release or version of any
computer software programs, the implementation of such shall be at no charge to Client).

112 ‘“Confidential Information” means all trade secrets, processes, proprietary data and documentation and any pricing and
product information, Personal Data, the terms of this Agreement, and any other information that is confidential or proprietary
provided by the disclosing party to the receiving party for use in connection with the Services or this Agreement, but does not
include information that (i) the receiving party already knows prior to its disclosure by the disclosing party, (ii) becomes
generally available to the public, except as a result of disclosure by the receiving party in violation of this Agreement or
(iii) becomes known to the receiving party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the disclosing party.

1.13 ‘Data Security Breach’ means a security breach as defined by applicable law or any incident that compromises the
confidentiality, integrity, or availability of Personal Data.

1.14 "Documentation” means all manuals, tutorials and related materials that may be provided or made available to Client by ADP
in connection with the Services.

1.16 ‘Effective Date” has the meaning set forth on the cover page.

1.16 "General Terms and Conditions” means the terms and conditions contained in this Annex A.

1.17 “Go-Live Date” means the date of commencement of the first live processing of any given Service.

1.18 "Gross Negligence" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.1.

1.19 ‘“Improvements" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4.

1.20 ‘Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.

1.21 ‘“Indemnitor” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.

1.22 ‘Intellectual Property Rights" means all rights, title and interest to or in patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, trade
secret, business or trade name, know-how and rights of a similar or corresponding character.

1.23 'Internal Business Purposes" means the usage of the Services, including the ADP Application Programs, exclusively by the
Client Group for its own internal business purposes, without the right to provide service bureau or other data processing
services, or otherwise share or distribute the Services.

1.24 “NACHA" means the National Automated Clearing House Association.

1.25 ‘“Payee” means any intended recipient of payments under the Payment Services and may include Client's employees, taxing
authorities, governmental agencies, suppliers, benefit carriers and/or other third parties: provided that in the case of ADP
Wage Payment Services, Payee shall be limited to Client's employees and independent contractors.

1.26 “Payment Services” means any Services that involve electronic or check payments being made by ADP to third parties on
Client’s behalf and at its direction.

1.27 ‘“Personal Data” means information relating to an identified or identifiable natural person. An identifiable natural person is
one who can be identified, directly or indirectly, in particular by reference to an identification number or to one or more factors
specific to such person’s physical, physiological, mental, economic, cultural or social identity.

1.28 “Sales Order(s)" means the document(s) between the parties that lists the specific Services purchased by Client Group from
ADP.

1.29 “Services” means the services listed in any Sales Order (including implementation services related thereto and ADP
Application Programs), and such other services as the parties may agree to be performed from time to time.

1.30 “SOC 1 Reports” means any routine Service Organization Control 1 reports.

1.31 ‘*Termination Event” means with respect to any party, the occurrence of any of the following: (i) under the applicable
bankruptcy laws or similar law regarding insolvency or relief for debtors, (A) a trustee, receiver, custodian or similar officer is
appointed over a party’s business or property, (B) a party seeks to liquidate, wind-up, dissolve, reorganize or otherwise obtain

ADP Proprietary and Confidential ADP Workforce Now
A-2

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions 2

1.32
1.33

relief from its creditors, or (C) an involuntary proceeding is commenced against a party and the proceeding is not stayed,
discharged or dismissed within thirty (30) days of its commencement, or (ii) a party’s Standard and Poor’s issuer credit rating
falls to or below BB.

“Unauthorized Third Party” means any commercial third party or business that seeks to access or accesses ADP Application
Programs using the account credentials (e.g., username and password) of a User even if such User has provided consent.
“User” means any single natural person who, subject to the terms of this Agreement, is an employee or independent contractor

of Client authorized by Client to use, access or receive the Services.

2 Provision and Use of Services

21

2.2

23

24

25

2.6

Provision of Services. ADP, or one of its Affiliates, will provide the Services to Client in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement and any applicable Sales Order(s). ADP will provide the Services in a good, diligent and professional manner in
accordance with industry standards, utilizing personnel with a level of skill commensurate with the Services to be performed.
ADP's performance of the Services (including any applicable implementation activities) is dependent upon the timely
completion of Client’s responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement. Without limitation of the foregoing, Client will
timely provide the Client Content necessary for ADP to provide the Services.

Cooperation. ADP and Client will work together to implement the Services. Client will cooperate with ADP and execute and
deliver all documents, forms, or instruments necessary for ADP to implement and render the Services. Client will provide ADP
with all reasonable and necessary Client Content in the format requested by ADP, and will otherwise provide all reasonable
assistance required of Client in order for ADP to implement the Services. In the event a Client migrates from any other ADP
service or platform, Client consents to ADP transferring Client data from such platform to ADP Workforce Now.

Use of Services. Client will use the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and solely for its own Internal
Business Purposes. Client will be responsible for the use of the Services by the Client Group and the Users in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement. Client understands and agrees that only Users are permitted to access and use ADP
Application Programs (and that access by Unauthorized Third Parties is not permitted) and will reasonably cooperate with
ADP to limit access to such persons. Client is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the Client Content provided
to ADP. ADP Workforce Now is designed for the United States and Canada and enables the processing of HR data for global
human capital management needs. Client may, at its discretion, enable ADP Workforce Now functionality in other jurisdictions,
except when prohibited by applicable law. ADP makes no representation or warranty that such global use comports with any
local laws, regulations or directives outside the United States and Canada. Furthermore , if Client during the implementation
process or as part of the ongoing Services configures the ADP Application Programs to process additional data elements
beyond those data elements that are required by ADP to perform the Services, Client will remain solely responsible for such
configurations, including the processing of Personal Data pursuant to applicable law.

Errors. Client will promptly review all documents and reports produced by ADP and provided or made available to Client in
connection with the Services and promptly notify ADP of any error, omission, or discrepancy with Client's records. ADP will
promptly correct such error, omission or discrepancy and, if such error, omission or discrepancy was caused by ADP, then
such correction will be done at no additional charge to Client.

Records. Without prejudice to ADP’s obligation to retain the data necessary for the provision of the Services, ADP does not
serve as Client's record keeper and Client will be responsible for retaining copies of all documentation received from and
Client Content provided to ADP in connection with the Services to the extent required by Client.

Third Party Services Available through or Integrated with the Services. At times, ADP may make available to Client
through the Services, or integrate the Services with, the services of a third party, either through a link, integration, or otherwise.
ADP reserves the right to terminate such links, services or integrations at any time for any reason. If Client uses any third
party services that are integrated with or linked to the Services which require the transmission, use, sharing, access or
exchange of Client Content or any other payroll or other data or information provided to ADP or the third party by Client, Client
is expressly agreeing to the transmission, use, sharing, access and exchange of such data between ADP and the third party.
Client’s use of any third party services will be governed by any terms Client agrees to with the third party and in the event of
any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any third party terms, the terms of this Agreement will apply to the

provision of the Services by ADP to Client.

3 Compliance

Applicable Laws. Each party will comply with applicable laws and regulations that affect its business generally, including

3.1.
any applicable anti-bribery, export control, computer fraud and data protection laws.

3.2. Design of the Services. ADP will design the Services, including the functions and processes applicable to the performance
of the Services, to assist the Client in complying with its legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the Services, and
ADFP will be responsible for the accuracy of such design. Client and not ADP will be responsible for (i) how it uses the Services
to comply with its legal and regulatory requirements and (ii) the consequences of any instructions that it gives to ADP, including
as part of the implementation of the Services, provided ADP follows such instructions. Services do not include any legal,
financial, regulatory, benefits, accounting or tax advice.

3.3. Online Statements. If Client instructs ADP to provide online pay statements, Forms W2, Forms 1099 or Forms 1095-C, as
applicable, without physical copies thereof, Client will be exclusively responsible for determining if and to what extent Client’s
use of online pay statements, Forms W2, Forms 1099 or Forms 1095-C, as applicable, satisfies Client's obligations under
applicable laws and the consequences resulting from such determinations.

3.4. Data Privacy Appendix. The Data Privacy Appendix is attached as an appendix to this Agreement.

4 Confidentiality
4.1 General. All Confidential Information disclosed under this Agreement will remain the exclusive and confidential property of
ADP Proprietary and Confidential ADP Workforce Now
A-3

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions .

4.2

the disclosing party. The receiving party will not disclose to any third party the Confidential Information of the disclosing party
and will use at least the same degree of care, discretion and diligence in protecting the Confidential Information of the
disclosing party as it uses with respect to its own confidential information. The receiving party will limit access to Confidential
Information to its employees and independent contractors with a need to know the Confidential Information and will instruct
those employees and independent contractors to keep such information confidential. ADP may disclose Client's Confidential
Information on a need to know basis to (i} ADP's subcontractors who are performing the Services, provided that ADP shall
remain liable for any unauthorized disclosure of Client's Confidential Information by those subcontractors, (i) employees of
ADP’s Affiliates, provided such employees are instructed to keep the information confidential as set forth in this Agreement
and (iii) social security agencies, tax authorities and similar third parties, to the extent strictly necessary to perform the
Services. ADP may use Client's and its employees’ and other Services recipients’ information in an aggregated, anonymized
form, such that neither Client nor such person may be identified, and Client will have no ownership interest in such aggregated,
anonymized data. Client authorizes ADP to release employee-related data, and such other data as required to perform the
Services, to third party vendors of Client as designated by Client from time to time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
receiving party may disclose Confidential Information (x) to the extent necessary to comply with any law, rule, regulation or
ruling applicable to it, (y) as appropriate to respond to any summeons or subpoena or in connection with any litigation and (z) to
the extent necessary to enforce its rights under this Agreement.

Return or Destruction. Upon the request of the disclosing party or upon the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement, and to the extent feasible, the receiving party will return or destroy all Confidential Information of the disclosing
party in the possession of the receiving party, provided that each party may maintain a copy if required to meet its legal or
regulatory obligations and may maintain archival copies stored in accordance with regular computer back-up operations. To
the extent that any portion of Confidential Information of a disclosing party remains in the possession of the receiving party,
such Confidential Information shall remain subject to the generally applicable statutory requirements and the confidentiality

protections contained in Section 4.1.

5 Intellectual Property

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Client IP Rights. Except for the rights expressly granted to ADP in this Agreement, all rights, title and interests in and to
Client Content, including all Intellectual Property Rights inherent therein and pertaining thereto, are owned exclusively by
Client or its licensors. Client hereby grants to ADP for the term of this Agreement a non-exclusive, worldwide, non-
transferable, royalty-free license to use, edit, modify, adapt, translate, exhibit, publish, reproduce, copy and display the Client
Content for the sole purpose of performing the Services; provided Client has the right to pre-approve the use by ADP of any
Client trademarks or service marks.

ADP IP Rights. Except for the rights expressly granted to Client in this Agreement, all rights, title and interest in and to the
Services, including all Intellectual Property Rights inherent therein and pertaining thereto, are owned exclusively by ADP or
its licensors. ADP grants to Client for the term of this Agreement a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free
license to use and access the ADP Application Programs solely for the Internal Business Purposes in the United States and
Canada. The ADP Application Programs do not include any Client-specific customizations unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the parties. Client will not obscure, alter or remove any copyright, trademark, service mark or proprietary rights notices on
any materials provided by ADP in connection with the Services, and will not copy, decompile, recompile, disassemble, reverse
engineer, or make or distribute any other form of, or any derivative work from, such ADP materials.

Ownership of Reports. Client will retain ownership of the content of reports and other materials that include Client Content
produced and delivered by ADP as a part of the Services, provided that ADP will be the owner of the format of such reports.
To the extent any such reports or other materials incorporate any ADP proprietary information, ADP (i) retains sole ownership
of such proprietary information and (if) provides the Client a fully paid up, irrevocable, perpetual, royalty-free license to access
and use same for its Internal Business Purposes without the right to create derivative works (other than derivative works to be
used solely for its Internal Business Purposes) or to further distribute any of the foregoing rights outside the Client Group.
Improvements. ADP will make available to Client, at no additional cost, software improvements, enhancements, or updates
to any ADP Application Programs that are included in the Services (collectively “Improvements”) if and as they are made
generally available by ADP at no additional cost to ADP’s other clients using the same ADP Application Programs as Client
and receiving the same Services as Client. All Improvements provided under this Section 5.4 shall be considered part of the

ADP Application Programs.

6 Indemnities

6.1

6.2

ADP Indemnity. Subject to the remainder of this Section 6.1, and Sections 6.3 and 7, ADP will defend Client against any
third party claims and will indemnify and held Client harmless from any resulting damage awards or settlement amounts in
any cause of action to the extent such cause of action is based on a claim alleging that the Services or ADP Application
Programs, as provided by ADP and used in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, infringe upon any Intellectual
Property Rights of a third party in the United States. The foregoing infringement indemnity will not apply and ADP will not be
liable for any damages assessed in any cause of action to the extent resulting from a Client Infringement Event or ADP’s use
of Client Content as contemplated by this Agreement. If any Service is held or believed to infringe on any third-party’s
Intellectual Property Rights, ADP may, in its sole discretion, (i) modify the Service to be non-infringing, (ii) obtain a license to
continue using such Service, or (iii) if neither (i) nor (i) are practical, terminate this Agreement as to the infringing Service and
return to Client any unearned fees prepaid by Client to ADP.

Client Indemnity. Subject to Sections 6.3 and 7, Client will defend ADP against any third party claims and will indemnify and
hold ADP harmless from any resulting damage awards or settlement amounts in any cause of action to the extent such cause
of action is based on the occurrence of a Client Infringement Event or ADP’s use of Client Content as contemplated by this

Agreement.
ADP Workforce Now

ADP Proprietary and Confidential
A-4

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions =

6.3

Indemnity Conditions. The indemnities set forth in this Agreement are conditioned on the following: (i) the party claiming
indemnification (the “Indemnitee”) shall promptly notify the indemnifying party (the ‘Indemnitor”) of any matters in respect of
which it seeks to be indemnified, and shall give the Indemnitor full cooperation and opportunity to control the response thereto
and the defense thereof, including without limitation any settlement thereof, (i) the Indemnitor shall have no obligation for any
claim under this Agreement if the Indemnitee makes any admission, settlement or other communication regarding such claim
without the prior written consent of the Indemnitor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and (jii) the Indemnitee’s
failure to promptly give notice to the Indemnitor shall affect the Indemnitor’s obligation to indemnify the Indemnitee only to the
extent the Indemnitor’s rights are materially prejudiced by such failure. The Indemnitee may participate, at its own expense,
in such defense and in any settlement discussions directly or through counsel of its choice.

7  Limit on Liability

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Ordinary Cap. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and subject to the remainder of this Section 7,

neither party's aggregate limit on monetary damages in any calendar year shall exceed an amount equal to six (8) times the

average ongoing monthly Services fees paid or payable to ADP by Client during such calendar year for all Services (the

“Ordinary Cap”).

Extraordinary Cap. As an exception to Section 7.1, if damages arise from a breach of Section 4.1 (Confidentiality),

Section 9.3 (Data Security) or Section 9.4 (Unauthorized Third Party Access), the Ordinary Cap will be increased by an

additional six (6) times the average ongoing monthly Service fees paid or payable to ADP by Client during such calendar year

for all Services (the “Extraordinary Cap”). For the avoidance of doubt, in no case shall either party’s aggregate limit on
monetary damages in any calendar year under this Agreement exceed twelve (12) times the average monthly ongoing Service
fees paid or payable to ADP by Client during such calendar year for all Services.

Matters not Subject to Either Cap. The foregoing limits on liability shall not apply to the following:

7.3.1  Either party’s Gross Negligence, or willful, criminal or fraudulent misconduct; for the purposes of this Agreement,
“Gross Negligence” shall be defined as: (1) willful, wanton, careless or reckless conduct, misconduct, failures,
omissions, or disregard of the duty of care towards others of a risk known or so obvious that the actor must be taken
to have been aware of it, and with an intent to injure or so great as to make it highly probable that harm would follow
and/or (2) failure to use even the slightest amount of care, or conduct so reckless, as to demonstrate a substantial
lack of concern for the safety of others. For the avoidance of doubt, Gross Negligence must be more than any mere
mistake resulting from inexperience, excitement, or confusion, and more than mere thoughtlessness or inadvertence
or simple inattention;

7.3.2  The infringement indemnity set forth in Sections 6.1 and 6.2;

7.3.3  Client's obligations to pay the fees for Services;

7.3.4  ADP’s obligations to provide credit monitoring as set forth in Section 10.2;

7.3.5  Client's funding obligations in connection with the Payment Services;

7.3.6  Loss or misdirection of Client funds in possession or control of ADP due to ADP’s error or omission;

7.3.7  In connection with the ADP Employment Tax Services set forth in Annex B, (i) interest charges imposed by an
applicable tax authority on Client for the failure by ADP to pay funds to the extent and for the period that such funds
were held by ADP and (ii) all tax penalties resulting from ADP’s error or omission in the performance of such Service.
The provisions of this Section 7.3.7 shall only apply if (x) Client permits ADP to act on Client's behalf in any
communications and negotiations with the applicable taxing authority that is seeking to impose any such penalties
or interest and (y) Client assists ADP as reasonably required by ADP; and

7.3.8  Client's biometrics indemnity set forth in Annex C.

Mitigation of Damages. ADP and Client will each use reasonable efforts to mitigate any potential damages or other adverse

consequences arising from or relating to the Services.

No Consequential Damages. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT AND ONLY

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, NONE OF ADP, CLIENT OR ANY BANK WILL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR OTHER SIMILAR DAMAGES (INCLUDING DAMAGES

FOR LOSS OF BUSINESS OR PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTIONS OR HARM TO REPUTATION) THAT ANY OTHER

PARTY OR ITS RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES MAY INCUR OR EXPERIENCE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT

OR THE SERVICES, HOWEVER CAUSED AND UNDER WHATEVER THEORY OF LIABILITY, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY

HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. The foregoing exclusion shall not apply to claims for

consequential damages arising from (i) ADP’s or Client's Gross Negligence orwillful, criminal or fraudulent misconduct,

(i) Client or Client’s Users sharing or allowing access to a User’s password, User ID, or other form of user authentication, or

(iiiy ADP’s or Client's breach or breaches of Section 4.1 or Section 9.3 under this Agreement; provided however, that any

consequential damages recovered by Client or ADP in a calendar year for claims pursuant to Sections 7.5(ii) and 7.5(jii) will

be subject to the Extraordinary Cap set forth in Section 7.2 above.

8 Warranties and Disclaimers

8.1

8.2

Warranties. Each party warrants that (i) it has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and (i) this Agreement has been duly and validly executed and
delivered and constitutes the valid and binding agreement of the parties, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, ALL SERVICES, ADP APPLICATION
PROGRAMS AND EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY ADP OR ITS SUPPLIERS ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND ADP AND ITS
LICENSORS AND SUPPLIERS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, COMPLETENESS, CURRENTNESS, NON-INFRINGEMENT, NON-INTERRUPTION OF USE, AND FREEDOM

ADP Workforce Now

ADP Proprietary and Confidential
A-5

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions p

FROM PROGRAM ERRORS, VIRUSES OR ANY OTHER MALICIOUS CODE, WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES, THE
ADP APPLICATION PROGRAMS, ANY CUSTOM PROGRAMS CREATED BY ADP OR ANY THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE

DELIVERED BY ADP AND RESULTS OBTAINED THROUGH THE USE THEREOF.

9 Security and Controls

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Service Organization Control Reports. Following completion of implementation of any applicable Services, ADP will, at
Client's request and at no charge, provide Client with copies of any SOC 1 Reports (or any successor reports thereto) directly
related to the core ADP Application Programs utilized to provide the Services provided hereunder for Client and already
released to ADP by the public accounting firm producing the report. SOC 1 Reports are ADP Confidential Information and
Client will not distribute or allow any third party (other than its independent auditors) to use any such report without the prior
written consent of ADP.  Client will instruct its independent auditors or other approved third parties to keep such report
confidential and Client will remain liable for any unauthorized disclosure of such report by its independent auditors or other

approved third parties.
Business Continuity; Disaster Recovery. ADP has established and will maintain a commercially reasonable business

continuity and disaster recovery plan and will follow such plan.

Data Security. ADP has an established information security program containing appropriate administrative, technical and
physical measures to protect Client data (including Personal Data) against accidental, unlawful or unauthorized destruction,
alteration, unauthorized disclosure or access consistent with applicable laws. In the event ADP suspects any unauthorized
access to, or use of, the Services, including the ADP Application Programs, ADP may suspend access to the Services to the
extent ADP deems necessary to preserve the security of ADP, Client or User data.

Unauthorized Third Party Access. Client and its Users are responsible for maintaining the security and confidentiality of any
password, User ID, or other form of user authentication involved in obtaining access to the Services, including the
ADP Application Programs, and Client and its Users shall not disclose any confidential account access credentials or related

information to Unauthorized Third Parties.

10 Data Security Breach
10.1 Notification. If ADP becomes aware of a Data Security Breach of Client's Personal Data, ADP will take appropriate actions

10.2

to contain, investigate and mitigate the Data Security Breach. ADP shall notify Client without undue delay after becoming
aware that a Data Security Breach has occurred, unless otherwise required or instructed by law enforcement or regulatory
authority. ADP will share information in its possession with Client for Client to determine any regulatory reporting obligations
required by applicable law.

Other ADP Obligations. In the event that a Data Security Breach is the result of the failure of ADP to comply with the terms
of this Agreement, ADP shall, to the extent legally required or otherwise necessary to notify the individuals of potential harm,
bear the actual, reasonable costs of notifying affected individuals. ADP and Client shall mutually agree on the content and
timing of any such netifications, in good faith and as needed to meet applicable legal requirements. In addition, where
notifications are required and where such monitoring is practicable and customary, ADP shall also bear the cost of one year
of credit monitoring to affected individuals in applicable jurisdictions.

11 Payment Terms

1.1

1.5
11.6

Fees and Fee Adjustments. Client will pay to ADP the fees and other charges for the Services as set forth in the Sales
Order. ADP may modify the fees on an annual basis upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Client. The fees presented
in the Sales Order were calculated based upon particular assumptions relative to Client requirements (including funding
requirements), specifications, volumes and quantities as reflected in the applicable Sales Order and related documentation,
and if Client's actual requirements vary from what is stated, ADP may adjust the fees based on such changes. The fees do
not include any customizations to any Service.

Additional Services and Charges. If Client requests additional services offered by ADP not included in this Agreement, and
ADP agrees to provide such services: (i) those services and related fees will be included in a separate Sales Order:; (i) any
Services provided to Client but not included in a Sales Order will be provided subject to the terms of this Agreement and
charged at the applicable rates as they occur; and (iii) those services will be considered to be “Services” for purposes of this
Agreement. Additional charges may be assessed to Client in relation to the performance of the Services in certain
circumstances, including without limitation, late funding, an insufficient funds notification and emergency payment requests
from Client.

Fees for Implementation Services. Implementation fees are due and payable by Client upon the Go-Live Date for such
Services. However, if (i) this Agreement or any Service is terminated after implementation Services have started but before
the applicable Go-Live Date or (i) Client fails to reasonably cooperate with ADP in connection with the implementation Services
such that ADP is unable to complete such implementation Services, then ADP may terminate this Agreement or any Service
upon written notice to Client and, in each case, thirty percent (30%) of the total non-discounted implementation fees set forth
in the Sales Order shall be immediately due and payable by Client.

Invoicing. ADP will notify Client of all applicable Services fees payable by Client by way of invoice or other method (i.e.
ADP’s on-line reporting tool). Client will pay the amount on each invoice or such other similar document in full pursuant to the
agreed upon method of payment set forth in the Sales Order. All amounts not paid when due are subject to a late payment
charge of one and one-half percent (1%2%) per month (not to exceed the maximum allowed by applicable law) of the past due

amount from the due date until the date paid.

Currency. Client shall pay the fees in US dollars.
Taxes. Unless Client provides ADP a valid tax exemption or direct pay certificate, Client will pay directly, or will pay to ADP,

an amount equal to all applicable taxes or similar fees levied or based on the Agreement or the Services, exclusive of taxes
ADP Workforce Now

ADP Proprietary and Confidential
A-6

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions -

12

13

14

11.7

Term;
121

12.2

123

based on ADP's net income.
Postage, Shipping, Travel and Out-of-Pocket Expenses. ADP will invoice Client for postage charges, delivery charges,

other third party charges, reasonable preapproved travel expenses, and travel-related out-of-pocket expenses, as necessary
to provide the Services.

Funding Requirements and Disbursement Disclosures. With respect to Payment Services to be deducted by ACH or Pre-
Authorized Debit, Client must have sufficient good funds for payment of the payroll obligations, tax filing obligations, wage
garnishment deduction obligations, service fees (as applicable), expenses, and any other applicable charges, to be direct
debited from Client’s designated account no later than one (1) banking day prior to the pay date for the applicable payroll (in
the case of payroll processing services), or as otherwise agreed by the parties. For reverse wire clients, funds must be
available (a) one (1) banking day prior to the pay date for the applicable payroll (in the case of the ADP Employment Tax
Services) and (b) two (2) banking days prior to the pay date for all other Payment Services, or as otherwise agreed by the
parties. In consideration for the additional costs incurred by ADP in providing wire transfer service, Client agrees to pay a
reasonable fee (currently $10.00) for each wire transfer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ADP reserves the right to modify the
aforementioned deadlines at any time and will communicate any such modifications to Client.

Change Control. In the event either party requests a change in the scope of Services (including implementation services) or
any rework is required by ADP as a result of a delay by Client in implementation of any Services (each a “Change Control
Item’), the parties shall address such change request, if possible via ADP’s change control process. Change Control ltems
and the cost associated with such changes (if any) to the Services shall be mutually agreed to by the parties and shall be
defined in a statement of work agreed to by the parties, with the exceptions of Change Control Items that are required to be
made by law or regulation applicable to the Services or to the duration of implementation services, which ADP will notify Client

of prior to making the change.

Termination; Suspension
Term; Termination for Convenience This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and remain in effect until

terminated by either party in accordance with the terms hereof. Either party may terminate this Agreement or any Service
upon ninety (90} days’ prior written notice to the other party (except as otherwise set forth in any Annex herein).
Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement for the other's material breach of this Agreement if such
breach is not cured within sixty (60) days following notice thereof or in the event either party is the subject of a Termination
Event. In addition, ADP may terminate this Agreement in the event Client fails to timely pay fees for Services performed within
ten (10) days following notice that such fees are past due. ADP may also terminate this Agreement or the Services immediately
on written notice to Client if the provision of Service to Client causes or will cause ADP or its Affiliates to be in violation of any
laws, rules or regulations applicable to it including any sanction laws applicable to ADP or any Affiliate.

Suspension. Without limiting the foregoing, the parties agree that Payment Services involve credit risk to ADP. Payment
Services may be suspended by ADP (A) immediately if: (i) Client has failed to remit sufficient, good and available funds within
the deadline and via the method of delivery agreed upon as it relates to the applicable Payment Services; or (ii) Client breaches
any rules promulgated by NACHA as it relates to ADP conducting electronic payment transactions on behalf of Client, and
(B} with 24 hour notice if: (i) a bank notifies ADP that it is no longer willing to originate debits from Client’s account(s) or credits
for Client's behalf for any reason or (i) the authorization to debit Client's account is terminated or ADP reasonably believes
that there is or has been fraudulent activity on the account. If the Payment Services are terminated or suspended pursuant
to Sections 12.2 or 12.3, Client acknowledges that ADP shall be entitled to allocate any funds in ADP’s possession that have
been previously remitted or otherwise made avaitable by Client to ADP relative to the Payment Services in such priorities as
ADP may determine appropriate, including reimbursing ADP for payments made by ADP on Client’s behalf to a third party. If
the Payment Services are terminated by ADP, Client understands that it will (x) immediately become solely responsible for alf
of Client’s third party payment obligations covered by the Payment Services then or thereafter due (including, without limitation,
for ADP Employment Tax Services any and all penalties and interest accruing after the date of such termination, other than
penalties and interest for which ADP is responsible under Section 7.3.7), and (y) reimburse ADP for all payments properly
made by ADP on behalf of Client to any payee, which have not been paid or reimbursed by Client. If the Payment Services
remain suspended for thirty (30) days, the Payment Services will be terminated on the 31st day following suspension.

Post Termination.
13.1 Post Termination. At any time prior to the termination of Client's access to the ADP Application Programs, Client may

13.2

download Client's information or reports available to it in conjunction with all of the Services provided to Client by ADP. Under
no circumstances will ADP be required to provide any third party with access to the ADP Application Programs, ADP’s
intellectual property or any Confidential Information of ADP.

Past Due Amounts. If ADP has terminated this Agreement due to Client's failure to pay fees, ADP’s obligations in
Section 13.1 will be subject to Client's payment of all past due amounts and ADP may require Client to prepay for any Services.

Additional Terms. In addition to the terms set forth in any subsequent Annexes attached hereto, the following terms shall apply.
14.1 ESS & MSS Technology. Employee self-service (ESS) and Manager self-service (MSS) functionality provides all Client

Users (practitioners, managers and employees) 24x7 online access to ADP Application Programs. The following additional

terms apply to the ESS & MSS Technology:

14.1.1 Client acknowledges that Client's employees or participants may input information into the self-service portions of
the ADP Application Programs. ADP shall have no responsibility to verify, nor does ADP review, the accuracy or
completeness of the information provided by Client's employees or participants to ADP using any self-service
features. ADP shall be entitled to rely upon such information in the performance of the Services under this Agreement

__as if such information was provided to ADP by Client directly.

ADP Workforce Now

ADP Proprietary ;nd Confidential
04232024 A-T7



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions .

14.2 ADP Marketplace and Use of ADP APIs. ADP Marketplace enables Ciient to build applications and/or purchase available

applications via an online store and provides access to certain Client data stored in ADP systems via industry-standard

Application Programming Interfaces (APIs). The following additional terms apply to the ADP Marketplace (applies only if Client

accesses ADP Marketplace Services):

14.2.1 Disclaimer. ADP may provide Client with access to the ADP Marketplace. Client acknowledges that any third party
application or service purchased by Client through the ADP Marketplace is provided by a third party and not ADP
and ADP makes no endorsements, representations or warranties (including any representations or warranties
regarding compliance with laws) regarding such application or service. Client will enter into a relationship directly
with the third party provider of such application or service. Any application or service purchased through the ADP
Marketplace will be governed exclusively by the terms and conditions agreed to by Client and the third party provider
and not by this Agreement. ADP will not provide any advice, service or support with respect to any third party
application or service purchased on the ADP Marketplace.

14.2.2 Transmitting Information to Third Parties. In the event that Client elects to use an API to provide any Client
Content or employee or plan participant information to any third party, Client represents that it has acquired any
consents or provided any notices required to transfer such content or information and that such transfer does not
violate any applicable international, federal, state, or local laws and/or regulations. ADP shall not be responsible for
any services or data provided by any such third party.

14.2.3 Use of the ADP APIs. Client will use the ADP APIs to access Client’s information only. Client may not use any
robot, spider, or other automated process to scrape, crawl, or index the ADP Marketplace and will integrate Client's
application with the ADP Marketplace only through documented APls expressly made available by ADP. Client also
agrees that Client will not (a) use the ADP Marketplace or any ADP API to transmit spam or other unsolicited email;
(b) take any action that may impose an unreasonable or disproportionately large load on the ADP infrastructure, as
determined by ADP; or (c) use the ADP APIs or the ADP Marketplace in any way that threatens the integrity,
performance or reliability of the ADP Marketplace, Services or ADP infrastructure. ADP may limit the number of
requests that Client can make to the ADP API gateway to protect ADP’s system or to enforce reasonable limits on
Client's use of the ADP APIs. Specific throttling limits may be imposed and modified from time to time by ADP.

15 Miscellaneous

151
15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

16.7

15.8

15.9

Amendment. This Agreement may not be modified, supplemented or amended, except by a writing signed by the authorized
representatives of ADP and Client.
Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any of the rights or obligations under this Agreement, may be assigned by any
party without the prior written consent of the other party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. However, Client may
assign any or all of its rights and obligations to any other Client Group member and ADP may assign any or all of its rights
and obligations to any Affiliate of ADP, provided that any such assignment shall not release the assigning party from its
obligations under this Agreement. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.
Additional Documentation. In order for ADP to perform the Services, it may be necessary for Client to execute and deliver
additional documents (including reporting agent authorization, client account agreement, limited powers of attorney, etc.) and
Client agrees to execute and deliver such additional documents.
Subcontracting. Notwithstanding Section 15.2, ADP reserves the right to subcontract any or all of the Services, provided
that ADP remains fully responsible under this Agreement for the performance of any such subcontractor. For the avoidance
of doubt, third parties used by ADP to provide delivery or courier services, including the postal service in any country or any
third party courier service, and banking institutions, are not considered subcontractors of ADP.
Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between ADP and Client with
respect to its subject matter and merges and supersedes all prior discussions, agreements and understandings of every kind
and nature between the parties. No party will be bound by any representation, warranty, covenant, term or condition
other than as expressly stated in this Agreement. Except where the parties expressly state otherwise in a relevant exhibit,
annex, appendix or schedule, in case of conflict or inconsistency between this Annex A and any such exhibit, annex, appendix
or schedule, this Annex A will prevail and control. Purchase orders or statements of work submitted to ADP by Client will be
for Client's internal administrative purposes only and the terms and conditions contained in any purchase order or statements
of work will have no force and effect and will not amend or modify this Agreement.
No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly provided herein or in an applicable exhibit, annex, appendix or schedule,
nothing in this Agreement creates, or will be deemed to create, third party beneficiaries of or under this Agreement. Client
agrees that ADP's obligations in this Agreement are to Client only, and ADP has no obligation to any third party (including,
without limitation, Client's personnel, directors, officers, employees, Users and any administrative authorities).
Force Majeure. Any party to this Agreement will be excused from performance of its obligations under this Agreement, except
for Client's obligation to pay the fees to ADP pursuant to Section 11, for any period of time that the party is prevented from
performing its obligations under this Agreement due to an act of God, war, earthquake, civil disobedience, court order, labor
disputes or disturbances, governmental regulations, communication or utility failures or other cause beyond the party's
reasonable control. Such non-performance will not constitute grounds for breach.
Waiver. The failure by any party to this Agreement to insist upon strict performance of any provision of this Agreement will
not constitute a waiver of that provision. The waiver of any provision of this Agreement shali only be effective if made in writing
signed by the authorized representatives of ADP and Client and shall not operate or be construed to waive any future omission
or breach of, or compliance with, any other provision of this Agreement.
Headings. The headings used in this Agreement are for reference only and do not define, limit, or otherwise affect the
meaning of any provisions hereof.

ADP Workforce Now

ADP Proprietary and Confidential
A-8

04232024



ADP Workforce Now | Annex A

General Terms and Conditions 5

15.10 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is finally determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement will not in any way be affected
or impaired and such court shall have the authority to modify such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision to the extent
necessary to render such provision valid, legal or enforceable, preserving the intent of the parties to the furthest extent
permissible.

15.11 Relationship of the Parties. The performance by ADP of its duties and obligations under this Agreement will be that of an
independent contractor and nothing contained in this Agreement will create, construe or imply an agency, joint venture,
partnership or fiduciary relationship of any kind between ADP and Client. None of ADP's employees, agents or subcontractors
will be considered employees, agents or subcontractors of Client. Unless expressly stated in this Agreement, none of ADP,
its employees, agents or its subcontractors may enter into contracts on behalf of, bind, or otherwise obligate Client in any

manner whatsoever.
15.12 Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New York without giving effect to its conflict of law

provisions.

15.13 Jurisdiction. Any disputes that may arise between ADP and Client regarding the performance or interpretation of this
Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts of New York, New York. The parties
hereby irrevocably consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts of New York, New York and waive any
claim that any proceedings brought in such courts have been brought in an inconvenient forum. THE PARTIES HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.

15.14 Communications to U.S. Based Employees. Client agrees that ADP may use Client's U.S.-based employee and/or
participant name, email and mailing address to provide information about products and/or services offered by ADP directly
such employees and/or participants. Client may elect for ADP to cease such communications upon 30 days' prior written
notice. In addition, each communication sent by ADP will comply with applicable laws and will enable the recipient to opt-out
of receiving additional similar communications from ADP

15.15 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts by original, .pdf (or similar format for scanned
copies of documents) or facsimile signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

15.16 Notices. All notices required to be sent or given under this Agreement will be sent in writing and will be deemed duly given
and effective (i) immediately if delivered in person, or (ii} upon confirmation of signature recording delivery, if sent via an
internationally recognized overnight courier service with signature notification requested to Client at the address indicated on
the signature page hereof or to ADP at 99 Jefferson Road, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054, Attention: Legal Department or to
any other address a party may identify in writing from time to time. A copy (which shall not constitute notice) of all such notices
shall be sent to ADP at One ADP Boulevard, MS 425, Roseland, New Jersey 07068, Attention: General Counsel.

15.17 Survival. Those provisions which by their content are intended to, or by their nature would, survive the performance,
termination, or expiration of this Agreement, shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.

ADP Proprietary and Confidential ADP Workforce Now
A-9

04232024



Data Privacy Appendix

This Data Privacy Appendix is a data processing agreement under Applicable Law and supplements the Agreement, between ADP and
Client. Capitalized terms throughout this Data Privacy Appendix not defined in the Agreement are defined in the ADP Privacy Glossary at
www.adp.com/-/media/adp/privacy/pdf/glossary_en.pdf, provided, however, that the relevant definitions (or equivalent terms) under
Applicable Law will supersede both the Agreement and ADP Privacy Glossary terms in the event of a conflict.

PART | - GENERAL

1. Client Obligations. Client shall only provide ADP with Client Personal Data that: (a) is required to perform the Services; (b) has been
collected in accordance with Applicable Law, including obtaining any needed consent from Client Employees, where appilicable; and (c) Client

has and will maintain authority to provide such data under Applicable Law.

2. ADP Obligations. Client is disclosing Client Personal Data to ADP only for the limited and specified business purposes as set forth
in the Agreement, associated statements of work and/or any subsequent amendments. ADP, as a Data Processor (or equivalent term under
Applicable Law), will comply with Applicable Law for Processing Client Personal Data pursuant to the Agreement. ADP will not: (a) “sell” or
“share” Client Personal Data; (b) retain, use, disclose or otherwise Process Client Personal Data outside of ADP’s direct business relationship
with Client or for any commercial or other purpose other than the business purposes specified in the agreement(s) between Client and ADP,
except as permitted by Applicable Law; or (c) combine Client Personal Data with personal data that ADP receives from, or on behalf of, other
persons, or collects from ADP's own interaction with a consumer, except as pemitted under Applicable Law. ADP will provide the same
level of privacy protection for Client Personal Data as required of Client under Applicable Law. ADP has the right to Process Client Personal
Data in order to comply with ADP’s legal obligations (e.g., compliance with sanction laws) or in order to prevent, detect or investigate fraud.

ADP employees, contingent workers and Subprocessors are authorized to Process Client Personal Data to the extent necessary to provide
the Services and as permitted under the Agreement and by Applicable Law.

3. Anonymization and Agaregation. In addition to any rights granted to ADP in Section-4 of in the Agreement to use aggregated or
anonymized data, ADP will not attempt to, and will not, re-identify any Client Personal Data that has been “anonymized.” For the purposes
of this Data Privacy Appendix and Agreement, anonymized data (which includes de-identified data under applicable US Privacy Law(s))
means data that cannot be used to identify an individual, directly or indirectly, by any means reasonably likely to be used in accordance with
Applicable Law. The process of “de-identification” under applicable US Privacy Law(s) has the same effect on Client Personal Data as
anonymization. ADP will implement reasonable measures to ensure that anonymized or aggregated data has no reasonably foreseeable

risk of being re-identified and associated with Client or any individual.

4. Transfers to Subprocessors. ADP may transfer Client Personal Data to ADP Subprocessors and Third Party Subprocessors located
outside of the country or region where Client Personal Data was initially collected (collectively “Subprocessors"). ADP will establish
appropriate safeguards with Subprocessors to ensure the adequate protection of Client Personal Data. Third Party Subprocessors are bound
by written contracts with ADP thatimpose data protection terms that are not less protective than those imposed by this Data Privacy Appendix.

An up-to-date list of ADP Subprocessors and Third Parly Subprocessors, including locations, is accessible at
https://thebridae.adp.com/workforce-now/adpr/m/media/634. Such list may be updated from time to time.

5. Compliance Obligations. ADP will notify Client if ADP makes a determination that it can no longer meet its Processing obligations
under Applicable Law.
Client may, upon providing written notice to ADP, take reasonable steps to stop and remediate unauthorized Processing of Client Personal

Data.

6. Client Instructions. When receiving a Client instruction regarding the Processing of Personal Data, ADP will notify Client if ADP
considers such instruction to violate Applicable Law; however, ADP is not obliged to and will not perform a legal examination with respect to

a Client instruction.

7. Assistance. ADP will assist Client with Client’s data privacy obligations where required under Applicable Law, including assisting
Client in responding to and addressing Client Employee individual rights requests, and complaints concerning Client Personal Data
Processed by ADP in connection with the Services. ADP will also provide Client with relevant information for conducting data protection
impact or risk assessments, (including transfer impact assessments) and any other assessments or reassessments required by Applicable
Law or competent regulatory authorities. ADP reserves the right to charge for such assistance rendered. If ADP receives an individual rights
request or complaint directly from a Client Employee, ADP shall promptly forward the Client Employee request to Client.

8. Client Audit. ADP will answer questions asked by Client regarding the Processing of Client Personal Data by ADP. In the event
Client reasonably considers that the answers provided by ADP justify further analysis or are necessary to demonstrate compliance with this

DPA, ADP will:

{a) provide security materials known as ADP’s trust package (which includes security policy and standards overview, password summary,
resiliency program summary, disaster recovery program overview, data center and hosting service summary and a third-party risk
management executive summary), that details ADP’s business processes and procedures for the Processing of Client Personal Data;

and

{b) where legally required under applicable Privacy Laws, if Client reasonably considers that the documents provided by ADP justify further
analysis, make the facilities ADP uses to Process Client Personal Data available for an audit by a qualified independent third-party
assessor reasonably acceptable to ADP, bound by confidentiality obligations satisfactory to ADP and engaged by Client. Client will
provide a copy of the audit report to ADP's Global Chief Privacy Officer which will be ADP Confidential Information. Audits shall be

1




conducted no more than once per year during the term of the Agreement during regular business hours and will be subject to (i} a written
request submitted to ADP at least 45 days in advance of the proposed audit date; (i) a detailed written audit plan reviewed and approved
in advance by ADP's security organization; and (iii) ADP’s on-site security policies. Such audits will take place only in the presence of a
representative of ADP's global security office, ADP’s global data privacy & governance team, or such person designated by the
appropriate ADP representative. The audits shall not be permitted to disrupt ADP’s Processing activities or compromise the security and
confidentiality of Personal Data pertaining to other ADP Clients. ADP will charge Client a reasonable fee for such audit.

9. Personal Data Return and Deletion. Upon termination of the Agreement, ADP shall comply with its contractual obligations regarding
the return of Client Personal Data (if Client Personal Data has not been previously returned to Client, or is not otherwise accessible to Client
through the relevant product functionality or features for the Services, such as the ability to download the Client Personal Data) and shall
delete Client Personal Data in accordance with ADP’s then current applicable records retention schedule. ADP shall address Client's request
to delete Client Personal Data before the records retention period has ended to the extent feasible and at a reasonable cost to Client. ADP
may maintain Archive copies of Client Personal Data, to the extent required under Applicable Law, as authorized by Client in writing, or as

needed for dispute resolution purposes.

PART Il - GDPR/UK GDPR

10. Scope. This Part Il applies solely with respect to Client Personal Data subject to Regulation (EU) 2016/679 on the protection of
natural persons with regard to the processing of Personal Data and on the free movement of such data ("General Data Protection Regulations”
or “GDPR") and as transposed into United Kingdom national law by operation of section 3 of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 and
as amended by the Data Protection, Privacy and Electronic Communications (Amendments etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 (‘UK GDPR").
With respect to ADP’s processing of Client Personal Data subject to GDPR and/or UK GDPR, the EU and UK Binding Corporate Rules
("BCR”) for Client Data Processing Services (the “ADP Privacy Code(s)"), located at ADP_Privacy (https:/iwww.adp.com/-
/media/adp/privacy/pdf/berpe_en.pdf and ukberpe_en.pdf (adp.com)), govern(s) as applicable. ADP has obtained EU and UK authorization
of its ADP Privacy Code(s).

11. International Transfers. For transfers outside of the EEA, Switzerland and United Kingdom, the ADP Privacy Code(s) serve(s) as
the legal basis for the data transfer to an ADP Group Company or between ADP and an ADP Subprocessor, which Client acknowledges and
accepts. ADP shall enter into appropriate contractual agreements, such as standard contractual clauses, or rely upon any other lawful transfer
mechanism prior to transferring Client Personal Data to a Third Party Subprocessor or to an ADP company when the ADP Privacy Code(s)
do(es) not apply.

12. Additional Subprocessor Obligations. Within 30 days of a written update (including electronic notice) by ADP to Client adding a new
Subprocessor, Client may object to such new Subprocessor by providing written notice to ADP alleging objective justifiable grounds that such
Subprocessor is unable to protect Client Personal Data. If the parties cannot reach a mutually acceptable solution, ADP shall, at its option,
either: (a) not allow the Subprocessor to access Client Personal Data; or (b) allow Client to terminate the relevant Services in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement.

13. ADP Privacy Code(s) EU and UK Authorization. ADP will make commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the EU and the UK
authorization of its ADP Privacy Code(s) for the duration of the Agreement and will promptly notify Client of any subsequent material changes
in the EU or UK authorization of its ADP Privacy Code(s).

PART lil - Miscellaneous

14. Order of Precedence. In the event of a conflict between the Agreement, this Data Privacy Appendix, the ADP Privacy Code(s) and
Applicable Law, then the conflict will be resolved by giving effect to such in the following order of precedence: (a) Applicable Law; (b) the

ADP Privacy Code(s); (c) this Data Privacy Appendix; and {(d) the Agreement.

15. Scope. This Data Privacy Appendix provides no additional rights to a Client Employee that are not already provided under the
Applicable Law to which the Client Employee is subject.

0424 Global DPA v. 2.3



{ Pennsylvania Locations:
Harrisburg, PA » Philadelphia, PA « Pittsburgh, PA  Witkes-Barre, PA
T ™y

STE PH E NSON New York Locations: Maryland Location: 8‘ -
EQUIPMENT, INC. | Abany, NY - Syracuse, NY Aberdeen, MD (Service Only) =Y / 28/9-02'{

Phone: 717-564-3434 Fax: 717-564-7580 Toll Free: 800-325-6455

Corporate Office: 7201 Paxton Street Harrisburg, PA 17111
Fax: 315-432-0676 Toll Free: 800-368-6

Syracuse Office: 6018 Drott Drive Syracuse, NY 13057 Phone: 315-432-0779

5/22/24

Village of Lancaster
Lancaster, New York
Attn: Brian Lubkowski

Brian,

Please see the quote for a remaining stock R-52 RC mower. If not secured and a new order was
required delivery is 3-4 weeks from point of order.

SALE PRICE:
2024 R-52 RC Mower Tracked 52" Rotary Mower, 27 hp Kawasaki $61,000.00
EFI Engine, 50° Max Slope, Light kit,
4,500# winch and Tablet. New Updated Model

1 in Stock (Syracuse)

*NOTE: A new model R-60 (60”) RC Mower, same spec. (38.5 H.P. Kawasaki)
is an additional +$3000.00 (Or $64,000.00).
Rental Purchase $64,000.00 — 3 months rent @ $4,700.00 per month
= Balance of $49,900.00.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote. Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Best,

Tim Garrett
SEI WNY Territory Manager
585-261-5431 - Tgarrett@stephensonequipment.com




Phone 716-683-1028
Fax 716-683-1029

www.lancastervillage.org

Village of Lancaster Department of Public
Works

5200 Broadway Lancaster, New York 14086-2097

Wayne Cisca
Superintendent of Public Works
E-Mait wascolet fancatervitlape.org

May 23, 2024

Village of Lancaster
Attn: Michael Stegmeier
5423 Broadway
Lancaster, NY 14086

RE: Sofe Provider Information
Honorable Members of the Village Board,

The R-52 RC Mower is the only suitable unit for our needs due to it being a ‘finish’ mower, the 74” width will
fit on the trailers in our fleet, can mow up to a 50-degree slope, and more. Through our research, we have
only found one provider for RC Mowers in the area. We have attached a letter directly from RC Mowers
explaining that Stephenson Equipment is the sole source provider of these units in New York State. Please
feel free to browse their authorized vendors on the RC Mowers website.

(https:/ /www.remowersusa.com/ pages /dealer-locator)

any questions or concerns, please contact me directly.

Wayne Cisco

Village of Lancaster

Superintendent of Public Works

5200 Broadway, Lancaster, NY 14086
(716) 683-1028 x 302



RC MOWERS » REDEFIHING THE BUSIHESS OF MO IH i

June 8, 2023

RE: RC Mowers - Single Source

To Whom it May Concern:

Thank you for your interest in RC Mowers. Our products are designed to mow steep slopes
and difficult terrain safely and efficiently, solving age-old grounds maintenance problems with
a high-tech and innovative solution.

Please note that Stephenson Equipment is the Authorized Dealer and the sole source of RC
Mowers products for the State of New York.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to reach out to me directly.
Sincerely,

Jessica Korthals

[ Sales Operations Manager ]
RCMOWERSUSA.COM
480-848-8904 direct
920-634-2227 office

2146 E Deerfield Ave / Suamico, Wi 54173 920-634-2227 www.rcmowersusa.com



RC MOWERS

R-52

THIS BEAUTY IS A BEAST

PURPOSE-BUILT FOR EXTREME LANDSCAPES. OUR TOP-SELLER.

ENGINEERED FOR:

« Hillside & steep-incline maintenance
« Wetland & swamp preservation

= Retention or water treatment ponds
» Dam & levee embankments

» Landfill slope preservation

= Roadside mowing

= Right-of-way & pipeline reclamation

REMOTE CONNECTIVITY
UPTO CUTS BRUSH UP

1 n u D TO 1.5 INCHES IN
DIAMETER
ft

LIGHT-WEIGHT AND
LOW GROUND in
PRESSURE (2.2 PSI) CUTTING WIDTH

KEY FEATURES

FUEL BOOST FOR
o CONTINUOUS FUEL

MPH MOWING SPEED | -OW ONSLOPE

REMOTE CONTROL
TILT/DROP

AUTO-SHUTDOWN HORSEPOWER

SLOPE CLIMB:




@SERIES

RC MOWERS

R-52

MOWER SPECIFICATIONS

BECIEIEETEE POWERTRAIN

= « Kawasaki® FX850V

(4] s Air-

a 1'850 Ihs Air-Cooled

= » Heavy-Duty Air Cleaner
» 27 Horsepower

E n « 852cc Engine Displacement

§ s in » Hydro-Gear® ZT-4400 Transaxles
» 13.4 Gallon Fuel Capacity

= 7 4 . TRACKS

S in - Rubber Molded over Steel Links
» Steel Cords

= » 9" Wide {230mm x 72mm x 44mm)

§ 49 % 5 in « Tread Style )

BEST MACHINES ON EARTH

Our American-made, Remote-Operated Robotic Mowers will
reinvent your capabilities and reimagine your potential. This

is the smart, safe, and profitable way to maintain steep slopes
and extreme landscapes. We've elevated the technology to
deliver game-changing opportunities. The R Series will greatly
improve your labor situation, increase efficiency, create safer
and better working conditions for your crew, add versatility

to your operation, and score new, niche revenue streams.
What on earth are you waiting for?

MADE IN THE

BUY BACK
GUARANTEE

LOVE IT or WE BUY IT BACK

PERFORMANCE

« 6.5 MPH Transport Speed

= 5.7 MPH Mowing Speed

« 2.7 Acres Per Hour

= 50 Degree Slope Climb Ability

MOWING DECK

= Fabricated 7 ga. Steel

= 3/8" Thick Deck Across Spindies
= Cast Iron Spindle

« 52" Cutting Width

= 2.5" to 7" Cutting Heights

WARRANTY

= 2 Years or 400 Hours

Z2-HR
® PARTS

+ USA

SHIPPING GUARANTEE

CUSTOMER SUPPORT: 920-634-2227 = RCMOWERSUSA.COM

GENERATION 4 (35/21)




Village of Lancaster
Climate Resilience Plan

May 2024




2

G0 00 0 0P ERCRV0200000000 0000088000000 0200200000C0000CECEELIIBIIIBERROCERBIEOCOR0OCEDBRSICESCBOERPRVDECEIOIECEETIOTOEOEDBOPIDPOBOEEONET

A Message from the Mayor

The Village of Lancaster’s first Climate Resilience Plan represents an important milestone
in the process of preparing our community for extreme weather and natural hazards,
which are expected to occur with greater intensity and frequency in the future. It

also demonstrates the ability of Village of Lancaster residents, elected leaders, and
stakeholders to work together to plan for the future and take action. The plan identifies
ways we can collectively adapt to climate-related challenges and create stronger, more
resilient infrastructure and services in the Village of Lancaster.

The adoption of the Village’s Climate Resilience Plan represents a commitment on the part
of my office and the Village Board to ongoing efforts to address climate-related hazards

in our community. This will include protecting natural assets, improving infrastructure and

emergency preparedness, and prioritizing the safety and quality of life for all residents for

decades to come.

As a Bronze Certified Climate Smart Community, the Village of Lancaster has already taken
steps toward the goals of climate resilence and creating a sustainable community. While
this plan does not determine a specific course of action that the Village of Lancaster must
take, it includes recommendations for the Village to consider in the future and lays out a
course of action to continue to build a more resilient Village.

The Plan’s strategies are built to support ongoing Village initiatives, these include:
upgrading sewer systems to mitigate flooding; promoting green infrastructure on public
and private property; bolstering climate education, awareness, and household hazard
preparedness; helping property owners improve their properties to mitigate hazards; and
acquiring additional funding to support climate resilience actions from the Village.

The Village of Lancaster will soon begin the process of updating our Comprehensive Plan
to represent the initiatives that have been prioritized by our community members. The
findings and recommended strategies of this plan will help shape the new Comprehensive
Plan and future community investments.

| wish to thank all the community members, the Climate Smart Task Force, Village staff,
the University at Buffalo Regional Institute, and others who committed time and energy to
create this document.

While we never know exactly the challenges that may arise in the future, | am confident
our Village is on a path to becoming resilient to climate-related threats by informing and
equipping ourselves for action and re-committing to looking out for each other and the
community we call home.

Sincerely,
Mayor Lynne Ruda

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



B EREEEE EEEEE R A E RN R RN R R AR N N N NN R NN NN N N R N N Y N NN

Acknowledgements

This plan is a result of the contributions of many
groups and individuals. The Village of Lancaster
Climate Smart Task Force, Mayor Lynne Ruda,

and Sustainability Coordinator Amy Stypa

were pivotal in shaping the planning process,
guiding the engagement of the community and
stakeholders, and developing the plan and its
recommendations. Village staff members and
other local partners provided input on the plan’s
recommended strategies. The project was steered
by the University at Buffalo Regional Institute
(UBRI), through its role as the regional Climate
Smart Communities coordinator, and was funded
through the NYS Department of Environmental
Conservation’s Climate Smart Communities
program. Leah Bargnesi and Nayarit Tineo, graduate
students of the University at Buffalo, assisted UBRI
in the plan’s development.

Lynne Ruda (Mayor) Leah Bargnesi

Mike Stegmeier (CSC Coordinator) Teresa Bosch de Celis
Amy Stypa (Sustainability Coordinator) Brian Conley

Wayne Cisco Jason Kulaszewski
Shawn Marshall Joshua MccClain

John Mikoley Bart Roberts

Gavin O’Brien Nayarit Tineo

William Schutt
Kirsten Shelly

i University at Buffalo
Igsac Szymanskl G5 | Regional Institute
Sarah Szymanski School of Architecture and Planning
NEWYORK | Climate Smart
orporrunmy. | Communities

Recommended Citation: University at Buffalo Regional institute, The State University of New York at
Buffalo, School of Architecture and Planning, 2024. “Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan.”

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



06 8008008950680 082808202006000800000P00000000C00000PSOIOIIOIIOORIREEOERBIOIBIBIOODPORORGRBIBINOIRIOEISGEIVIIOIOESBOOCEBICERIRETOEODOORORSEEORDROEODE

The purpose of the Village of Lancaster Climate
Resilience Plan (the Plan) is to identify strategies
to reduce the risk of potential impacts of climate

hazards over the long term and build capacity THE VILLAGE OF
to adapt to on-going changes. This document Lancaster
builds from existing planning documents and s A
projects the Village of Lancaster has developed in Bronze Certified

recent years. The Plan presents the most pressing - MUY

climate hazards the Village is likely to experience,
along with an assessment of local vulnerabilities,
and ends by presenting seven recommended
strategies for continuing progress toward building
climate resilience in the Village of Lancaster.

PROCESS

Working with Village department heads, @ &
first responders, staff, elected officials, Provided Feedback in .
and stakeholders, the Climate Smart Task the Scenario Planning ll. Il
Force and the University at Buffalo Regional Workshops
Institute (UBRI) worked to develop this

long-range, planning document. By looking

at existing trends, future projections, and

recent extreme events the team identified

critical assets and areas within the Village

that may require additional attention and 3 Climate

support as issues related to Flooding, Hazards

Extreme Heat, and Severe Winter Weather were

events become more common over time. identified

Stakeholders workshopped various climate raeslen\::lﬁ Flooding
scenarios in order to identify strategies for the

that would help reduce risks, save taxpayer Village of

dollars, and save lives while improving Lancaster

operations for first responders, help

residents be prepared for extreme events, Extreme Winter
and improve the Village’s overall ability to Weather
respond to naturally occurring events that

are becoming more extreme over time.

HOW TO This document provides a starting point for an ongoing process to
USE THIS promote climate resilience in the Village of Lancaster. The plan and

DOCUMENT: its recommended strategies are intended to inform the Village’s
future planning processes, including the Comprehensive Plan update,
where the strategies included here can be refined and moved toward
implementation.

4 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



8000230000800 00000 0000 CE000040080808000880000 0060000000000 HEEIOCEETPCECEICOROERERCEOEEEORRPOICROECIEROECEPROOTOEOIIESEOPROEOOPBIBOEONDTY

RECOMMENDATIONS

Several “cross-cutting” strategies emerged from the planning process, which
would support the Village’s overall capacity to implement climate resilience
measures across all hazard types. These include: climate education and
outreach, enhanced emergency operations, and securing dedicated climate

The strategies
outlined in this
document are
intended to be
implemented
over time by the
community as a
whole, and are
not mandated
actions for local
government.

Although

Village Hall has

a role to play,
implementation of
the recommended
strategies will
also require
involvement

from residents,
businesses,
landowners, and
community groups.

Coordination

with surrounding
municipalities will
also be vital to
ensuring the Village
can continue to

be resilient in the
face of increasing
extreme weather
events.

adaptation funding.

Recommendations

Description Hazards adressed

Enhance emergency
operations for
extreme weather
events

Continue to enhance local emergency
operations and communication
systems and adapt these systems to
changing climate hazards.

Bolster climate
awareness and
household hazard
preparedness
through education
and outreach

Make households more aware and
prepared for climate hazards through
strategic education and outreach,
technical assistance, and funding.

0ee

Promote
sustainable
development and
protect natural
areas through land
use regulations

Use land use planning, policies,
zoning, and incentives to encourage
development in previously developed
areas to conserve and enhance
natural areas, limit new infrastructure
needs, and mitigate hazards.

-

Upgrade
stormwater & sewer
systems to mitigate
flooding

Continue to make cohesive, strategic
efforts to maintain, update, and
enhance the Village’s sewer and
stormwater systems to prepare to
manage more extreme precipitation
events.

@®

Promote green
infrastructure on
public & private
property

Increase the use of green
infrastructure in public places and on
residential and commercial properties
through strategic

planning, education and outreach,
technical assistance, funding, and
incentives.

Qe

Help property
owners upgrade
structures to
mitigate hazards

Provide homeowners with financing,
funding, technical assistance,

and other supports to encourage
improvements to energy efficiency
and increase ability to handle climate
hazards.

Qed

Increase the use of
climate-resilient
building materials

Provide building owners, developers,
and homebuilders with incentives
and technical assistance to utilize
building materials that will reduce
heat island effects, protect from
flooding, and minimize other impacts
related to extreme weather.

2e

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

5



6

S0 0 0 S CCOOODOEOBREGODS000D00000ERROOSCROILOOIPCEPEORDIPOOOOOIOOPEDNIOESIETOIIDIDIOGOERIDIVNBOEEROEBOIBOOOCESOCECOBBOBGEOEEOSEH

ABOUT THE CLIMATE
RESILIENCE PLAN

Community Engagement
Process

pg. 8

pg. 9

WHAT WE HEARD FROM
THE COMMUNITY

Community Vision

pg. 10

pg. 11

ABOUT VILLAGE OF
LANCASTER

Demographics
Economy

Land Use
Environmental Areas

Recent and Future
Development

Critical Assets
Planning Context

Initiatives to Build On

pg. 14

pg. 15
pg. 15
pg. 16
pg. 17

pg. 18

pg. 19
pg. 20
pg. 20

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

CLIMATE HAZARDS IN
LANCASTER
Extreme Heat
Flooding
Severe Winter Weather

Other Climate Impacts

pg. 21

pg. 22
pg. 23
pPg. 24
pg. 25

CLIMATE
VULNERABILITIES
Social
Economic

Infrastructure

pg. 26

pg. 26
pg. 26
pg. 27

IDENTIFYING PRIORITIES
FOR CLIMATE RESILIENCE
Climate Scenario Workshops

9 Potential Approaches

Identifying priorities for
Extreme Heat

Identifying priorities for
Flooding

Identifying priorities for
Severe Winter Weather

pg. 28

pg. 28
pg. 29
pg. 30

pg. 32

pg. 34



100000008000 PRPSCEER0BRDNIOEGREGNCORRO00CRERCEEORIEYOEEDISIGOOBOIODOEENOOOEOPOOEOOCOCOC0COOIRRIVDOGBOOEIPBSIOBOAEECDEES

RECOMMENDED pg. 36
STRATEGIES FOR
CLIMATE RESILIENCE
Enhance emergency pg. 37
operations for extreme
weather events
Bolster climate pg. 38
awareness and household
preparedness throught
outreach and education
Promote sustainable pg. 39
development and protect
wetlands and natural
spaces
Upgrade stormewater pg. 40
and sewer systems to
mitigate flooding
Promote green pg. 41
infrastructure on public
and private property
Help property owners pg. 42
upgrade structures to
mitigate hazards
Increase the use of pg. 43
climate-resilient building
materials
Recommended Climate pg. 44
Resiliency Strategies at a
glance
MOVING FORWARD pg. 46
DATA SOURCES AND NOTES pPg. 48
APPENDICES pg. 50

KEY TERMS

Climate hazard - natural
hazards, such as flooding,
extreme heat, drought,

severe storms, and other
meteorological events that
can cause harm to people
and properties and negatively
impact communities,
economies, and infrastructure
systems.

Risk - the potential for
damage, loss, or other impacts
created by the interaction

of natural hazards with

community assets.

Exposure - the degree to
which elements of an asset or
system are in direct contact
with hazards or sensitive to
climate variability and the
degree to which the hazard may
change over time.

Vulnerability — characteristics
of community assets that make
them susceptible to damage
from a given hazard.

Resilience - the ability of

a social or ecological system
to absorb disturbances

while retaining the same

basic structure and ways

of functioning; the capacity

for self organization and the
capacity to adapt to stress and
change.

Mitigation - efforts to avoid
or reduce hazard risks and
impacts on people, nature, and
the built environments over the
long term.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 7



About the Plan

0 S 800000000 P 0030 CHOEICRIOBOROCRIRORRNIDIVRESREDOEIOIBOGCODNOOEIEOEOIVPIPCSOENIDOODIOEODPONOGCOOOOCROARCOOBDPEOOBEEOEAT

About the Climate
Resilience Plan

While Earth’s climate has changed throughout its history, there
is unequivocal evidence that global temperatures are rising at an
alarming rate that has not occurred in the past 10,000 years.!

Global climate changes are also resulting in
more localized climatic impacts, which may
pose significant challenges for the health,
safety, quality of life, and economic vitality of
communities of all sizes. To minimize risks in
these areas, municipalities like the Village of
Lancaster are developing climate resilience
plans, to build a deeper understanding of
potential hazards and identify strategic ways
to adapt to new and changing conditions.

The purpose of the Village of Lancaster
Climate Resilience Plan (the Plan) is to
identify strategies to reduce the risk of
potential impacts of climate hazards over the
long term and build capacity to adapt to on-
going changes. These strategies are designed
to be cost-effective, informed by the latest
scientific data, applicable to local conditions,
and reflective of the interests and priorities
of Village residents, elected officials, and
staff. As such, the Plan may serve as a useful
tool to inform decision-making about future
projects and programs that the Village of
Lancaster may consider.

The Plan was developed over eight

months (October 2023 to May 2024), as a
collaborative process led by the Village of
LLancaster Climate Smart Task Force (the Task
Force) and the University at Buffalo Regional
Institute (UBRI), with extensive feedback from
the community and stakeholders.

The UBRI planning team serves as the regional
coordinator for the NYS Department of
Environmental Conservation (DEC) Climate
Smart Communities program, through which it
supports municipal climate resilience planning
efforts. The Task Force provided oversight and
input throughout the process and supported
outreach to various stakeholders. Community
members and local stakeholders provided
extensive input, through an online survey,
scenario planning workshops, a public meeting,
and online feedback on the plan draft, which
shaped the plan’s understanding of local
conditions and recommended strategies.

The overall process of the Plan’s engagement
strategy is documented through meeting
agendas, outreach materials, and stakeholder
feedback, included in the Appendix section.

Vﬁlage of Lancaster
Mmate Resilience Plan

March 2024

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



About the Plan

GO0 PP 0D COEPE NSRS OSOPCOPORRISIBORCRNEOCRIIRIDNIDOCEEEEOUEOGOOL0LCCEREEOCECEIDIDIPOIDDRNOEEOO0CEECORCEOEDBIOSOOGROGORSESITE

LAIZIULIRALY with the

P _ Climate Smart Task Force
. &Y ; £ ¥ .
l i 1.\; 1 [ & | I}: = {." s Al _“ { il l ' :
— .
f L ‘_\‘ o r "ol e® % o o.‘
| | | R | } ¥ °® ®eegpnr’

to

the Community Survey

A key objective of this plan is to understand
the concerns that the Village has related to

evolving climate hazards and to reflect their .,

priorities in the resilience strategies that *e,

are recommended. This was accomplished A

through several distinct methods of ° ® °

community and stakeholder engagement. Provided
Irq— - al Feedback in the Scenario

An online community survey was the ‘ | Planning Workshops

foundational engagement piece for this

plan. The survey included questions R
about residents’ experience of extreme .
weather events, areas of concern, levels e ———
of knowledge and preparation, and | T —

(fommunity Members

preferred resilience strategies to address . . will review the plan at a
climate hazards. Responses informed the '.‘ Public Meeting
formulation of the plan’s recommended A

strategies, as well as the Community Vision.

In-person scenario planning workshops were
conducted to identify local vulnerabilities
and priorities for future actions to build
resilience, based on projected climate
conditions for the 2050s. A workshop for
“internal stakeholders,” individuals involved
with the village’s operations, was held in
December 2023 and a similar workshop was
conducted with Lancaster youth in March
2024.

A presentation of the Plan to the Village
Board and members of the public was held
in May 2024, followed by a period of public
review of the final draft. Feedback from the
Village Board and community members was
incorporated into the final version of the
Plan, which was presented to the Village of
Lancaster’s Board for approval in May 2024,

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 9



Community Engagement

00 008000000 F0GCEOO0DESB00800000C08C20C00PP0C0DPIPIIANRBIREDIRREOBBINECGGCEECEEICEICTCEORRIIOPDBIOPOPOIOEOPDNRRROCEOEOOOOOINOLOOGSOOOOCONOBDOEGEEOROSRE

What we heard from
the community

The planning team and CSC Task
Force developed a community survey
to identify the climate hazards

that concern Village residents and
priorities for potential adaptation
strategies, and to help establish the
community vision.

The survey was promoted at in-
person events, by fliers posted in
public areas, and through the Village’s
social media accounts and newsletter.
Survey responses were collected
between the months of September
2023 and March 2024,

A total of 120 individuals completed
the community survey. Survey
respondents generally aligned with
the Village’s demographic profile,
though respondents tended to be
slightly older and have a higher
level of education than the Village
as a whole. The climate hazards

of greatest concern to community
members include severe winter
weather (snow, ice, extreme cold),
extreme heat, severe winds, and
flooding (see p. 12). These results
were used to inform analysis
conducted for this plan and the
hazard scenarios for the stakeholder
workshop.

Respondents also weighed in on
potential strategies the Village could
employ to become more resilient to
climate hazards (see p. 13). These
findings were an essential input to the
formation of this plan’s recommended
strategies.

10 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Work
in the
Village

f 0 120

survey |
=+ responses

— -

..!.“I

Work in the . _ y
Village — 449, Work in the
Village
2994 Shop/dine
in the Village

229% Visit friends/
family

62% think Climate Change will
impact them personally



46 respondents OWN A
home in the Village

10 Lancaster business
owhners

49% Female
89% white

52% have a Bachelor's
degree or higher

80% over age 35

TOP SOURCES FOR NATURAL
HAZARDS INFORMATION

1 TV News/Advertising

Police, Fire, EMS, 9-1-1

Radio News/Ads

County Government

o h W N

Social Media

Community Engagement

00 S 0000 0EE 0008080 0¢00 2000000000000 00 3000800000000 0000808000 0000060000 00000000080008C¢600UTTAIOPROROROBOCEOEREETDS

VISION STATEMENT:

The Village of Lancaster will be
prepared for climate change
when...we are informed and
equipped to safely withstand

and recover from severe weather
events and adapt to changing
climate conditions to ensure the
well-being of our people, economy,
and natural environment.

Through the community engagement process,
residents were asked to comment on their
vision for the Village of Lancaster’s climate
future by completing the sentence: “The
Village of Lancaster will be ready for climate
change when..” The recurring themes from
the responses to this prompt were then
synthesized to compose a Community Vision
statement, which was reviewed and revised by
the Climate Smart Communities Task Force.

The objective of the Community Vision
statement is to orient community leaders as
they undertake future climate action within
the Village.

Throughout the responses, an emphasis

was placed on ensuring that the Village’s
infrastructure has the capacity to withstand
extreme weather events and that municipal
services, such as snow plowing, are delivered
in an efficient manner following major weather
events. Other key themes that emerged
included: household preparation to keep all
residents safe during extreme weather events;
using clean energy supply and reducing
emissions along with climate adaptation;
ensuring emergency plans incorporate evolving
climate hazards; the necessity of public
information and climate education; and
protecting existing natural resources.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

1



Community Engagement

200 S0 000000 PCEROO0DBTEOOUSORINIBIOGIINODODOIDOIDOOGDIODOEGOCEONIECODBOISEROOEEOEPOEERRLREEEOODPIOPDORPOOSOIDEPORETS

WHICH NATURAL HAZARDS ARE YOU
STRONGLY CONCERNED ABOUT?

Snow Storm

Extreme Cold I 16%
lce Storm I 45%
Wind I 44%
Extreme Heat | 37%
Flooding | 30%
Hail I 26%
Invasive Species I 19%
None M 19%
Drought | 15%
Tornado N 10%
wildfire 1l 9%
Erosion/Landslide/Land subsidence 9%
Other (please specify) 7%

30% of respondents feel their

household is very well prepared for a
day or more Without heat or electricity.

9% do not feel prepared at all.

41% have

suffered
damages

to their homes or

business caused by

climate hazards

Village residents
rated the Village at

6 out of 10

for preparation for
climate change.

Sources: UBRI Analysis of Community Survey Results

12 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

“I am worried about
how flooding and water
issues may impact

my foundation and
basement.”

“Wind and snow storms
damage infrastructure
and impact travel.”

“The storms are likely to get
worse and as water issues get
worse across the country, it's
possible other regions will
look to our lakes as source for
them which will make us more
dependent on ground water.”

“As a firefighter we are
emergency responders
during major weather

events.”

“Aside from the typical
annual winter cold, the
occasional WNY blizzards
have impacted us, [...] our
fence was permanently
damaged from the
blizzards.

“Shingles repeatedly fly off my
home during high wind days.”

“Basement flooding from
heavy rainstorms.”



Community Engagement

108 0000000880000 00020000088008C00000085080000000003 2000000000060 0600000000008000000000000006008OBPOCCECBGCGEBGEBESES

WHICH APPROACHES TO BUILDING RESILENCE DOES
THE COMMUNITY SUPPORT?

Preserve parks and green spaces

# of responses out of 120

Restrict new development in floodplains and |

hazard-prone areas

Upgrade stormwater management and
sewer systems to limit flooding

Maintain and/or restore wetlands

Homeowner assistance to protect houses
against hazard impacts

Apply green infrastructure and
nature-based solutions to limit flooding

Community education and awareness about climate impacts

Enhanced emergency operations and
critical facilities upgrades

Monitor and reduce presence of invasive species
Dedicated funds for climate adaptation

Climate-resilient construction material

E—
PRI 7
O
I 41
C O EE
CEE
25

. 22

TOP WAYS ' ' I
RESPONDENTS | '”Staui‘dl:";‘fki Sete"tors The majority of survey
on eac vel O ome
SAY THEY HAVE , respondents agree that
PREPARED 2 Stored flashlights and
FOR HAZARD batieries emergency/backup
EVENTS i3
3 Stored a fire extinguisher power at h(’.me and
----- : transportation would
best assist vulnerable
Over community members to
65% know where to go and better prepare for, cope
how to get there in case of with, and recover from the
an emergency impacts of hazard events

Sources: UBRI Analysis of Community Survey Results

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 13



About the Village of Lancaster

AR N RN ERENERNEERE SRR N ENEN NN RN E NN AN NN N N Ny Y N Y Y Y N Y N S R R R )

About the
Village of
Lancaster

village of =3
Lancaster '

The Village of Lancaster is located
within the Town of Lancaster in
Erie County, New York. The Village
was incorporated in 1849, and is
approximately ten miles east of
the City of Buffalo. The Village

has long been the residential and
commercial hub of the Town of
Lancaster.

Lancaster was originally inhabited
by the Seneca tribe of the > fid
Haudenosaunee Confederacy. ]
The Seneca were allied with the
British army during the American
Revolution, and were subsequently

removed from their villages and

relocated to twelve reservations

tracts.2 In the early 1800s, settlers

fromm New England moved into

Western New York to farm or

establish businesses. The Village

of Lancaster was formed around

a grist mill and later transformed

into a market town for agricultural

products from the surrounding

area.? The Village of Lancaster

has eleven historical buildings

recognized under the National /
Register of Historical places.

o 'Nl'k
2 &

]

1

oy o9

)

W "‘ :, o ‘_‘TCO]'D‘Q: éarkB[\;d ‘,

14  Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



The Village of Lancaster is home to 10,160
people, as of the most recent American
Communities Survey 5-Year Estimates
(2018-2022). Its population has been
relatively stable in recent decades, though
its residents are older, on average, than Erie
County as a whole. Residents 65 and older,
who make up 19.2% of the population, have
increased by 3.8% since 2015. Residents
under 18 years of age make up 17.7% of the
population, an increase of 4.7% since 2015.4

The average number of people per
household in the village of Lancaster is
2.02. The large majority of the population
(93%) have graduated from high school and
27% have a bachelor’s degree or higher. The
median household income in the Village

is $61,646 compared to the Erie County
median household income of $62,578.5

There are 3,839 jobs in the Village, but only
10% of residents who work in the Village
also live there. The average commute time
for residents to get to their place of work is
18 minutes.

5.5% of the Village’s population has
household income that is below the poverty
line. This portion of the Village’s population
may be more vulnerable to climate hazards
or may lack the necessary means to prepare
for such events.

The Village of Lancaster’s downtown is
undergoing a major revitalization, bringing
economic development to the Village’s core
by expanding pedestrian amenities, building
new mixed-use spaces, and adding green
infrastructure while retaining the Village’s
rich historic character. This revitalization
also plays a role in Lancaster’s overall
climate resiliency.

About the Village of Lancaster

Village of Lancaster
Population and Economy

10 G000 0BRGN 00NBEOCCPROPROROR0ORDPRRNOROEPPIPIBITROO PSP OTHOOTPOIOEDOOOIDEOCEONOEODPOEDPERDS

Total Population 10,160
Population Change, 2012-2022 -1.8%
Median Age 46
AGE % Under 18  17.7%
% Over 65 19.9%
% White 97.4%
% Black 0.01%
% Hispanic 1.6%
% Asian/Pacific
RACE/ ’ slander 0-4%
ETHNICITY % Other/Multiol
b er/Multiple
Races 2:2%
Foreign Born
Population 0.1%
% Households
with One Person 42%
Median household Income $61,646
Poverty Rate 5.5%
Jobs 3,839
Employed Residents 5,126
% 25+ with Bachelor's + 26%
% of Workers in Lancaster who
also live in Lancaster 10%
Avg Commute Time 18 min.
% Working from Home 1%

*Highlighted numbers are higher than US averages.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 15



About the Village of Lancaster

00 0005000000580 0808000000000000000¢€ 0000000000 006d0C0CoSPIODOISIEIDBIIIOIOIOIDBDRIRSIOPEEOOGEPIOIOIORAIDIIOGOROGEEONOENNOROGEOSROIOGEBS

Depending on how land is used, it can work
to build resiliency from climate hazards or Village of Lancaster, Housing, 2021
emphasize the negative impacts of climate
hazards. As a historic village, Lancaster is
highly built-out with limited capacity for Housing Units 5170
further land conversion for development. i

The Village of Lancaster is largely composed Vacancy Rate 4%

of residential neighborhoods (50% of land
area). Eight percent (8%) of land is used for Home Value $170,100
commercial activity in areas concentrated i
near the Village’s downtown and along arterial
roads and railways. Another 10% is dedicated
to community services (including schools and
public facilities), 81% of the land is industrial,
and 9.9% of the Village of Lancaster is made
up of parks and open spaces. Almost 11% of
land in the Village is classified as vacant in the Source: US Census, ACS, 5-year estimates, 2022,
tax parcel data, however this includes parcels
adjacent to a major east-west rail corridor and
other properties currently used for parking or
other low-intensity uses. Thus, not all land
that is classified as vacant would be available
for new uses. The map also may not reflect
some of the most recent development in the
Village’s downtown that has been completed
since the data’s publication.

Median Year Built 1954

% Renter Occupied 27%

Village of Lancaster Land Use, 2022

Residential 50%
- Vacant 10.8%

. Parks/Open Spaces 9.9%
Community Srvcs. 9.8%

h;_ Industrial 8.1%

- Commercial 8.1%

FT Other 21% -

" Mixed Use 0.8% iFh
Recreation 0.3%

Source: Erie County Tax Parcel Data, 2022.
Note: Parcels are classified for tax assessment purposes, which may
not accurately represent how land and buildings are currently used.

16  Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



About the Village of Lancaster

0000000008820 0000300000000 0800000000080 8008080600800 0¢1000808800800900OCFOC08O0PROCCRORRECECECECCERCEBOPCERDPOECEOGECEOEDPOOCEROPETN

Environmental areas are critical to bUIldlng Viuage of Lancaster Environmental Areas
climate resilience. Green space, wetlands,
and trees all provide natural benefits to

reduce the impacts from extreme heat and Developed Area 2 sq. miles
flooding. In the Village of Lancaster there
are 142.8 acres of parks and open space.

In 2019 a tree inventory was conducted % Impervious Surfaces 36.5%
and found that there are nearly 4,000

trees along streets and in parks that are Wetlands 48.5 acres
publicly maintained. There are no wetlands

that are regulated by the NYS Department Parks and Open Spaces  142.81 acres
of Environmental Conservation (DEC) in

the Village, but the Village does contain Vacant Land 132 acres
48.5 acres of other non-DEC regulated

wetlands. # of trees 3,960

Sources: USGS, National Land Cover Dataset, 2021, USGS, Impervious

Surfaces, 2021; National Wetlands Inventory 2023; Erie County Tax Parcel Data
2022; Village of Lancaster Tree Inventory, 2019. For additional info, see Data Sourc-
es and Notes?

Village of Lancaster
Environmental Areas, 2021

Wetlands

Open Grass/Shrublands

. Forests

Parks and Open Spaces

Sources: USGS, National Elevation Dataset; National Land
Cover Database USGS 2018; New York State Department of
Environmental Conservation - National Wetlands inventory
2023

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 17



About the Village of Lancaster

P S O 0GP OLCOPCONPORSOEO0RRE0RDEDDEDGIIBICEORDIOIOCIECEOIDEOOGENIGEAICODIOIDOEOOIBIOOOOVOORDRROIBOEPOPOIEESIECRIOPIEOINETSEOROIEGES

The Village of Lancaster is mostly built out

with recent development occurring in the
Village’s core, near the Main Street Extension.
This development included the extension of
West Main Street between Central Avenue and
Aurora Street, shifting from a one-way to a two-
way street. This extension also added a mini
roundabout at West Main and Aurora Street.
These enhancements create opportunities

for a more walkable “shop, stroll, and stay”
experience. The new street design also allows
better access for pedestrians and bicyclists to
get around more easily and safely. The footprint
of the project area also includes about 132
acres of vacant land that has been identified for
future development.

The Town of Lancaster, which surrounds the
Village on three sides, was one of Western

New York’s fastest growing suburbs between
2010 and 2020, according to the decennial

US Census.? As formerly forested areas and
farmland are developed, the land’s natural
ability to absorb rain and snowmelt is inhibited,
which may result in downstream flooding of
Cayuga Creek in the Town’s “Twin Villages”

of Lancaster and Depew. This upstream
development may result in additional costs
incurred by the Village to address infrastructure
and implement flood mitigation measures, so it
will be important for the Village to coordinate
with neighboring communities within the
Cayuga Creek Watershed to mitigate flooding

impacts associated with upstream development.

Recent and Potential Development

- Vacant Parcels

. Potential Underutilized Parcels

- Structures Built after 2010 s

[| Parks and Open Spaces

Sources: Erie County Tax Parcel Data, 2022.
Note: Parcels are classified for tax assessment purposes, which may not
accurately represent how land and buildings are currently used.

18  Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

. S __
C_AYpGA C_REEK PARK (_:ONSTRUCTION

In the map below, properties are classified

as ‘vacant’ based on the tax parcel data but
may not be available for development, as in
the case of the railway right-of-way near the
northern boundary of the Village. ‘Potentially
underutilized parcels’ are those with structures
with less value than the land on which they are
located, although the properties may currently
be used for a variety of purposes.

waldep AVR
s a '




About the Village of Lancaster

190 0P SEBV0R POV ENCRIGRCES D000 ROC00 0PSO RROCPOOROPIOESEONDIDNOROGGEDEGOO000D000C8CE0000C0CEOCRETIRBOIIODBPOEFTIOEEDPTES

Protecting critical assets and infrastructure
in the Village will be integral for any future CAYUGA CREEK PARK AND WATER TOWER
climate planning as these assets provide access,
connectivity, and critical services during major
climate disruptions. These assets include
buildings, bridges, electric sub-stations, and
County and Village assets and structures that
are important to maintaining operations. To

be more resilient, these assets will need to
withstand the increased frequency of localized
flooding, more extreme weather events, and
provide safe haven for vulnerable residents
during extreme events.

Although many of the major bridges in the
Village are not in need of immediate repair, they
are all over 20 years old and provide important
connectivity for the Village. Many other assets
such as schools, fire halls, and the Town'’s senior
and youth centers, are in neighborhoods and
may require neighborhood specific planning if
these places are expected to be leveraged for A s
community support during extreme events. g
Considering back up generation and reliable =
renewable energy to increase the resiliency of /—"'//
these places would ensure they are able to _4__,_,._,———?‘-""—'_’—‘/—’/
provide essential community services during
extreme events.

Critical Assets in the Village of Lancaster

" schools B cov office Buildings ; e

@ Fire Stations ﬁ Electric Substations e [
. Water Tower E Senior Living Facility s

B Bridges n Parks and Open Spaces L ==

A Large Culvert

NYS DEC Remediated Sites
and Potential Brownfields

Source: Various sources, see data notes.®

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 19



About the Village of Lancaster

2000000 0000000000000 0000000083808800000 0000000080006 080800600000000 008002008 +0808008d0000¢000CPOCECCEINIBSROITIGSOIGSOERS

A number of previous plans informed this
development of this plan. In particular, the

Erie County 2022 Hazard Mitigation Plan and
the Village of Lancaster Extreme Weather
Vulnerability Assessment helped to build a
foundation for this plan’s analysis by identifying
the hazards the Village of Lancaster is likely to
experience in the near- and long-term future.
The 2018 Joint Comprehensive Plan between
the Town of Lancaster, Village of Lancaster, and
Village of Depew also informed this process,
outlining a set of goals and a vision for the
community from the recent past upon which
this plan will build.

Initiatives
to build on

Green Infrastructure:
Transformation of an
underutilized parking
lot to Cayuga Creek
Park has allowed the
Village to leverage
green infrastructure and
nature based solutions
to address flood risks
along Cayuga Creek and
provide a great public
space in Downtown
Lancaster.

Tree Planting
Plan. The Village’s
Tree Board has
developed a plan
to guide future
tree planting and
maintenance, detailing
priority locations and
preferred species.
Implementing the

plan will help to build
biodiversity within the
Village’s tree stock.

20 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

The aforementioned plans demonstrate the
community’s commitment to open space
preservation, sustainable development, hazard
mitigation, and economic revitalization. Links
to the plans that were reviewed are included in
the appendix materials on page 51.

Beginning in 2024, the Village of Lancaster

will undertake a process of updating its
Comprehensive Plan. This climate resilience
plan may be a useful tool for ensuring that
evolving climate concerns are addressed in the
new version of the Comprehensive Plan.

The Village of Lancaster is already addressing identified
hazards through projects and policies including...

Public Electric
Vehicle Charging:
The Village has
secured several
- grants from

3 New York State
to install EV Charging
infrastructure at
locations throughout
Downtown Lancaster
including Cayuga Creek
Park and a new mobility
hub under development.

Shade Structure
Policy. Seeks to
provide reprieve
from the impacts
| of extreme heat
by increasing
shade structures
throughout the Village.
Examples of shade
structures include trees,
gazebos, and other
outdoor structures.



Climate Hazards

GEOD OO COEON RO RDDNNG0B00R000RR0RSP 00000 0CG0CECRRREORPLIIEBIOOOIOCREEOOIDBREDEOOCENIBCEOEOESIEOPOPOCECRBOIIVIPAIECTIAOETETRNRETSTE

Climate Hazards
in Lancaster

Based on local geography, ecology, and topography, each
community will be impacted differently by climate change. The
Village of Lancaster’s proximity to Lake Erie (less than 11 miles) is
a major factor in determining local weather patterns and future

climate hazards.

Scientific research and regional hazard assessments suggest that in
Western New York changing climatic conditions are likely to result in
extreme heat, flooding, and severe winter weather events occurring
with greater intensity and unpredictability than in the past. This
section discusses the impacts of these emerging climate hazards
on the Village of Lancaster and considers three scenarios regarding
the potential scale of these hazards by the late 21st Century.’®

The “Existing” scenario assumes the continuation of observed
historical climate trends. The “Expected” scenario is based on
climate projections should greenhouse gas emissions remain stable
or be reduced, while the “Ext scenario supposes that GHG
emissions continue to increase over time.

Annual days Days

with max. with max. Avg annual Annual extreme
Climate temperature temperature total precipitation
Scenario Description above 90°F below 32 °F precipitation events
Climate conditions stay
e e the same from now until
“Existing” 2080. Based on historical 3 days a7 days 41" 4 days

data.

Climate becomes
somewhat hotter and
“Expected” stormier by 2080. Modeled 21 days 21 days 43" 6 days
conditions based on
current GHG emissions.

Climate becomes much
hotter and stormier
through 2080. Modeled
conditions based on
increasing GHG emissions.

Sources: US. Global Change Research Program, CMRA Assessment Tool using National Climate Assessment LOCA data, 2018; Notaro, Bennington,
and Vavrus, “Dynamically Downscaled Projections of Lake-Effect Snow in the Great Lakes Basin® 2014,

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 21



Climate Hazards

S0 0 G000V CBCEO 0002000005 200000080000 0000000000000 0000000000CR0C00GE0R0C00CCCEODPLOLRPIOEDBOEO0CBCOCQ0C0TPDNOCEBINIBEOROEONDNESESSTE

In July 2020, Western New EXTREME HEAT/DROUGHT IMPACTS BY CLIMATE SCENARIO
Yorkkexper:ienced a reccl)rd- A

breaking heat wave. July 9th, P .

2020, the temperature reached Existing Expected

98° F at the Buffalo Alrport for Annual days with maximum

the first time in over 70 years. temperature > 100°F O days 1days

The record was also broken - -

for the hottest days recorded Annual single highest 91° F 98° F

consecutively. As the climate maximum temperature °F

changes, New York State’s Davs per vear with no

climate may begin to resemble ys Pery 127-134 126-154
precipitation (dry days)

that of some southeastern days days

states with shorter winters

and longer summers. Under Maximum number of

varying climate scenarios, by consecutive dry days ©-10 days ~ 8-12 days

the end of the century New

York State may see an INCrease  source: NOAA, CMRA Assessment Tool using National Climate Assessment LOCA data, 2018. Accessed November

in days over 100° F, with entire 2023 at https:/resilience.climate.gov/.

summers consisting of days

over 90° F, . .
. . Relative Urban Heat Island Severity

According to the Erie County Hazard '

mitigation plan (2022), the Village woldon A¥€ A

of Lancaster lists extreme heat as a _ e i

moderate risk with a strong adaptive High -

capacity. This means the Village faces risk

in this area, but also has the capability to Moderate

deal with extreme heat. As an example,
the Village of Lancaster has identified
facilities that could be used as shelters or
temporary housing in case of emergencies,
including extreme weather events such

as extreme heat, flood evacuation, or
blizzards. The Village’s Municipal building
at 5423 Broadway was identified as a
potential cooling shelter location, although
additional preparation would be needed
for the site, and additional locations
throughout the Village may be advisable in
order to serve residents who may not be
able to access the central location. These
facilities should be adequately equipped to
keep residents safe and comfortable while
they shelter in place during such an event.

Issues related to extreme heat can

be compounded by air quality issues.
Western New York experienced this first-
hand during the summer of 2023 as

the Canadian Wildfires raged in Eastern
Canada. Resilience strategies developed
to address extreme heat can also be
implemented for poor air quality issues,
such as the use of emergency shelters.

Low

Source: The Trust for Public Land ad National Integrated Heat Health Information System,
Heat Severity Index, 2021. Accessed August 2023 at www.heat.gov/datasets/TPL::heat-se-
verity-usa-2021/about

22 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Flooding

Flooding is a perennial concern in
the Village of Lancaster, due to the
presence of Cayuga and Plum Bottom
Creeks and the area’s relatively flat
topography. The Erie County Hazard
Mitigation plan (2022) rates the
Village’s risk of flooding as high, with
moderate capabilities to manage
flood events. Presently, most flooding
is caused by ice jams on Cayuga
Creek, starting at Bowen Road
Bridge, just outside of the Village.
When the ice jams break free, they
move downstream and amass at the
Lake Avenue Bridge and the second
Broadway Bridge. Constrictions also
occur at the pedestrian bridges at
Como Lake Park.

Winters across WNY are projected
to continue to be warmer in the
future, so floods are less likely to be
caused by ice jams than as a result
of increased precipitation

and storm surges." Currently,
100-year and 500-year flood

events are relatively contained

to the banks of Cayuga Creek,

but residences near Como

Climate Hazards

FLOODING IMPACTS BY CLIMATE SCENARIO
Existing Expected

P8 A0 0000802200000 0000000000000000000800000 08 ¢esTNORPRCEOLRNIBNIRICEROGELIBGBESISTOICEOINDPOPREBOEOPRCGROECEROETEOPOBARONONCERRAERGBOBSISEEDS

Average annual total " n
precipitation ol 43
Maximum period of  16-21 16-21
consecutive wet days  days days
Annual days with total 2-3 2-4
precipitation > 1inch days days

Potential Properties Damaged by Storms

Buildings Located in 100-year 58
Floodplain

Total Value of Structures Potentially

Damaged by 100-yr. Flood $2.2 billion

Floodprone areas in
Village of Lancaster

Sources: NOAACMRA Assessment Tool, National Climate Assessment LOCA data, 2018.

Wwalden Ave

———

Lake Dam and Lake Ave., and
businesses near Main Street
and Central Ave. may be more
vulnerable to flooding in the
near future.”2

Flash flooding is likely to occur
as heavy precipitation in a
short period of time increases.
Rainfall events producing an
excess of 1 inch have increased
over the past 50 years. Wind
severity is also increasing and
interacts with precipitation,
creating severe thunderstorm
wind events. Western New
York has seen an increase

of 21.4 thunderstorm wind
events per decade. These new
conditions have the potential
to exacerbate stormwater
management issues.®

7 100-year floodplain

2 (1% annual chance)
500-year floodplain
(0.2% annual chance)

Sources: FEMA Floodplains

oAy 1eued

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

23



Climate Hazards

00 50 200000030800 000000800008000000000000CR0PSECOIBINOIRPERRNIEEOEDRDIOIOOBIIBIOIDIREEOIBSBRIOCGESLEIDEIOEEIOSCEOICELIGEOIIOINOPOROEOSROROIEOSDTS

Weather

Western New York is
projected to experience an
increase in severe winter
storms. In the Village’s 2020
vulnerability assessment,
snow accumulation was
addressed as a concern due
to some older municipality
buildings needing their roofs
repaired to handle increased
snow accumulation.

Although projections do not
show a reduction in winter
precipitation across Erie
County, as winters become
warmer it is expected to see
more heavy rain events than
snow events in early winter,
and when it does snow, it
will be more intense and
occur over a shorter period of
time.4

Recent winter storms

that affected the Village

of Lancaster include
“Snowvember” (Nov. 17-18,
2014) and the 2022 Blizzard
from December 22nd-26th.
Although it only lasted two
days, more than 60 inches
of snow fell on Lancaster
during the November 2014
winter storm. During the
2022 Blizzard, the blizzard
consisted of top wind gusts
at 79 mph (equivalent wind
speeds as in a category

1 hurricane) and up to 50
inches of snow fell across
the county. The Blizzard
had three storms in one: a
lake-effect snowstorm, a
windstorm, and an ice storm.
The blizzard’s total snow
accumulation accounted for
80% of the total snow for
2022 in the greater Buffalo
area, marking the region’s
third-snowiest December on
record.

Severe Winter

WINTER WEATHER IMPACTS BY CLIMATE SCENARIO

“Existing” “Expected” “Extreme”

Total annual snowfall (in) 95 113” 86"

Days with maximum 44-51 8-38 4-26
temperatures below 32 °F days days days

Projected Average Annual Lake Effect Snowfall (inches)
through 21st Century Compared to Observed Trend

135

103 102

93
70

Observed (Late 20th Mid-21st Late 21st

Century)

m Lake Erie ® Lake Ontario

Sources: U. S. Global Change Research Program, CMRA Assessment Tool using National Climate
Assessment LOCA data, 2018. Accessed July 2023 at resilience.climate.gov/ Notaro, Bennington, and
Vavrus, “Dynamically Downscaled Projections of Lake-Effect Snow in the Great Lakes Basin,” 2014;
Vermette, “Weathering Change in WNY: Climatic Trend Analysis (1965-2016),” 2017.

Extreme weather events put huge pressure on emergency
services and critical infrastructure. As was illustrated with
the 2022 Blizzard, if not properly prepared, the community
may be left without power or emergency aid, which may
result in preventable deaths among vulnerable community
members. The Village of Lancaster sees severe winter storms
as a high risk, but with a strong ability to adapt to it based on
existing infrastructure in place. Therefore, providing correct
protocols and measures are put in place with sufficient time
for residents to prepare, community members won’t have to
I\ace the worst consequences associated with this climate
azard.

24 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Climate Hazards

66 02008003830 CCCC00R0I000000000090220000008000000P 0000000 0PRPSCLEBLIESGEIERROECEOPTSOISIBIROPOEROEOROCERREOIRIAOTEOEOTROONBROIOEOSIEBSTOISEOES

Other Climate
Impacts

This plan focuses on climate hazards
identified to be of highest concern in the WILDFIRE SMOKE
Village, but also acknowledges a variety y
of other potential climate impacts that
may require attention to achieve climate
resilience.

High winds may become more common

and severe as global climate patterns shift.
An analysis of climate trends found that

the number of “thunderstorm” wind events
over Lake Erie increased significantly from
1996 to 2016.15 The community survey shows
that severe wind is a common concern for
the community and warrants mitigation
planning and action. Survey respondents
reported damage to their homes and
businesses from heavy winds and fallen
trees. One resident noted that West Main
Street, where their home is located, SPOTTED LANTERN FLY
experiences particularly harsh winds. Other
residents shared experiences of losing
siding, shingles or fencing from their homes
due to heavy winds.

Air quality concerns could become more
persistent due to climate change impacts.

A recent study found that after decades of
progress, air quality hazards are increasing
in the US."® Lancaster experienced a number
of days with unhealthy air quality in 2023
due to smoke from wildfires in northern
Canada. These events present health
concerns for the community, especially for
children, seniors and those with chronic
health conditions, and could have wider EMERALD ASH BORER
impacts in the future.

Invasive species may become an increasing
concern in WNY as non-native species
adjust to new climate conditions and
spread throughout the region. Invasive
plant species, pest insects, blights and
parasites can threaten native species and
ecosystems, which may cause harm to the
Village’s tree inventory and natural areas.
Invasive species were identified as a priority
for action by 19% of community members
who responded to the survey.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 25



Climate Vulnerabilities

SO OO 2P V00 0005006003080 0000080000800 0000000 ¢CPPRNTCEOECPPCEEOCORCOC000CO0DRCGCOCECI0LIFICEEIOEOESICEOSROCEOPCGOEINDPREBROCEIEBSBRDBOOEDA

Climate

Vulnerabilities

The populations in the Village of Lancaster that
will be most at risk from the impacts of climate
change include youth and seniors. These groups
of people make up nearly 40% of the Village’s
population, and are more susceptible to heat
illness during extreme heat events. These
populations may also have limited mobility
options during extreme weather events, if
temporary relocation or sheltering is necessary.

The Village has also has 5.5% of its residents
with income below the poverty line. This
population may have fewer financial or
household resources to prepare for hazard
impacts, thus it will be important to ensure
adequate access to services for the Village’s
most vulnerable.

Chosen resilience strategies must consider
these vulnerable populations so everyone

is considered while planning for emergency
situations. This will require assessing where
various amenities would be most useful before
a storm or heat wave. Ensuring that households
with young children or seniors are made aware
of how they can stay safe and healthy in the
event of an extreme weather event should be
prioritized.

Additionally, the housing stock in the Village of
Lancaster is significantly older than in other
neighboring municipalities. In fact, the Village

of Lancaster has 39% of homes built before
1940, and only 2% built after 2000, as reported
in the Joint Comprehensive Plan (2018). It is
more likely for older homes to lack central air
conditioning - a utility the UN declared a human
right in 2022 - as extreme heat events continue
to be more common.

26 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

From 1999-2017, climate-related and
geophysical disasters cost $2.9 trillion globally,
a sign that climate change induced events come
with a hefty financial burden™. It is important
that municipalities mitigate these impacts

prior to disaster events in order to avoid the
worst of these costs. The cost associated with
implementing different resilience strategies
varies greatly, and some are undeniably
expensive, yet it is important to remember that
having no strategy in place is more costly in the
long-run from a climate-related perspective.

According to the Erie County Hazard Mitigation
Plan (2022), the estimated damage to the
Village of Lancaster’s building stock from 100-
year floods (floods that have a 1% chance of
occurring annually) would cost $2.2 billion

for total replacement. The frequency of

these events is increasing due to climate
change. In addition to risks to building stock,
flooding poses an economic threat from
associated tax loss, impacts to utilities and
infrastructure, increased insurance costs,
business interruption, and impacts on tourism.
Debris removal after floods can be costly and
resource-intensive as well. It is estimated that
a 100-year flood event would produce nearly
4,000 tons of debris in the Village of Lancaster.’®

Severe winter storms also pose a threat to the
Village of Lancaster’s building stock. The cost
of a replacement of only 1% of the Village’s
building stock due to storm damage would be
over $22 billion."” Typical damage from severe
winter storms includes damage to roofs and
door frames from the weight and impact of
heavy snowfall, especially when combined with
high winds.



The Village of Lancaster has a variety of critical
infrastructure that needs to be considered for
climate resiliency. Although the bulk of Village
owned infrastructure includes Village Facilities
(DPW, Village Hall, Fire Stations), there are other
critical assets in the Village that are not owned
by the Village.

Some examples of these are the several bridges
and roads that provide access into and out of
the Village, which are owned by New York State
or Erie County. New York State Electric and Gas
(NYSEG) owns and operates an electrical sub-
station near downtown Lancaster, and there
are several rail lines that cross Central Avenue
and dominate the Village’s northern landscape
that are not owned by the Village. Although

the Village does not own or maintain this
infrastructure, they are crucial for the Village’s
ability to respond in the event of a climate
crisis. Coordinating planning and response
strategies with other muncipalities will be
important to maintaining the Village’s ability to
respond to an extreme event.

The Village’s 2020 Vulnerability Assessment
also identified some opportunities to improve
existing conditions at Village Hall and the DPW
Campus. This includes roof stabilization and
replacement at the “Steel Barn” that if not
addressed could result in collapse during a
major snow event. This type of damage has
the potential to reduce Public Work’s ability to
respond to an extreme event, and could result
in loss of life and property in the worst case
scenario.

Village Hall was also noted as having drainage
issues that could result in flooding at the facility
during a major rainfall or snow melt event.
Flooding at Village Hall could result in mold or

Climate Vulnerabilities

100 P OSSO0 DEOE LGB0 GEEOODNO0GES200000000C0DCEOPOEESSISIRIGEOIEERSIOIPEDPOETOIITINPOIIOIIBNI B EOOEROGOLOIOCGOOIEIOIOIIEOTSIOES

indoor air contamination that has the potential
to harm workers and residents that may need
to seek shelter during extreme heat or snowfall
events. Addressing these issues at Village
Facilities should be prioritized to ensure the
Village is capable of providing adequate support
for residents and workers in the case of an
extreme event.

It was noted by stakeholders that the Village of
Lancaster has been the hub for first responders
for the Town of Lancaster during previous
extreme weather events; therefore, efforts

to protect Village infrastructure will have an
impact beyond the Village’s boundaries, as well.

CENTRAL AVE RAIN GARDEN

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 27



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

B0 0 0000000000000 00C¢8C00000GEN0DGSIINNOOOEIDIBNRROCOIICIBRNCELBOBORBIORD000CCOCIIOGEDRCEOIOPICEEDBROOPROERERNOREOEBSDOE

Identifying Priorities
for Climate Resilience

The Village hosted scenario planning workshops with internal stakeholders
(Village staff, elected leaders, and volunteer committee members) and
youth in order to gain insights about the hazards and vulnerabilities that
are of greatest concern to community members and to identify priorities for
building resilience in the future.

Stakeholders were presented with projected climate scenarios for the mid-
21st century along with various approaches to developing resilience that
could help the Village prepare for such events.2° The scenarios (summarized

below) were presented by the planning team, and participants were asked
to identify the resilience approaches they deemed most effective for

addressing the hazards associated with each scenario. The feedback from
these workshops is included on pages 30-35.

In Summer 2050, the Village
of Lancaster is in the midst
of a record-setting heatwave.
There have been 9 consecutive
days with high temperatures
exceeding 90 degrees (F), and
the Village recorded its first
ever day over 100 degrees.

Demand for electricity is
at an all-time high, leading
to rolling brownouts and
intermittent power outages;
during these times many
residents are unable to cool
their homes and businesses.
Numerous reports of heat-
related illness have been
reported and cooling shelters
are working at maximum
capacity.

Flooding Scenario

In April of 2055, heavy rains
have soak the Village of
Lancaster over 13 consecutive
days. Two of these days
have totaled over 1.0 inch of
precipitation within 24 hours,
exceeding the 99th percentile
for daily precipitation levels.

The rains are creating flooding
conditions throughout the
Village. Water levels in Cayuga
and Plum Bottom Creeks are
at historic levels, overflowing
culverts and threatening
to wash out bridges. Many
homes, businesses, and
public buildings have been
damaged by the flooding, and
some roads are impassable to
vehicles, making emergency
operations all the more
difficult.

28 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Severe Winter Weather
Scenario

In January of 2053, a historic
lake effect snow event
blankets Western New York
with several feet of dense,
heavy snow. Temperatures
plummet and sustained heavy
winds cause damage to trees,
buildings, and vehicles. Several
neighborhoods lose electricity
for 2 or more days.

After the storm passes,
temperatures quickly rise
leading to rapid snowmelt
and flooding of streets and

buildings. Soon after clean-up
has started, a second storm
starts up. Streets become
icy, and there are numerous
reports of people stranded
in vehicles or stuck in their
homes due to drifting snow.



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

G CEeP P SIOCOSIOIO S 0000300006000 0300830 CEICOOL00D0CPTCIIIPOIRBOEOLEOIGIOPORCCEPIVPRRBDBOEDIOERNIABOOGTPBBOOECEOGSEOEDNOIEPOEID

Potential
Approaches

for building Climate Resilience

Nine potential approaches to building resilience at a
local level were presented to workshop participants.
These nine approaches, listed below, were developed
by the planning team through a review of past plans
and literature on climate adaptation. In general,

the potential approaches fall into actions related to
infrastructure improvements and others that deal with
planning and policy interventions.

These approaches are general and capable of
addressing the impacts of multiple climate hazards.
Implementation of these approaches could involve
various kinds of projects, programs, or policies. In this
way the potential approaches can be customized to
address local conditions and specific challenges.

Dedicated climate adaptation funds

Allocate funding obtained through taxes, fees, or cost
savings to support local climate adaptation actions.

Improved gray stormwater
infrastructure

Upgrade sewer and stormwater infrastructure and other
engineered systems to mitigate flooding, reduce runoff,
and improve water quality.

Green infrastructure/design

Utilize nature and nature-based solutions on public and
private property to mitigate flooding and extreme heat.

Enhanced emergency operations

Ensure emergency operations and systems are up-to-
date and people are well-informed about resources and
protocols during hazard events.

Sustainable development/land
conservation

Integrate climate risk into planning, urban design, and
development; employ zoning and land use controls to
protect wetlands and natural spaces to enhance resilience.

Climate education/outreach

Increase public awareness of changing climate impacts
and build support through community education; provide
training for city staff and first responders.

Structural upgrades for hazard
mitigation

Upgrade buildings and infrastructure to keep occupants
safe and comfortable and minimize damages during
flooding and other hazard events hazards.

Climate-resilient construction
material

Utilize sustainable materials that reflect solar energy to
minimize heat island impacts and allow water to permeate
the ground to reduce stormwater runoff.

Invasive species management

Ensure that ecosystems are protected from invasive species
that can have widespread impacts.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 29



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

GO E 0 G PPV OPPEDOO PO OOROOEROOEFODOGDNOOGEDDEINAEIPPS 2200000000008 S33CE00000O0CBDBDIPBIIEROGOIOCGEOOIOCERIRBRIROSEOIBIBRIRBREOOEEOEOEODRT

Identifying Priorities
2% for Extreme Heat

Issues related to extreme
heat stem from burning of
fossil fuels, and the resulting 1
emissions, known as greenhouse Wwalden AVE ﬁh

gases, which trap heat in worspdan (Y 5 v

the atmosphere. Increased ﬁ"‘i? :
atmospheric temperatures can
be compounded by ‘heat islands’
in developed areas where solar
heat is absorbed by, and radiates
from, buildings and paved
surfaces, resulting in higher
measured surface temperatures,
as shown on this map. Tree
planting and nature-based
solutions were identified by
Village stakeholders as strategic
ways to address extreme heat in
the Village of Lancaster.

Stakeholders identified places
throughout the Village that
could serve as Cooling Centers
for vulnerable residents, and
discussed where backup power
would most be needed in case
of blackout and brownouts,
particularly to keep municipal
services running in the case of
power outages. Working with
the local electric utility, NYSEG,
to include energy storage at the
sub-station in the Village could
also help preserve power for the
entire Village, allowing residents
with air conditioning to shelter oy
in place or provide refuge for ﬂ&ﬂl
neighbors in need during high '
heat events.

Public outreach and education
to help residents prepare and
understand existing resources
should be an important part of
the Village’'s overall resilience
strategy.

30 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

1P O OO OOIDPEOODOEN RPN P ORI ONOPNOOP R ERODOEOODOCOEOIRREOEOR00CRSRR00030000CEaTERBEEtIOOOOIIIDNOAIBIOESDN

What were the areas of concern
for Extreme Heat?

Lancaster Towers - a 9 story building with
158 units of affordable housing for seniors.
Maintaining air conditioning and electricity
to operate elevators will be critical during
periods of high heat.

Group Homes and Nursing Homes - a variety
of large and small facilities for seniors

or people with disabilities who may be
vulnerable to heat-related illness.

Schools - school children may be vulnerable
to heat-related illness; schools may also be
natural places to be equipped as cooling
centers/resilience hubs.

NYSEG Electrical substation - ensuring that
this infrastructure can remain operational
during high heat will protect the village’s
power supply.

Heat Islands in residential areas - more
paved/impermeable surface causes higher
temperatures in localized areas.

Q0 0 0006

Damaged tree canopy - loss of street trees
also leads to higher ground temperatures in
the surrounding areas.

Identified Assets for Resilience

A

B
C_

Fire halls - may serve as cooling centers/
resilience hubs during high heat events.

Senijor Center & Youth Bureau - public

buildings that could be equipped as cooling
centers though collaboration with the Town
of Lancaster.

Keysa Park Pool - a resource for residents
seeking to cool off during extreme heat, if
coordinated with the Town of Lancaster.

Top resilency approaches
recommended by...

...community members

...internal Stakeholders

Enhanced emergency operations

Cooling centers may also serve as
resilience resource hubs.

@ e

Climate Education & Outreach

Extreme heat may be a “new”
phenomenon for some residents.

=r
(=]
=

Climate-resilient construction
material

Reflective roofs and walls can help
buildings stay cooler.

D | (

I=!
(=]
=

Green Infrastructure/design

Planting trees is cost-effective and
provides additional benefits.

(=T
I}
=l

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 31



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

00 6000000006006 02080¢000000008620202000806080880606003000000¢00CESTENBCEPTIOERCGEOIROICGEOSEIIPIIDPOIOPDIOIIOINOSEIEBIOCGEBIRAOBSIIOCILIOGPOOIIOERROIOSIOBDEOOS

Identifying Priorities
for Flooding

The Village of Lancaster
has a history of dealing
with localized flooding.
Stakeholder concerns focused

on areas with a history of
past flooding incidents, and
many community members ____,._.——-—'//

Wwalden Ave

mentioned the need for
household flood-control

measures, including sump s
‘,M

pumps, throughout the Village. e il : e
a

Neighborhoods near Como
Lake Park, Cayuga Creek
and Plum Bottom Creek
were identified as the most
vulnerable areas of the
Village for flooding. It will be
important for the Village to
continue to take measures
to mitigate flooding near
these waterways, as critical

infrastructure such as bridges,
roads, rail corridors, County
o
X
]
P
23
<
2
o

any Yenusd

stormwater assets, the

Village’s DPW, and residential
housing are all located in the
FEMA recognized flood zones.

There have been numerous
projects recently completed
or funded that will

address flooding in the
Village, however upstream
development of natural

lands for housing may
exacerbate flooding in the
Village and other downstream
communities in the
watershed, suggesting the
need for coordinated planning
with other municipalities
within the creeks’ watersheds.

Como Park Biyg

32 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

[ A A R AR AR SR A AN ERREN R AR R R A RN RN REE N ENEEENNEEREENER N RN N ERE R AENENENENE N A NS EEEN NN NN NN NN N ENNYNYNNEY XN

What were the areas of concern
for Flooding?

Cayuga Creek at Lake Avenue and along the
north edge of Como Lake Park - the most
flood-prone area in the Village of Lancaster,
including significant flooding in 2017. Dredg-
ing of the creek is required periodically to
remove sediment carried by upstream runoff.

The neighborhood south of Cayuga Creek
between Brunswick and Aurora St. is prone
to flooding. Parts of this neighborhood may
lie within the floodplain when FEMA maps
are re-drawn.

Lancaster DPW and an Erie County waste-
water pumping facility are located in close
proximity to a flood-prone areas.

Any new development along Brookfield Place
may contend with future flooding issues as it
is close to the 100 yr floodplain boundary.

The area between Holland Ave. and School
St. is also vulnerable to flooding from Plum
Bottom Creek during heavy precipitation
events.

Conrail/Erie - Lackawanna Railroad - crosses
the Plum Bottom Creek floodplain; opera-
tions may be impacted by future flooding
events.

New culvert installed along Plum Bottom
Creek to manage flow in the village’s down-
town.

Green Infrastructure projects have been
installed at various locations, including
Pleasant Avenue, to assist with stormwater
absorption.

Top resilency approaches
recommended by...

...community members

...internal Stakeholders

Structural Upgrades for Hazard
Mitigation (Flood-Proofing)

The DPW facility on Broadway

was noted as Priority #1 for flood
protection.

Improved “gray” stormwater
infrastructure

Incremental upgrades to the sewer
system and engineered flood
prevention near creeks.

e e

=0
=
(=

Green Infrastructure & Design

Use natural areas and nature-based
designs to absorb stormwater.

D (

Enhanced Emergency Operations
Planning for flood events and
potential evacuation is increasingly
important.

(=l
=
=

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 33



Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

AR AR R EEEEREREEEREEEEEENRERNENNNREREEEE A ENREENEENEEEENEEE RN EEE RN NNEE NN EEEN RN E NN EE RN N RN NRN RN R RN NN NENNENNN]

Identifying Priorities for
Severe Winter Weather

The winter storm scenario discussed

in the workshops bore similarities to a
storm the Village experienced in recent
years. Stakeholders recalled being

the epicenter of heavy snow events,
and quickly becoming the hub for

first responders in the region. Power
outages and transportation issues were
some of the highest priorities for many
of the stakeholders.

Having safe access to seniors and
vulnerable residents that may live in
older housing stock or rely on medical
equipment for their survival was top of
mind. Clearing routes to local warming
shelters or providing access to health
care facilities should be prioritized
during such events. It is also important
to provide adequate advanced warning
to help residents and first responders
better prepare for extreme weather
events.

Climate education and outreach may
be the most effective way to help
Village residents and employees
prepare for these extreme events.
Preparing homes with survival kits and
emergency plans, knowing
the available resources and
which residents may need
them, and having adequate
communications networks
are all critical to building
community resilience to P s
extreme winter weather. i

Extreme weather events i
also have the potential to g
include localized flooding as
snow melts. Considerations ;
for flooding should also be i3 11y f g
applied to winter weather e s &
preparedness. ’ N

A e le

ETERITHVE mead i vwn L gum
e

Rl T T =
[ N
Y

34 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



What were the areas of concern
for Severe Winter Weather?

&

DPW Building - snowplows and other heavy
equipment kept here are key to the Village's
response to major snow and winter weather
events. Keeping snow from piling up around

ground-level HVAC units was identified as an

important task.

Lancaster Volunteer Ambulance Company -
vital to the Village’s emergency response.

Lancaster Volunteer Fire Department
facilities

Identifying Priorities for Climate Resilience

[ EE N EREENEREE RN SR AN SN RN SN RN NN N N N R N AR NN A R N RN NN N R N YN NN N

Top resilency approaches
recommended by...

...community members

...internal Stakeholders

NYSEG Electrical Substation - power lines
near this station may be vulnerable to high
winds.

(3
Enhanced Emergency Operations
Establishing and equipping warming -
shelters at community sites. It

Lancaster Towers (senior housing) - high
priority site for emergency response

Qo000

Local schools and preschool

Climate Education & Outreach
Promote household preparation
for winter weather events and the
resources available to residents.

e

@O O

DPW - a potential warming shelter. To date,
the Village has not established warming
shelter/resilience hub sites for extreme
cold/”Code Blue” events.

Public Library - a potential warming shelter
location

Fire Stations - potential warming shelter
locations

Dedicated Climate Adaptation
Funds to support Vulnerable
Populations

Funds should be prioritized for
lower-income and vulnerable
households.

=i
=)
L=

e

Improve “Grey” Storm Water
Infrastructure

Improvements to stormwater
drainage systems will reduce flooding
from snowmelt.

=
1=l
(=]

[>'

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

35



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

[IE R E R ENEEENNEERE N NN RN ER RN RN RN R R E R NN R N N NN AN R R N NN E NN RN R NN NN N N N N N R NN NN NN NYRNNENRNNNENNNXNNN]

Recommended
Strategies for
Climate Resilience

The recommended strategies described

in this section identify steps that can be
taken to enhance climate resilience in the
Village of Lancaster, with important roles for
both community members and the village
government. These recommendations were
developed through the synthesis of scientific

research on future climate impacts, assessment

of local conditions, and feedback from
community residents and stakeholders about
the resiliency approaches that were presented.

Feedback from the internal stakeholder
group tended to focus on village operations,
infrastructure and long-term development,
while community members focused more on
quality of life issues; however, the resilience
strategies selected by each group show
remarkable overlap for all of the scenarios
discussed (see pp. 31, 33, 35).

The prioritization of resilience strategies by
community survey respondents was more
general, as the survey did not break down
choices by hazard type. The top-priority
strategies among survey respondents were
focused on land use decisions (protecting
natural areas, avoiding development in hazard-
prone areas) and maintaining/upgrading
traditional infrastructure, with less focus on
new programming or protocols for adapting to
climate impacts.

36 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Stakeholders identified several of the resilience
approaches as cross-cutting priorities for all
climate adaptation action that the Village may
take on. These include:

* Climate education and outreach - can
bolster awareness of available resources,
help to dispel misinformation, and improve
household preparedness for climate hazards.

* Enhanced emergency operations - evolving
climate hazards will require new methods
and technologies to be employed by
municipalities to manage emergencies.

* Dedicated climate adaptation funding —
diverse and innovative modes of funding are
needed to ensure sustained progress and
avoid competing with other priority areas
for public funds. Potential funding sources
for each of the recommended strategies are
identified on page 45.

In the following section, each recommended
strategy is described in terms of how it could
contribute to climate resilience in the Village of
Lancaster. The “How This Strategy Performs”
matrix accompanying each recommendation
provides information on the relative resilience
benefit, costliness, and complexity of
implementing the strategy?, followed by ideas
for local implementation to address specific
hazards.



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

[ AN NN EENNEENENENEEEENENEEEEEEE N EEE N EE NN NN EENENENE SN NENNENEE RN NN NN EE RN E RN NN E N E R R N N N NN RN NN NN NN

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Enhance emergency operations
for extreme weather events

Extreme weather events have prompted municipalities
to enhance their emergency operations. This can

entail targeted communication to inform the public

on emergency procedures, early-warning systems and
protocols, and ensuring adequate emergency preparation
and back-up power at emergency shelters and critical
facilities.

Given its applicability across all hazard types and its
importance for effective emergency response, this
strategy was the most popular choice among community
and internal stakeholders. The Village of Lancaster

also serves as the center of operations for the Town of
Lancaster’s emergency response; thus ensuring that the
Village’s public infrastructure and the transportation
network can function during and after extreme weather
events is of high importance.

How this Strategy
Performs

low high
e e e

Benefit [ I B 0

Cost HENNEN

Infrastructure
Complexity SEEENE

Stakeholder B i EEE

Complexity

LA NN RANENENEEREEEBNEEREEREEEREREENEBEREENENENEEREREREEERENNEERENERNENEEEEEEEEEE NN EE NN EENNNNENENNNRENNNNNENNN]

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

Flooding
» Establish a “Code Red” * Update flood evacuation
system for to notify residents protocols and provide
of extreme heat events and targeted communications
the resources available to about them to residents who
mitigate heat-related risks. live in the most flood-prone

« Establish cooling shelters at neighborhoods.
public facilities; utilize these  + Coordinate planning for

sites to provide information future flooding events with
and resources for making other communities within
homes more efficient and the Cayuga Creek watershed.
comfortable. Engage non-profit partners

with expertise in this area,

» Provide support to facilities such as Buffalo Niagara

providing housing to
vulnerable populations to
ensure back-up power is in
ptace and residents can be
kept safe during extreme
weather event.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Waterkeeper, to review plans.

Severe Winter
Weather

Ensure emergency protocols
prioritize first responder
and DPW facilities to ensure
emergency services can
access roads.

Develop emergency plans &
protocols in collaboration
with Town of Lancaster,
Village of Depew, and Erie
County.

Designate and equip public
facilities, such as schools, to
serve as emergency shelters
during extreme cold events.
Coordinate with OEM to
request supplies in advance.

Enforce Village’s winter
parking ban on streets to
ensure roads can be plowed
during heavy snow events.

37



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

(I EREEEE R A AR EEER AR EEE R E AR EEEE RN EEE RN EEE R NN NSRS EEEE NS NN N N N R N RN RN N R R N NN NN NN NNNYNN NN NN

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Bolster climate awareness and household hazard
preparedness through education and outreach

Climate education and outreach helps communities
adapt to climate hazards by increasing knowledge of
potential impacts at the local level, motivating residents
to prepare their homes for extreme weather events,

and connecting them with resources to help with these
preparations.

Outreach and education can be accomplished through
creative methods and tailored to local needs and
interests; it may include special events, targeted media
campaigns, workshops or trainings, surveys to gather
information from residents, and other means of public
engagement. These efforts require considerable planning
and coordination, and have varying costs depending on
scale; however they can be a relatively straight-forward
way to build buy-in for efforts to build climate resilience

How this Strategy
Performs

low high
e 4

Benefit (I N BN

cost HNEENE

Infrastructure
Complexity EEEEN

Stakeholder T HEE

Complexity

and other sustainability initiatives at the local level.

IE R AN N R AR R EN SR E RN EE R R R A RN E RN RN RSN ENE N RN S RN BN N NN R N N NN R NN RN NN NN NN NN N NENNRNYNY N

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

* Provide information through
print and social media and
local news sources about
heat-related health threats,
locations of cooling centers,
and resources for cooling
homes and neighborhoods.

* Encourage renewable energy
sources and energy storage
among households and local
businesses to minimize
the demand on the local
electrical grid during high
heat days.

Flooding

» Target education and
outreach to households
located within flood-prone
areas near Cayuga and Plum
Bottom Creeks. Provide tips
or starter kits to encourage
households to plan for and
put together emergency
supplies for flooding events.

* Provide education throughout
the community on household
preparedness for flooding
and other weather-related
emergency events, the
Village’s evacuation routes,
and the location of areas of
refuge if evacuation orders
are given,

38 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Severe Winter
Weather

* Provide education to

community members
regarding household
preparation for extreme
weather events, including
the supplies to have on
hand and plans for if heat
or electrical power is lost.
Consider providing simple
emergency kits to households
and educating K-12
students about household
preparedness.

Provide information to home
and business owners about
practical steps to protect
their properties from damage
during severe weather events.



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

0SB0 OREGOCELEEONOOVOODDOIBONOBREDDBD 0GOS ENBOBOGPSPOIPSEGDPOEEDPDOEEDPLEOOEODOPNIDOISDNIONIOIOPLPOEPGEEIPOIOIBROIEOSEES

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Promote sustainable development and protect
natural areas through land use regulations

Municipal land use regulations can support climate
resilience by preserving natural areas, which provide
environmental services, and encouraging development

in suitable locations at appropriate densities. Zoning
codes can designate areas for conservation, and can be
complemented by building and infrastructure codes that
integrate sustainable development goals in construction
materials and operations. Due to the many stakeholders
impacted by land use decisions, land use regulations can cost NN HEN

be procedurally complex to implement, but the potential
Infrastructure g
Complexity SEEEE

benefit for climate resilience is high.
The priorities for resilience among community survey

Stakeholder i 0 B =
Complexity

How this Strategy
Performs

low high
T

Benefit I N D

respondents focused on this category, highlighting the
desire to avoid problems, when possible, by restricting
development in hazard prone areas and maintaining the
benefits of greenspaces and natural areas.

LA AN R ENERNEEEENEEEEZEENERNEANRNEEANENAEEEEENEENENERNERERNEENENNEENNNENENENENENENNENEREN N NENENNNNNENENNNNNEN]

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

Flooding

Ty~

* Promote compact development downtown « Revise zoning code to minimize new

and along commercial corridors through
in-fill development and adaptive re-use
of existing buildings, prioritizing energy
efficiency and modernized HVAC systems;
facilitate building reuse through financial
incentives and technical assistance for
developers or business owners.

« Develop infrastructure for walking and
biking (such as sidewalks, bike lanes, and
lighting) within the Village and connecting
downtown to commercial areas and
important community locations to allow for
safe and expedient mobility during extreme
heat events and reduce the need for car
travel.

« Capitalize on new public transit routes by
planning for development in areas near
transit stops.

development in flood-prone areas or
natural areas that provide important

environmental services, such as flood
control.

Consider building permit requirements
that would require infrastructure
improvements (especially sewer) as part
of new developments.

Identify properties with natural land
cover that have strategic value for
reducing stormwater runoff and provide
incentives for conservation of natural
land. Add new public parks when
possible.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 39



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

S8 00 0P 00 OCCO PN POONRDDRPOOPPPDREOPCOETICEODORRRINDOIDPIDDBOIOOOIEDBOCOREIEODPEONOSOGOO P OEEOPISIORLOIOPEINIOPOPROEECSESES

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Upgrade stormwater & sewer
systems to mitigate flooding

As extreme precipitation events become more common, How this Strategy
improvements to “gray” stormwater infrastructure can Performs

help municipalities reduce stormwater runoff, flooding,

and degraded water quality. Replacing older sewer lines e High
and stormwater systems can provide considerable long- o b RS S
term benefits for managing flooding, though improvements Benefit I ENE

on this level are inevitably costly and involve complex
engineering and in-depth stakeholder engagement.

Other measures may be more cost-effective, such as
pumping station upgrades, green infrastructure, or artificial

Cost N NN

barriers and reservoirs to impede stormwater runoff. Inflé%srt;;lce';uii‘; EEEEE
Sewer and stormwater system upgrade projects to manage

flooding from local creeks were identified by all of the Stakeholder EEEEE
stakeholder groups as a high-priority for the Village of Complexity ™

Lancaster, given on-going flood concerns.

(LA RN EEEEEE AR SR AR EEEE RN NN NN NN N R R R R R N RN N N N NN NN N R Y Y N N NN YY)

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

Flooding Severe Winter
Weather
» Develop a plan to determine sections * Identify areas where rapid snowmelt or ice
of sewer or stormwater infrastructure jams may contribute to local flooding or
that need to be replaced or repaired problems with stormwater management
over time. ldentify and prioritize areas and incorporate these areas into the list of
of highest flooding concern or where sewer/stormwater system sections that are
drainage infrastructure is inadequate to prioritized for upgrades.

handle the current flow of stormwater
for replacement when funding is
available.

* Prioritize flood management
infrastructure near Plum Bottom Creek in
the eastern part of the Village, which has
the lowest elevation and may be more
prone to flooding.

* ldentify green infrastructure or
engineered solutions that can help to
divert or retain stormwater to minimize
flood pressures on the existing system.

» Encourage residents to disconnect gutter
downspouts from the sewer system.

40 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Climate Resilience Strategy:

Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

EE R AN EEREREEENREEREEE RN AR S AR N E AR EEREE R E N E R R R E N E E N R NN N N Y R NN R RN YN NN R NN YN Y YR EN)

Promote green infrastructure on public

and private property

Green infrastructure involves using materials, technology
and design elements to emulate and maintain the function
of natural systems, reducing the impact of climate hazards
like flooding and extreme heat. Green infrastructure for
flood control includes bioswales, rain gardens, green street
design, or pavement removal. Heat island impacts can be
reduced by using green roofs & walls, urban forestry, and

green design.

Implementing this strategy can be costly, but saves

costs in other areas, such as avoiding expensive sewer
infrastructure replacements and reducing energy use by
cooling buildings. It can also enhance the visual appeal of

urban areas

The Village of Lancaster has successfully integrated green
infrastructure at Cayuga Creek Park, and manages a tree-
planting program to enhance the Village’s tree canopy.

How this Strategy
Performs

Benefit

Cost

Infrastructure
Complexity

Stakeholder
Complexity

L EA N RN A AR BN EEREE A RN EEE EREE NN NN NN R RN N N RN RN N NN NN R Y N Y N N Y N NN

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

Extreme Heat

» Continue and expand tree planting
programs along residential streets,
commercial areas, and public spaces to
increase areas with natural shade and tree
diversity within the Village. Tree planting
efforts should be aligned with areas where
higher heat island effects have been
recorded.

» Develop an educational campaign to
involve residents and students in tree
planting and tree care on their properties,
including information on selecting species
of trees and other plants that support
biodiversity and climate resilience.

* Provide low- or no-cost tree saplings and
native plants to residents to encourage
climate-resilient landscaping practices.

Flooding

Include requirements for green
infrastructure, such as bioswales
and rain gardens, in site plans for
new development that will increase
impervious surface on a site.

Encourage residents to disconnect
gutter downspouts from the stormwater
system by incentivizing rain-barrel
connections.

Organize green infrastructure
demonstration projects and develop
educational resources to inform
residents and business owners about
the rationale for these projects.

Provide educational material and host
workshops to encourage residents to
install rain gardens.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 41



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

00 8 0008900000000 0000800080080006000006800080000000D0000060000P0 0000060008008 0CECPIRESBIBTAROIECGRIEGEIIBSBOIAROROIOEOIOROROOSTDBE

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Help property owners upgrade
structures to mitigate hazards

Structural upgrades can help buildings withstand extreme
weather events including winter weather, flooding, and high
heat, while also protecting the occupants from the impacts
of these events. Increased energy efficiency in buildings
that leverage renewable energy and energy storage allow
buildings to maintain indoor temperatures while providing
reliable energy and backup power for residents. This
reduces exposure for residents and can enhance public
safety.

Although, this strategy relies heavily on engineering
solutions, which may be complex and costly to implement,
it is likely to save lives and costs related to natural disaster
recovery.22

How this Strategy
Performs

low high
SE

ENERN
ENNER
. HEn

Benefit

Cost

Infrastructure
Complexity

Stakeholder

Other examples could include modular construction,
temporary or movable features that protect from flood
infiltration or extreme heat, and improved drainage.

. Hn

Complexity

JA R AR R R R R R AN A AR R R R R RSN R NN EEEE R EEEREESE NN AR ENE RN EE NN EE RN N R NN NN R R N N N N N NN RN NN N

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

= Provide information about
existing programs that
assist low- to moderate-
income households and
local businesses to take
advantage of incentives for
energy-efficiency upgrades
and weatherization at their
properties.

« Pursue and allocate
dedicated funding such as
Community Development
Block Grants (CDBG) for
home improvements to assist
with climate adaptation, such
as home energy efficiency,
air conditioning, backup
power, and renewable energy
resources.

Flooding

Revise building codes to
make flood mitigation
practices and materials,

such as drainage systems
and freeboarding, standard
practice for new construction
or large-scale rehab projects
in flood-prone areas.

Provide a local demonstration
of flood-proofing on a public
or private building within a
flood-prone area along with
information about how to
implement flood-proofing

for home and business
owners.

Require that new or rehabbed
homes in flood prone areas
be equipped with sump
pumps.

Adjust zoning maps as new
floodplain maps are released
to discourage development in
flood-prone areas.

42  Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

Severe Winter
Weather

Provide Information about
existing programs that
promote home energy
upgrades, such as insulation,
HVAC systems, and other
energy efficiency measures.

Identify existing programs to
assist low- to medium-income
households to equip their
homes with back-up power.

Ensure that heating systems
at public facilities are
adequately vented to protect
from being affected by drifting
snow. Provide information to
the pubic about adequate
ventalation for heating
systems during severe weather
events.

Explore how micro-grid
systems using renewable
energy and energy storage
could help provide back-up
power during outages.



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

S0 020000 ¢000008003000003¢080 000000000 00600080 0008000 C000EP 0 TRSIIEEOCIRIOEBCEDOCEIRBROROOEROOINCEOEOEOGEOEODS

Climate Resilience Strategy:

Increase the use of climate-resilient
building materials

Climate-resilient construction materials can enhance :

resilience to climate hazards for buildings and FLON S SLIOLEEY
neighborhoods. Sustainable and lighter-colored materials

and building exteriors can mitigate extreme heat effects low high
and reduce stormwater runoff. e
Examples of climate resilient construction materials are Benefit BN B
white roofs and walls to reflect solar heat and “cool” and

permeable pavements. Using climate-resilient materials cost HHEBEE
in new construction and renovation projects provides a :

relatively high benefit at moderate or low costs; as such, Infrastructure

the projects are generally fairly simple in terms of the Complexity dEEEDR
administrative effort and infrastructure required.

Local building codes can be updated to require or Stakeholder EEEEE
encourage the use of more sustainable and resilient Complexity = =%

building materials.

€ 2 0 00 0200000000000 TSOSOEPLOIIPIIORISECOICINIOROPECPOESTPRPIDPIEPIPOEIOOIOGIBOEIIOIDIACGCESRNOEODTIPIOOODPOIOIGEERTDPEDS

HOW COULD THIS BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE VILLAGE OF LANCASTER?

Flooding

» Amend building codes to require or + Amend building codes to require or
encourage the use of white/reflective encourage the use of permeable or “cool”
coatings or materials on roofs and walls pavements on building sites that exceed a
over a specified size. threshold of impervious surface area.

¢ ldentify funding (grants or low-cost loans) * Create a demonstration project by
to assist property-owners in retro-fitting installing permeable or “cool” pavement
buildings with climate-resilient building at a public facility and sharing information
materials such as reflective paint or with the public about how it performs
roofing materials. differently than traditional pavements.

» Install reflective roof coating on one
or more Village-owned buildings and
share photos and energy savings info
with the public to demonstrate positive
impacts. Host events at which contractors
and business owners can learn about
reflective roofing materials and
installation.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 43



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

P 85 G000 DRGNS DEDG 000 CRARRREEEOEPRRIESDBOLONOBOIBDBRROEILIGSCEOEETSSODPRITIRTPEONOPDPCEIOIDPIOEBINCGEOIEOROBORIRAOAONOIOOGOEDBDPTOGOEOSYN

Strategy

The Risk/
Opportunity

Strategy Description

Implementation
Leads

Enhance emergency

operations for
extreme weather
events

Village emergency
operations must
adapt to changing
hazards like extreme
heat.

Continue to enhance local emergency
operations and communications from
the Village and adapt these systems to
changing climate hazards.

Village government,
Police, Fire, and Office of
Emergency Management
(OEM) working with all
Village departments

Bolster climate
awareness

and household
preparedness
through outreach
and education

Prepare households
to manage climate
hazards and build
support for climate
action.

Make households more aware and
prepared for climate hazards through
strategic education and outreach,
technical assistance, and funding.

Village government, Fire
Dept., OEM, DPW, Water,
Schools, Library, Youth
Dept., Senior Citizens

Promote
sustainable
development and
protect natural

areas through land

use regulations

Development could
overextend Village
infra-structure and
threaten natural
areas that suport
hazard mitigation
and climate
resilience.

Use land use planning, policies, zoning,
and other incentives to encourage
development in previously developed
areas to conserve and enhance natural

areas, limit new infrastructure needs, and

mitigate hazards.

Village government,
Planning and Zoning
Boards, Community

non profits, Conservation
organizations, NY State

Upgrade
stormwater and
sewer systems to
mitigate flooding

Aging sewer

& stormwater
infrastructure

can contribute to
flooding problems.

Continue to make cohesive, strategic
efforts to maintain, update, and enhance
the sewer system to prepare to handle
more extreme precipitation events.

Village government, DPW,
Engineering, Water, WNY
Stormwater Coalition

Promote green
infrastructure on
public and private

property

Green infrastructure
is a cost-effective
but underutilized
measure to mitigage
flooding and other
hazards.

Expand the use of green infrastructure
in public places and on residential and
commercial properties through strategic
planning, education and outreach,
technical assistance, funding, and
incentives.

Village government, DPW
Engineering, Property
owners, Consultant(s),
Planning and Zoning Boards

Help property
owners upgrade
structures to
mitigate hazards

Older homes and
buildings can
increase hazard
risks for community
members.

Provide homeowners with financing,
funding, technical assistance, and other
supports to encourage improvements to
energy efficiency and flood resistance.

Village government, DPW
Engineering, Building
Inspector, Property owners,
Consultant(s)

Increase the use of

climate-resilient
building materials

New construction
and rehabilitation
projects can employ
advanced building
materials to manage
heat and extreme
weather.

Provide building owners, developers,
and homebuilders with incentives and
technical assistance to utilize building
materials that will reduce heat island
effects, protect from flooding, and

minimze other impacts related to extreme

weather.

Village government, DPW
Engineering, Building
Inspector, Property owners,
Consultant(s)

44 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



Recommended Strategies for Climate Resilience

Ways to Implement

G0 DO OPBSENOOPSBOTOOGOIOEEODOICOCOOP0COCERCCECCRCERROOISOEDPOOPROIRCERRRIRLRDIGRO208 00000020000 00°CI0PCGBOOCRCEDRTDS

Funding Options

* Emergency notification system to inform/prepare public for hazards.

* Ensure all Village buildings and schools are properly equipped to serve as
emergency shelters during extreme heat and cold.

* Purchase vehicles for Village departments to enable first responders to travel in
extreme snowfall events.

* Coordinate emergency plans with nearby municipalities, Erie County, and State
agencies.

* Require or incentivize backup power generator capability for critical services.

FEMA Preparedness Grants, FEMA/NYS
Department of Homeland Security and
Emergency Services, Building Resilient
Infrastructure and Communities

« Community outreach and education to promote awareness and preparedness.

» Distribute emergency supplies & resources to enable residents to shelter in
place.

* Support community groups to assist in hazard response/recovery, especially
vulnerable populations (e.g., distributing food/supplies via snowmobiles).

» Partner with nearby municipalities, County or State to implement/fund strategy.

US EPA Environmental Justice Small
Grants (EJSG) and Greening America’s
Communities; FEMA Preparedness
Grants and Building Resilient
Infrastructure and Communities; NYS
DEC Climate Smart Communities

* Adapt zoning and engage with conservation non-profits to protect wetlands
and other designated natural areas.

» Investigate other land use policies to limit flooding and preserve wetlands, tree

« cover, parks, and other open spaces.

» Promote adaptive reuse of existing buildings through financial incentives.

* Use zoning to encourage development in areas connected to existing sewers.

« Limit new development outside of existing sewer system, or require system

» upgrades as part of any new development that utilizes sewer system.

NYS DEC, Freshwater Wetlands
Program; NYS Environmental Protection
Fund Grants; National Fish and Wildlife
Foundation, Acres for America; US EPA
Wetlands Protection Development
Grants; US EPA and NYS DEC
Brownfields Program Grant Funding; NY
Main Street Program

* Remove residential stormwater from entering the sanitary sewer system.

* Redesign and right-size the sewer infrastructure where necessary.

* Procure State and Federal funds and other funding sources for system
improvements.

* Develop a strategic plan to determine how to most efficiently carry out
additional sewer projects through phased implementation to address the most
critical infrastructure needs and capitalize on available funds.

US EPA, Sewer Overflow and
Stormwater Reuse Grants; NYS
Environmental Facilities Corporation,
Water Infrastructure Improvement Act;
Northern Border Regional Commission,
State Economic & Infrastructure
Development Investment Program,
Inflation Reduction Act

* Incorporate strategic plans for green infrastructure (Gl) in comprehensive plan.

* Update zoning codes to promote Gl use for neighborhoods and Village.

« Adapt Villagewide tree inventory for increased diversity and climate resilience.

* Demonstration projects for Gi with public education components for
residences, businesses, and public spaces, and other education on Gl practices/
opportunities.

» Promote Gl for residents and businesses through new incentives, funds or
credits, including rain barrel and rain garden programs.

» Monitoring and outreach to maintain Gl practices on private lands.

NYS Environmental Facilities
Corporation, Green Innovation Grants;
US EPA Great Lakes Restoration
Initiative; US EPA Green Streets, Jobs,
Towns (G3) Grants; NYS DEC Urban and
Community Forestry Grants

* Provide technical and financial assistance to promote home energy-saving
improvements such as insulation, and other energy efficiency measures.

* Procure and allocate Village dedicated funds for climate adaptations and home
improvements, such as air conditioning, back up power and renewable energy.
* Ensure energy efficiency and hazard mitigation measures for new construction.

* Install demonstration projects on Village properties.

NYSERDA Home Energy Efficiency/
Performance Programs; US Dept. of
Energy, Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Block Grant Program;
HUD, USACE Floodplain Management
Services (FPMS) Program, Tax credits/
abatements, Inflation Reduction Act

* Revise building codes to require/encourage the use of climate-resilient building
materials to manage heat and flooding impacts.

* Secure and implement funding (grants, low interest loans) to assist property
owners in retrofitting their homes and businesses.

* Provide education through outreach, technical assistance programs, and
demonstration projects at public buildings.

NYSERDA Regional Clean Energy

Hubs; NYSERDA Clean Green Schools
Initiative; US Dept. of Energy, Energy
Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
Program; HUD, Tax credits/abatements,
Inflation Reduction Act

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

45



Next Steps

00 0D S8 0PRSS DENBDEODNORCRRRRCOES008000RTIODPOIDPBREOEGCOICGEGCGCPRECEGIAECIOIESIDPOROIDPOODREDIEBDIGICEEODEEOEIOINOIBDROIAONOGOSGOOGOSGOSS

Moving Forward

This document provides a starting point for an
ongoing process to promote climate resilience
in the Village of Lancaster that involves
continual review and revision. The resilience
strategies that the Village implements should
be regularly monitored to track progress

and results evaluated relative to the Village’s
resilience goals. Project results should be
shared with the public and elected leaders.

The Village will need to reassess vulnerabilities
periodically as the impacts of natural hazards
on local conditions continues to evolve. Lessons
learned can be applied to adapt resilience
strategies and identify new approaches. This
process will require continual engagement
with the community’s residents, businesses,
organizations, and other stakeholders to
ensure that new resilience strategies reflect
the public’s concerns and empower
community-led climate action.

This plan and its recommended strategies
are intended to inform the Village’s

future planning processes, including the
Comprehensive Plan update, where the
strategies included here can be refined and
moved toward implementation.

46 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

The Village of Lancaster has already made
meaningful progress toward building

climate resiliency, due in part to the healthy
cooperation between the elected leaders,
community members, and key departments
within the Village government. The ongoing
work of the Climate Smart Communities Task
Force, Forestry Advisory Board, and the Village’s
Sustainability Coordinator have been and will
continue to be instrumental in moving the
climate resilience strategies forward.

Collaboration with neighboring municipalities,
Erie County, and New York State agencies (such
as the Dept. of Environmental Conservation)
will also be key to making measurable progress
toward community resilience, especially in the
area of flood management, and responding to
extreme weather events.




Next Steps

18900 8QC 002G RODESIBGIESOOOIGEOPD¢IGSICEEEITEETOIOECERPOEOPEOPARIICEORRININONESPIPPIOPOPOOOOOETAIOBGORORBROOEROOGODPSIIOSONEOSNOOSESSESE

Over the course of this plan’s development,
three of the resilience strategies were
repeatedly identified as over-arching strategies
that should be prioritized in order to enable
more specific and localized resilience projects.

These cross-cutting strategies are:

¢ Climate Education & Qutreach to build
community buy-in for new initiatives.

» Enhanced Emergency Operations to protect
residents and the community at-large at
critical moments.

¢ Securing dedicated climate adaptation
funding to provide for timely and flexible
development of resilience projects.

Conclusion

The Village of Lancaster has
demonstrated its commitment to
leadership in the areas of sustainability
and climate action. This plan represents
another step in the Village’s efforts to
ensure the safety and well-being of

its residents and stewardship of its
natural environment in light of evolving
climatic conditions. Implementing the
plan’s recommendations will involve
the dedicated efforts of community
members and stakeholders, in addition
to the Village’s government.

The ability to secure funding will have
obvious implications for the scope and
timeline of future climate resilience
projects in the Village. Thanks to the
planning that has already been done,
the Village of Lancaster should be in a
strong position to capitalize on State
and federal funding opportunities.

Sustaining and amplifying the work of
building climate resiliency today will
help to ensure that future generations
of residents can experience life in the
Village of Lancaster at its best for many
years to come.

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 47



Data Sources and Notes

000 5680 2000000000280 060800 CEDBPLBLOIOIPRERRCEPIDEOPREROOOIDIIIIIDIDNOLEPNCRABESIDIIIOGECRERESIPSGCIGSQROSRESEOSOIOEBNOIROIGTOIDBDOEOY

Data Sources

and Notes

1. Pg. 8 - Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC) Sixth Assessment Report, WGI, Technical Summary;
B.D. Santer et.al.,, “A search for human influences on the
thermal structure of the atmosphere,” 1996. Nature, 382;
T. Westerhold et al,, “An astronomically dated record

of Earth’s climate and its predictability over the last 66
million years,” 2020. Science, 369.

2. Pg 14 - Britannica. “Seneca.” (2024). https:/www.
britannica.com/topic/Seneca-people.

3. Pg. 14 - “Town of Lancaster, Village of Lancaster, Village
of Depew Joint Comprehensive Plan.” 2018. Prepared by
Wendel, WWS Planning, and Larsen Engineers.

4. Pg. 15 - US Census, American Community Survey (ACS),
5-year estimates, 2022. Population comparison are based
on population data from: “Town of Lancaster, Village of
Lancaster, Village of Depew Joint Comprehensive Plan.”
2018.

5. Pg. 15 - US Census, ACS, 5-year estimates, 2017-2022.

6. Pg 15 - US Census, Center for Economic Studies,
Longitudinal Employment-Household Dynamics, Origin-
Destination Employment Statistics, 2020. Accessed August,
2023 via https://onthemap.ces.census.gov/

7. Pg. 17 - Environmental Areas Table. Developed Area:
USGS, National Land Cover Dataset, 2021. Represents the
sum of all areas classified as developed (includes low,
medium-, or high intensity development). Impervious
surfaces: USGS, Impervious Surfaces, 2021. Impervious
surface data provides the percent impervious cover for all
areas in the US, at a resolution of 30m. This percentage
cover is multiplied by the area of each pixel in the data
(900m2) and divided by the total land area to determine
the overall percent impervious cover in the City. Wetlands:
NYSDEC Regulated Wetlands, National Wetlands Inventory
2023; Parks/Open Spaces and Vacant Land: Erie County Tax
Parcel Data 2022; Trees; Village of Lancaster Tree Inventory
2019.

48 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

8. Pg. 18 - US Census, 2010 and 2020. https:/
www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/
lancastervillagenewyork,lancastertowneriecountynewyork/
PST045222#PST045222

9. PE. 19 - (Critical Assets Map). Bridges: NYS Department
of Transportation, 2021; Potential brownfields/chemical
waste storage: NYS DEC, Chemical Bulk Storage Facilities
program, 2023~ designation applies to properties that store
a hazardous substance that must be registered with DEC;
All other Critical Assets (Hospitals, schools, police, fire,
libraries, government buildings, wastewater treatment, and
electric substations): Erie Co. Parcel Data, 2022. Extracted
using property class codes.

10. Pg. 21 - Climate scenarios were developed using U.S.
Global Change Research Program, Climate Mapping for
Resilience and Adaptation (CMRA) Tool using National
Climate Assessment LOCA data, 2018. Accessed November
2023 at resilience.climate.gov/

1. Pg 23 - Village of Lancaster Extreme Weather
Vulnerability Assessment. 2020. Prepared by C&S
Companies. Also, data regarding precipitation and storm
surges was drawn from: “Responding to Climate Change
in New York State: The ClimAID Integrated Assessment for
Effective Climate Change Adaptation in New York State.”
(201, updated 2014). Annals of the New York Academy

of Sciences, 1244: 2-649. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1749-
6632.2011.06331.x

12. Pg. 23 - Village of Lancaster Extreme Weather
Vulnerability Assessment. 2020. Prepared hy C&S
Companies.

13. Pg. 23 - Erie County Climate Vulnerability Assessment
Hazards Summary Report Draft. 2020, Prepared by Susan
Clark et al.

14. Pg. 24 -Vermette, Stephen. “Weathering Change in WNY:
Climatic Trend Analysis (1965-2016),” 2017. And, U.S. Global
Change Research Program, CMRA Assessment Tool using
National Climate Assessment LOCA data, 2018. Accessed
July 2023 at resilience.climate.gov/



15. Pg. 25 - Vermette, Stephen. “Weathering Climate
Change in WNY: Climatic Trend Analysis (1265-2016),” 2017.
“Thunderstorm” wind events are those caused by storms
with wind exceeding 58 miles per hour.

16. Pg. 25 - American Lung Association, “State of the Air”
2023. Accessed September 2023 at https://www.lung.org/
research/sota/key-findings

17. Pg. 26 - Boland, Brodie et al. “Focused Adaptation:
A Strategic Approach to Climate Adaptation in Cities.”
McKinsey Sustainability and C40. 2021.

18. Pg. 26 - Erie County Climate Vulnerability Assessment
Hazards Summary Report Draft. 2020. Prepared by Susan
Clark et al.

19. Pg. 26 - Erie County Climate Vulnerability Assessment
Hazards Summary Report Draft. 2020. Prepared by Susan
Clark et al.

20. Pg. 28 - Existing, Expected, and Extreme climate
scenarios were developed using projections from NOAA
CMRA Assessment Tool using National Climate Assessment
LOCA data, 2018. Additional analysis on winter precipitation
projections from Notaro, Bennington, and Vavrus,
“Dynamically Downscaled Projections of Lake-Effect Snow
in the Great Lakes Basin,” American Meteorological Society,
Journal of Climate, 2014.

21. Pg. 36 - Strategy performance scores for potential
approaches, (pages 37-43) are adapted from McKinsey
Sustainability & C40 Cities, “Focused adaptation: A
strategic approach to climate adaptation in cities,” July,
2021.

22, Pg. 42 - Boland, Brodie et al. “Focused Adaptation:
A Strategic Approach to Climate Adaptation in Cities”
McKinsey Sustainability and C40. 2021.

Data Sources and Notes

IMAGE CREDITS

Pg. 18 - Cayuga Creek Park Construction - Gavin O'Brien
Pg. 20 - EV Charging Stations - UBRI

Pg. 20 - Tree Planing - Lynne Ruda

Pg. 20 - Green Infrastructure - Gavin O’Brien

Pg. 20 - Shade Tree - Gavin O’Brien

Pg. 25 - Wildfire Smoke - Colorado Department of
Public Health & Environment - Air Pollution Control
Division, May 19, 2023. https://twitter.com/cdpheapcd/
status/1659537882133204992.

Pg. 25 - Spotted Lantern Fly - Cornell University College of
Agriculture & Sciences

Pg. 25 - Emerald Ash Borer - Google Images (Creative
Commons)

Pg. 27 - Central Ave. Rain Garden - Gavin O’Brien
Pg. 29 - Youth Scenario Planning Workshop - UBRI
Pg. 46 - Youth Scenario Planning Workshop - UBRI
Pg. 46 - Ribbon Cutting - Lynne Ruda

Pg. 47 - Water tower - Gavin O’Brien

Pg. 47 - Park/Splash Pad - Gavin O’Brien

Pg. 47 - Snowstorm - Lynne Ruda

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan

EEXEEENEENEENEEENEE N NN N EENE NN NN NN N RN RN NN N N RN R NN R RN NN NN NN RN NN NN N RN NN NN RNENENYNNNYY YN

49



Appendices

(A REERENENEENEEN EEENE NN N NN RN RN NN NN NNEEREN R NN ENEENNEEE N R RN RN E NN NN NS NN NN NN NN NN NEN NN N NN EEEEERXNRNER NN EREN]

Appendices

Appendix Materials for this plan are available
online at: https://buffalo.box.com/s/2tukuvyOe
9chvolwooutco7hxf6eu48b

Appendix Materials include:

Community Survey Materials
» Community Survey Questionnaire
* Community Survey Summary of Results

Community Resilience Workshop Materials
« Agenda
« Presentation
« Handout
¢ Feedback

Public Draft Plan Community Meeting Materials
* Presentation
» Feedback

Plans
» Links to Existing Planning Documents
Referenced in this Plan

50 Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan



E RN FENNENEEENEENNEESNEEEEEENNENNS N EENENEEEEN SR AN ENNENEREEEEEEEEENNEEEEEEEREENENENEENRENREENENENEENENNENNENNENN]

Village of Lancaster Climate Resilience Plan 51






